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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,
WORLD’S LEADING INDEPENDENT COKE POSITION

REGIONAL BUSINESS LAYOUT IN CHINA

On behalf of the Board of Directors of China Risun Group Limited, | am
pleased to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 2020.

OUR VISION

The World’s leading energy chemical company —future rooted in
innovation.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES

Expanding by multiple growth model, multiple industry development and
multiple regional layout together with our nine competitive advantageous
abilities.

REVIEW

Year of 2020 was the 25th anniversary of Risun since the establishment
in 1995. On the other hand, it was also a year filled with challenge and
unstability to the world or the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or
“China”) due to COVID-19. Nevertheless, we made use of both internal
and external advantages to increase our coke products’ price spread,
and expand our business volume in four operation segments. In terms of
market share and geographical location, we have achieved the followings:

° Our market share in coke in 2020 accounted for 1.7% (2019: 1.4%)
in the world while it accounted for 2.4% (2019: 2.0%) for China’s
total output;

° Our production bases are located at eight locations (2019: eight)
in four different provinces of China (2019: four). We carried out two
new operation management services projects in Jiangxi Province
and Shanxi Province, China and it was the first time for us to expand
our coke operation management to Shanxi Province, China; and

° Our first sizable acquisition of six coke and chemicals companies
under Cinda Project since the Listing was completed with coke
production capacity of approximately 1,200,000 tons p.a. in
Shandong Province, China. All production lines resumed full
operation.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

PROSPECTS

Although we were in a cyclical industry in China, our business model and
regional layout made us less cyclical by:

1. Leveling both coke and refined chemicals products, given they
have different demand cycles. Some refined chemicals with strong
demand side allowed us to maintain the business growth;

2. By making use of our leading position and experience in coke
production, we could expand our business by merger and
acquisition together with operation management services. This is
what we called the balance of “asset-light” and “capital intensive”
investment strategies;

38 Developing new energy business other than coke and refined
chemicals products. This could balance the traditional coke and
refined chemicals business and the purified hydrogen business;
and

4. Enhancing our competitive strengths through automation and
information technologies.

We aim to level the periodic fluctuation and are rooted on our vision
and strategies. We also formulated our own Five-Year Plan, which is
correlated to the National Five-Year Plan of China. We are determined to
take into account of National macro economy of China for our business
development. We believe that China’s economy will continue to be
prosperous. We also took the initiative to assume higher standard of
environmental and social responsibilities and pursue the coordination
between National development and our own enterprises development. In
doing so, we will benefit from every challenge and opportunity and grow
together with our Nation.

Other than following the National Five-Year Plan of China, we believed
our success would be resulted from the recognition and support from our
suppliers, customers, shareholders and employees. Risun would continue
to uphold the philosophy of “customer-centric and creating value for
customers”, achieve win-win business development and promote the
innovation and development in the coke industry.

Looking into 2021, we will continue to increase our market share by
expanding our operation management together with merger and
acquisition. We also plan to strengthen our production line of coke and
coking chemicals and refined chemicals by refining into hydrogen energy
products. The main theme is to enlarge the production of our existing
products mix and manufacture some new refined chemicals products
according to the current economic situation in China and overseas.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHE(E)

DIVIDEND

In view of balancing the satisfactory operating results in 2020 and
business prospects in the future, the Board recommends a final dividend
amounting to RMB429.5 million for 2020 and the total dividend amount for
the full year 2020 of RMB535.0 million, representing no less than 30% of
our net annual distributable profits of approximately RMB1.7 billion, as a
return to the supports of our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all the Group’s
employees, shareholders and business partners including but not limited
to our suppliers, customers and banks for their continuous support. We
are looking forward to achieving another year with momentum, growth
and expansion in 2021.

Yang Xuegang
Chairman

March 26, 2021
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Business Highlights
E

Expansion

RR

ACQUISItIOh Expansion of Coke Operation Management
Services into Shanxi Province

Hydrogen Energy Products 98 R || 7

B

Completed the acquisition of six coke and

&b ]
ﬁ EEE AR refined chemicals companies in Shandong

Province and resumed full operation

Entered into the first strategic cooperation
framework agreement on a project in
relation to the production, storage and
transportation of hydrogen and the
construction and operation of hydrogen
refueling stations in Dingzhou, Hebei

Province

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Net profit 1 ARHET
F 5 ; n RMB 100 million

I G5
7.7
21.3
13.7
17.0
Gross profit 3 2 2 AR
EF n RMB 100 million
I O
20.1
34.1
25.8
32.2
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Business Highlights (Continued)
FBEEHRE(E

China’s sales coverage
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Provinces in which we had sales of our products during the Reporting Period
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° Locations of production base
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Business Highlights (Continued)
FBEEHEE(E)
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Business Highlights (Continued)

EomE(E)

Joint venture company CNC Risun Energy
SN E PR RER

Xingtai production base:
MEEERR :

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines
ERRELCEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line

ERECIEREESR

Joint venture company Risun China Gas

A ATERE R REEIR

Huhhot production base:

WA R R
Coke and coking chemicals
production line
ERRELEREER
Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line
ERECIEREES

Associated company Jinniu Risun Chemicals
BEARNSFBELLT

Xingtai production base:
MatERR :

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line

ERECTEREER

Associated company Cabot R|§un Chemicals
BER E-Fﬁﬁhﬂﬁnﬂil 1)

¥y
roduction ase. i

China Risun Group Limited
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Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRECEREESR

Carbon material chemicals
production lines

BMREEIEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production lines

ERECTIEREER

Aromatics chemicals
production lines

FRECIEREER

Operating Management Segment Serving
BEEEE S MRS

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines
ERRELCEREER
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Carbon material chemicals
production lines
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Business Highlights (Continued)
FBERE(E)

Production volume / processing volume of major

products of the Group in 2020 (ihousand tons)

2020 A KEEFEEMWEE/NIE v

Coke*

Production volume

EE

Coking crude benzene
BEX

11,125.9

Processing volume
mIE

5349

Industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride
TESERRE

Production volume

EE

m 169.8

Coke oven gas methanol

Production volume

EEERGRE ER
Coal‘tar Processing volume
HREH MIE
11,0919

Caprolactam

Production volume

C Bt ER
m 3228
* Calculated on a dry basis
* R EHE
Note: The production volume of each major products includes
both self-owned production and operation management’s production.
Bt TZEMNESLROAEMRELERERNES -
2020 F3}
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The following table sets out our key fmanmal N periods or as TRHEI R EBAAMSEZEFR B EBERMD
of the dates indicated extracted from the audited consolidated financial FEUBEE - DREEABRKRER - BOF
statements disclosed in the Prospectus, previous annual reports and this AN F R FTR BE R A AR A ISR o
annual report.

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBRRREER

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
20164F 20174 20184 20194 2020
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Revenue g 12,216,609 18,658,278 20,583,079 18,842,038 19,784,866
Gross profit EF 973,413 2,005,239 3,409,920 2,582,908 3,223,443
Profit before taxation BREEATR A 390,836 845,943 2,660,371 1,679,379 1,997,715
Income tax expense FTSTAx (35,875) (80,370) (533,358) (305,711) (296,812)
Profit for the year attributable to:  FE{EFEEF
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 359,299 754,674 2,088,668 1,363,165 1,700,041
Non-controlling interests IR B (4,338) 10,899 38,345 10,503 862
Basic earnings per share FRER
(RMB yuan) BRARST) 0.12 0.24 0.63 0.34 0.42
2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

nv_\é/ﬁle.i%ﬂﬁ;\R%%g
As at December 31,
MW12B31H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
20164 20174 20184 20194 20204
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFTT  ARETFT ARETFTT  ARETFT AREFT
Non-current assets FERBEE 11,866,376 12,393,896 12,473,286 14,597,914 17,017,021
Current assets MENEE 9,273,347 9,445,155 10,128,823 5,603,482 7,197,619
Total assets HWEE 21,139,723 21,839,051 22,602,109 20,201,396 24,214,640
Current liabilities mEaE 15,844,169 15,951,278 16,414,072 11,889,771 13,049,602
Non-current liabilities FERBARE 2,583,872 2,778,064 1,475,014 1,511,523 2,888,635
Total liabilities waEE 18,428,041 18,729,342 17,889,086 13,401,294 15,938,237
Net current liabilities BB EFE (6,570,822)  (6,506,123)  (6,285,249)  (6,286,289)  (5,851,983)
Net assets BEFE 2,711,682 3,109,709 4,713,023 6,800,102 8,276,403
2020 F ¥
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E 5w S o AT

OVERVIEW

We are an integrated coke, coking chemical and refined chemical
producer and supplier in China. The Group maintains as the world’s
largest independent producer and supplier of coke by processing volume
in 2020, according to Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai Branch
Co., (“Frost & Sullivan”) an independent global consulting firm. Other than
the largest independent coke processing volume in the world, we held
leading positions in a number of refined chemical sectors in China or
globally in 2020. According to Frost & Sullivan, the Group was the largest
producer of industrial-naphthalene-based phthalic anhydride and coke-
oven-gas-based methanol by volume in China in 2020. The Group was
also the largest coking crude benzene processor and the second largest
coal tar processor by volume globally in 2020.

If 2019 was a year with rapid development in the history of Risun, then
2020 was a year mixed with different challenges and achievements to
Risun and also the whole world.

Leveraging our development experience from the production bases in
Xingtai and Dingzhou of Hebei Province, our expansion was by way of
provision of operation management service, merger and acquisition,
establishment of joint ventures, and other means. In 2020, we had eight
production bases, located in Hebei Xingtai, Hebei Dingzhou, Hebei
Tangshan, Hebei Cangzhou, Inner Mongolia Huhehaote, Shandong
Dongming, Shandong Yuncheng and Liaoning Lingyuan. The main
philosophy of our expansion is to enhance our annual processing
volume in coke and refined chemicals industry. By further developing
the manufacture of by-products of coke and other high potential refined
chemicals, we can develop a longer and deeper production chain from
coke. In the long run, we can maintain our leading position in coke and
refined chemicals industry and create values to our shareholders.

Our annual coke processing capacity increased from approximately
8.77 million tons in 2019 to approximately 11.13 million tons in 2020,
while our annual coking chemicals processing capacity increased from
approximately 3.55 million tons in 2019 to approximately 3.68 million
tons in 2020. Our major coking and refined chemicals included coking
crude benzene, industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride, coke oven gas
methanol, coal-tar pitch and caprolactam.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In January 2020, we continued our operation management service
business by entering into a operation management agreement with a
coke producer with production capacity of 1,300,000 tons of coke and
coking chemicals in Jiangxi province.

In March 2020, we entered into a strategic cooperation framework
agreement with the People’s Government of Dingzhou City, Hebei
Province, China on a project in relation to the production, storage
and transportation of hydrogen and the construction and operation of
hydrogen refueling stations. The production base has commenced trial
production since July 2020, and in December 2020, we incorporated
a new subsidiary in Dingzhou, which will carry out the operation of
hydrogen refueling stations.

In November 2020, Huhhot Risun China Gas Energy Limited, a joint
venture of the Group, signed another hydrogen project framework
agreement with the People’s Government of Qingshuihe County, Huhhot.
Similar to the project in Dingzhou, we are responsible for the production
and transportation of hydrogen and construction of hydrogen refueling
stations in Qingshuihe. In March 2021, a hydrogen refueling stations
project with 500kg daily capacity in the production base in Xingtai of
Hebei Province was included in the list of major projects for the hydrogen
energy industry in Hebei Province in 2021 (the second batch), (A/it&
2021 F R EEEFEIHEERFE(F 2HL)). This is the third hydrogen
energy project of the Group since Hebei Dingzhou and Inner Mongolia
Hohhot.

Currently, our coke oven gas has a production capacity of approximately
2,420 million cubic meters per annum for internal use in our production
base and external sales, while the production capacity of purified
hydrogen production capacity is approximately 1,230 million cubic meters
per annum.

In October 2020, our Tangshan Production Base, the first pure ethylene
processing into styrene production facility in Hebei Province, China,
commenced production of styrene with an annual production of
300,000 tons. Our pure ethylene processing technology is an advanced
technology development within China.

In October 2020, we entered into an interests transfer agreement with
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd., Cinda Capital Management
Co., Ltd. and Wuhu Shunri Xinze Equity Investment Partnership (LP)
(“Shunri Xinze"), where we will acquire all LP Interests and GP Interests in
Shunri Xinze in stages. In January 2021, Shunri Xinze together with the six
chemicals enterprises became subsidiaries of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE MW LDT ()

In November 2020, we entered into a joint venture agreement with
Pingxiang Mining Industry Group Co., Ltd. CE4FE ¥ £ @M AR A
A]) and Hunan Wujo Light Industry and Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. (4]
mATE{CEB AR AT, to jointly establish two joint ventures, namely
Pingxiang Risun Energy Co., Ltd. (¥4 BFZaEIR B R A &) (investing in the
construction of the coking project), and Pingxiang Anyuan Glass Co., Ltd.
CEM LRI B BR A R)) (investing in the construction of the glass project)
by means of capital contribution.

In March 2021, we entered into a 5-year integrated sales and marketing
agreement with an independent third party engaging in the production
of coke and chemical products in Shanxi Province, China. We receive
sales service fees at a rate of RMB40 per ton by sourcing and selling the
coke products from the independent third party to our customers. More
importantly, this allows us to expand our coke operation management
services into Shanxi Province, which is currently the largest province in
China in terms of coke output.

Considering the operating results in 2020 and our future development
needs, and in order to share our results with shareholders, the Board
recommended a final dividend of RMB10.5 cents per share, equivalent
to approximately HK12.48 cents per share, with a total amount of
RMB429,450,000 or HK$510,432,000 for the year ended December 31,
2020. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the total amount of interim
and final dividend was RMB535.0 million, representing no less than 30%
of the net profit of the Group.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

Risun was founded in 1995 and up to 2020, we have a 25-year history of
development. We take advantage of our leading position, experience and
technology in coke industry to drastically expand our four key business
segments through the following development strategies. The Group aims
to strengthen the global leading position as an integrated producer and
supplier of coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals.

(i) expansion of business operation and production capacity;

(il exploration of market opportunities to provide operation
management services;

(i)  development and reinforcement of long-term business relationships
with the major customers and suppliers;

(iv) expansion of domestic and international trading business;
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

improvement of our energy-efficiency, environmental protection and
operation safety standards; and

improvement of our core competitive strengths through automation
and information technologies.

Apart from the above development strategies, there are nine competitive
advantageous abilities that we believe we possess and can allow us to
deploy and execute the development strategies effectively in order to
enhance our leadership in coke and coking chemicals industry:

1.

Scale advantageous ability

We are the world’s largest independent coke producer and supplier
of coke by processing volume and enjoying economies of scale
which enabled us to become more competitive in terms of costs,
product quality and customer relationships among the eight
production bases in China.

Vertically integrated advantageous ability

Our vertically integrated business model helps improving our
production efficiency and achieving synergies through centralized
and unified management and reducing exposure to market volatility
and price fluctuations.

Production base advantageous ability

All of our production bases are located in industrial parks approved
by PRC governmental authorities. Our production bases are
located near most of our major customers and suppliers and
transportation infrastructure, such as national railway networks,
major highways, expressways and ports, which provide us with
multiple transportation options.

Cost control advantageous ability

We actively control our expenditures in cost of sales and services,
selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses,
finance costs and income tax expenses. We have formulated
a comprehensive and mature coal preparation and blending
computer system based on our IT infrastructure and experience
so as to widen the price spread between our products and our raw
materials.
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Centralized sale and marketing advantageous ability

We are market-oriented and all the products are sold under the
brand “RISUN” via the centralized sale and marketing system
operated by the Group. We maintain low levels of finished product
inventories and adopt a “zero inventory” policy and strive to achieve
minimal inventory of our coke products. We produce based on the
periodical production plans which are adjusted regularly pursuant
to our customers’ demands.

Innovation advantageous ability

Our research and technology personnel focuses on the innovation
of production and energy and resource efficiency to improve our
manufacturing processes and reduce the environmental impact of
our production processes. We also commit to improving product
added value and extending the industrial chain.

Automation and information technologies
advantageous ability

Our production bases are highly automated and we established a
centralized system connecting our Manufacturing Execution System
(MES), Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) systems and the BeiDou
Navigation Satellite System. We also use the mobile internet, cloud
computing, internet of things, big data and intelligent manufacturing
technologies in our operations.

Environmental safety advantageous ability

We have adopted a number of measures and practices to reduce
the environmental impact of our operations, such as preventing soil
pollution, water pollution and air pollution in order to minimize the
negative impact on the environment.

Another key of our environmental measures is our resource recovery
and re-utilization. During our coking process, we recover and re-
utilize valuable coking by-products, from which we manufacture our
refined chemical products. With our vertically integrated business
model, we also re-utilize the heat from our production processes
and re-use wastewater and other fluids after appropriate treatment.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Hrf% D—JLDHH& Tﬁ(m/\)

P HED

BALTISERER  MEERSEB
REEE LR ST EHRGIANERS] &
METTIHE - HAI—REFEKFED
KRaFE o RIFRAITFE I BORIL
NERREERERE - ZAI—KRZ
THEEFEILE  UREFPFRE
HIFREE -

Rl ES

BPIFTE REMA BB IR EME]
FTAIBE IR B IRME - ABCE R FIH
EEBRE  UEEEBRRRYERENT
ERK - BB RNEE S E M
B REfREZRE -

(SIS

BMMEERESSEBEEN K
ML T —ESEPRG - @ERMY
BUEHITRA(MES) - EERTEIR
Nmm%@u&k4%¢%mzﬁo
BMETELEREABRDHEHE =
STE - U REBTE R RER
fiiy o

LERRED

BRI S B e U - R R A
EBRESHBRITNZE - i ik
TEFR - KFRERERISHR WA
WMOEBRBNEEPE

EREEBFAEMREEED

—EAE2 - RMEREBREFEK
WEHMNABEENSLBER I
LR EREBALETIER - BB
Mm— B ERER  RMETEH
FAEERERELENEL iﬁﬂ
i85 8 B IR 1% K R 7KORN H b 7R B
EHFA -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

9. Risk mitigation advantageous ability

We monitor the business operations of our customers, including
but not limited to their inventory levels, production output and sales
volumes, via our on-site customer service personnel. This enables us
to promptly understand the downstream demand for our products,
adjust our production plans and mitigate the risks associated with
price fluctuations and changes in demand for our products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recognised four business segments described as follow.
During the year ended December 31, 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report, we entered into four (2019: four) new operation
management agreement and capital injection agreements with
independent third parties in Jiangxi Province, Shangdong Province and
Shanxi Province respectively.

1) Coke and coking chemicals manufacturing: the production and sale
of coke and a series of coking chemicals from externally sourced
coking coals processed at the Group’s coking facilities;

2) Refined chemicals manufacturing: the processing of coking
chemicals, sourced from the Group’s coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing segment and third parties, into refined chemical
products at the Group’s refined chemicals facilities, as well as
marketing and sale of such refined chemicals;

3) Operation management: the operation management service
provided to the third-party plants, and the sale of coke, coking
chemicals and refined chemicals produced by these plants
under the management service agreements and commissioned
processing contracts; and

4)  Trading: the sourcing of coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals from third parties and the marketing, sale and distribution
of such coal chemicals.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE MW LDT ()

Apart from the nine mentioned above, another reason that we are the
leading global coke and refined chemical producer and supplier is
that we have sophisticated planning ahead of the industry. Since our
establishment history started in 1995, we formulated and executed of
a Five-Year Plan for every five years. We completed the fifth Five-Year
Plan from 2016 to 2020 and are now formulating the sixth Five-Year Plan
from 2021 to 2025. The major aim of the sixth Five-Year Plan is to achieve
a total processing volume of coke of 30 million tonnes per annum by
2025 through different ways to increase our market share of coke and
refined chemicals in China, ranging from setting up subsidiaries and/or
joint ventures, acquisition of existing coke enterprises and provision of
operation management services to other coke enterprises.

In November 2020, we formed two joint ventures with Pingxiang Mining
Industry Group Co., Ltd. and Hunan Wujo Light Industry and Chemicals
Group Co., Ltd., namely Pingxiang Risun Energy Co., Ltd., and Pingxiang
Anyuan Glass Co., Ltd., which will invest in the 3.6 million tonnes/
year coking project (1.8 million tonnes/year for phase 1 and 1.8 million
tonnes/year for phase 2) and the 1,200 tonnes/day float glass and
further processed glass project, located in Xiangdong Industrial Park in
Pingxiang City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC, respectively.

Apart from the above, we continued the development of our business
through operation management services. A brief description of four
operation management and merger and acquisition projects are as
follows:

° Hongyu Project: Operation management services to a production
capacity of 1,300,000 tons per annum of coke and coking
chemicals in Jiangxi Province;

° Cinda Project: Completed the acquisition of production capacity of
approximately 1,200,000 tons per annum of coke and approximately
500,000 tons per annum of refined chemicals in Shandong
Province;

° Pingxiang Project: Setting up joint ventures with production capacity
of 3,600,000 tonnes per annum of coke and coking chemicals in
Jiangxi Province; and

° Shanxi Project: Operation management services to a production
capacity of 1,200,000 tons per annum of coke and coking
chemicals in Shanxi Province.

The above development strategies are deployed based on our
competitive advantages through integrated business model and are
designed to diversify the risks of having most of our operation bases in
Hebei Province, China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

We anticipate that the requirements of environmental protection will
become stricter in China. China is promoting “Carbon Neutral” by 2060,
which means the achievement of net zero carbon emissions in the future.
In doing so, renewable energy or more advanced environmental friendly
production will gradually replace traditional production. We consider this
approach as an opportunity to Risun, because other coke enterprises’
existing coke production capacity will be phased out under the latest
environmental protection measures promulgated by the government
authorities in China. The selling price of coke will rebound like what
happened in second half of 2020 due to the reduction of coke supply.

On the other hand, we will continue to expand our coke production
capacity by constructing new coke facilities, just like what we carried out
in 2019 and 2020. Please refer to “Business Prospects” in this annual
report for details.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant event took place subsequent to December 31,
2020:

The Group completed the acquisition of Shunri Xinze on January 15,
2021. Details of the acquisition are set out in the Group’s circular dated
December 8, 2020. The acquisition is conducive to the future business
expansion of the Group in the coke and refined chemicals market.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking forward to our next Five-Year Plan from 2021 to 2025, the Group
will make use of different ways of operation management, merger and
acquisition together with the setup of joint ventures with well-known
geographical large enterprises to increase our market share in coke
production and processing volume and refined chemicals.

Coke

The coke industry has been undergoing the supply-demand reform in
2020, which will continue in 2021. The objective of reform is to eliminate
the coke production capacity from high-polluted coke enterprises. Coking
furnaces of 4.3 meters or below in China had ceased operation since
December 2020, the demand of coke will be supplemented by the other
existing coke production capacity from other coke enterprises.

We expand our coke production/processing capacity by different ways,
such as merger and acquisition of existing coke enterprises, setting
up joint venture with other coke/steel enterprise or operation managing
existing coke enterprises. Through our business expansion, we believe
that our market share will increase from currently 1.7% to a high single-
digit percentage or even a double-digit percentage in China in the next
five years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE MW LDT ()

In addition to our domestical expansion plan within China, we are
also exploring opportunities overseas in order to leverage the risk of
environmental protection policies in China and expanding by setting up
coking production/processing capacity in other countries.

Refined chemicals

We will also enhance the production capacity of refined chemicals
facilities. Apart from the commencement of annual production capacity
of 300,000 tons of styrene in 2020, we are now expanding the production
capacity of caprolactam in Hebei and Shandong Province, since
caprolactam is one of the high potential refined chemicals with great
business prospect in China.

Hydrogen

We are committed to speed up the construction progress of the hydrogen
development projects, strive to turn Hebei Dingzhou and Inner Mongolia
Hohhot into hydrogen energy demonstration cities, and with the support
of continuous research and development and technology innovation
eventually become the hydrogen energy output bases in Northern China.

COVID-19

As the control measures over COVID-19 in China have been effective,
we expect that the China economy will resume a steady growth in 2021,
which the Group’s operation and production will benefit from.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BIERENmAOIT(E)

DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND STATUS OF
THE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The following table sets forth the Group’s financial ratios as at the dates
and for the years indicated:

REERBIER - KRERMRR

TRENAKERNFREBENM LXK

As of and for the year ended December 31,

BZE12ABREBEZALEFE

2020 2019

2020 20194

Gross profit margin(® FEHERO 16.3% 13.7%

Net profit margin® FAEEE 8.6% 7.3%

EBITDA margin® EBITDAREZX® 16.5% 15.1%

Return on equity® - EEE RS 20.9% 20.4%

Gearing ratio® BERBELXO 1.3 1.3
Notes: BiE

(1) Calculated by dividing gross profit by revenue for the year.
(2)  Calculated by dividing profit by revenue for the year.
(8)  Calculated by dividing EBITDA by revenue for the year.

(4)  Calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners for the year by equity
attributable to owners as of the end of the year.

(5)  Calculated by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity as
of the end of the year.

(1) EFMBEAFEARAKEE -

(@) EFBAFARETE -

(3) EBITDARRAFRUZTE -

(4) FABEAREBRFBRABREFREESA

fEfGERRTH -

(6) FEEBEREFEBRUBEFRES LT
o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENmEITT(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %5 [0

The following table sets forth our total revenue and gross profit by TREIBEMREB D> DE BN ERE
business segment (excluding our inter-segment revenue): M BES 2o -

For the year ended December 31, 2020 (Audited)
EZ2020F12831 A LFE(RE:

Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Operation
manufacturing manufacturing  management Trading Total
ERREL BT
EREE EREE EeER g5 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR AREFR ARETR ARBFT ARBFR
Total revenue Eley 8,715,621 5,845,621 600,848 4,622,776 19,784,866
Gross profit 7 2,460,463 387,403 156,358 219,219 3,223,443
For the year ended December 31, 2019 (Audited)
HZE2019F12A31 B I £ (&)
Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Operation
manufacturing  manufacturing management Trading Total
ERREL BT
EmiE EmiE EEER g5 &t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
Total revenue Elie 8,621,458 7,155,664 1,033,367 2,031,549 18,842,038
Gross profit 7 1,402,085 838,239 179,886 162,698 2,582,908
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The following discussion addresses the principal trends that have
affected the Group’s results of operations during the Reporting Period.

(a)

Revenue

The revenue increased by approximately RMB942.9 million, or 5.0%,
to approximately RMB19,784.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2020, from approximately RMB18,842.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019, primarily due to increased revenues
from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing business and
trading business.

Revenue from the coke and coking chemical business increased
by 1.1% from RMB8,621.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2019 to RMB8,715.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 primarily as a result of the slight increase of sale volume of the
coke from 4.93 million tons to 4.98 million tons, and offset by slight
decrease in the average selling price from RMB1,708.4 per ton to
RMB1,698.3 per ton.

Revenue from the refined chemical business decreased by 18.3%
from RMB7,155.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2019
to RMB5,845.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
primarily due to a decrease in selling price of most refined chemical
products caused by the outbreak of COVID-19 and the decrease
in international crude oil price, affecting the demand for refined
chemical products of the Group.

Revenue from the operation management business decreased by
41.9% from RMB1,033.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2019 to RMB600.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
primarily due to the decrease in revenue in connection with the
expiry of our operation management services with a third-party coke
producer in May 2019.

Revenue from the trading business increased by 127.6% from
RMB2,031.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 to
RMB4,622.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
primarily due to the increase in trading volume of coking coal and
coke.
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(b) Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased from RMB16,259.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019 to RMB16,561.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 primarily due to the increase of trading
business.

Cost of sales from the coke and coking chemical business
decreased by 13.4% from RMB7,219.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019 to RMB6,255.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020, primarily due to the decrease of coking coal
price.

Cost of sales from the refined chemical business decreased by
13.6% from RMB6,317.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2019 to RMB5,458.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
primarily due to the decrease in the price of chemical raw material.

Cost of sales from the operation management business decreased
by 47.9% from RMB853.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2019 to RMB444.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
primarily due to the expiration of the management services to a
third-party coke producer.

Cost of sales from the trading business increased by 135.6%
from RMB1,868.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2019
to RMB4,403.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
primarily due to the increase in trading volume of coking coal and
coke.
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(c)

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s total gross profit increased by approximately
RMB640.5 million, or 24.8%, to approximately RMB3,223.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020, from approximately
RMB2,582.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. Gross
profit margin increased to 16.3% for the year ended December 31,
2020, from 13.7% for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Gross profit from the coke and coking chemical business increased
by 75.5% from RMB1,402.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2019 to RMB2,460.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2020. Gross profit margin for the coke and coking chemical
business increased from 16.3% for the year ended December 31,
2019 to 28.2% for the year ended December 31, 2020, primarily
because the decrease in the coking coal price.

Gross profit from the refined chemical business decreased by
53.8% from RMB838.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2019 to RMB387.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Gross profit margin for the refined chemical business decreased
from 11.7% for the year ended December 31, 2019 to 6.6% for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

Gross profit from the operation management decreased by 13.1%
from RMB179.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 to
RMB156.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. Gross
profit margin for the operation management increased from 17.4%
for the year ended December 31, 2019 to 26.0% for the year
ended December 31, 2020, primarily due to the expiration of the
management services to a third-party coke producer.

Gross profit from the trading business increased by 34.7% from
RMB162.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 to
RMB219.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. Gross
profit margin for the trading business decreased from 8.0% for
the year ended December 31, 2019 to 4.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2020 because the increase in trading volume of
coking coal and coke.

(c)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Hrf% DTDH:H& jfﬁ(m/\)

(d) Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains and losses consist primarily of fair value
gain/(loss) on future contracts, derivative financial instruments-
swaps and listed equity securities, loss on foreign exchange and
gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets. The Group had other gains of RMB27.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020, compared to other gains of
RMB105.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The
change is primarily due to (i) a fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments-swaps 69.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2020, and (ii) impairment losses of property, plant and equipment
(mainly the dimethyl ether production facilities).

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB10.6 million
or 1.4% from RMB778.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2019 to RMB789.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
primarily due to the increase in the transportation expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB59.6
million or 15.6% from approximately RMB381.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2019 to approximately RMB441.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020, primarily due to increase in
research and development expense and staff cost.

Finance costs

Finance cost primarily consist of interest expenses on bank loans,
other loans and finance expenses on discount of bills receivables.
The Group’s finance cost increased by RMB66.4 million or 14.3%
from RMB465.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2019
to RMB532.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The
increase was mainly due to an increase in interest on bank and
other loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates decreased by 118.3% from RMB25.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2019 to share of loss
from associates of RMB4.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2020, primarily due to the share of losses from Cabot Risun
Chemical (Xingtai) Co., Ltd.

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures decreased by RMB41.5 million
or 9.4% from RMB440.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2019 to RMB398.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
primarily due to a decrease in the shared profit of Hebei China Coal
Risun Energy Limited.

Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, the profit before taxation
increased by approximately RMB318.3 million or 19.0% from
approximately RMB1,679.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2019 to approximately RMB1,997.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

Income tax expense

The Group incurred income tax expense of approximately
RMB296.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 and
approximately RMB305.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2019 respectively at effective tax rates of 14.9% and 18.2%. The
decrease in income tax expense is mainly due to the High and New
Technology Enterprise tax concession of Hebei Risun Energy.

Profit for the year

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group recorded a
net profit of approximately RMB1,700.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately 23.8% as compared to the net profit of
approximately RMB1,373.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE MW LDT ()

At December 31, 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of
RMB5,851,983,000. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
of the opinion that, taking into consideration the availability of unutilized
banking facilities of the Group amounting to RMB8,887,928,000
at the report date, of which RMB3,128,928,000 is unconditional,
RMB4,212,000,000 is with conditions to be determined by a bank, and
RMB1,547,000,000 is the outstanding portion of syndicated loans for
special purpose of construction of certain production lines, and the
assumption that approximately 55% of bank loans and other banking
facilities at December 31, 2020 will be successfully renewed upon
maturity, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its capital
expenditure and working capital requirements when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

The Group’s primary uses of cash are operating costs, capital
expenditures and repayment of debts in the PRC. The Group has funded
the investments and operations principally with cash from operations and
debt financing from banks and other financial institutions. We manage
our liquidity, working capital and funding of capital expenditures by
monitoring our cash flows and predicting our cash flows. The Group
believes that the liquidity requirements will be satisfied through a
combination of cash flows generated from the operating activities, bank
loans and other borrowings. Any significant decrease in the demand
for, or pricing of, the products and services, or a significant decrease in
the availability of bank loans, may adversely impact the liquidity. As at
December 31, 2020, cash and cash equivalents held by the Group were
mainly cash in the banks and on hand denominated in RMB and deposits
denominated in RMB that are readily convertible into cash.

The following table sets forth the cash flows for the years indicated:

R2020F12A31H - AEERNRBAEFE
AR5 851,983,0007C ° AARIEE (£
ENRE  BEIANEBERFEHREAD
RITERSFE A ARNES,887,928,0007T * H
th AR#E3,128,928,000TT BEEHER - A
R #4,212,000,0007T &% B IRITRTE B A i
HEZ - LUk ARE1,547,000,0007C &5 E
SEGERZERBERNREELS - B
RZN2020F12A318 © 4955%MRTE
REEMIRITE G R BRI & H - Al
AEERERENITHER - UmEEEA
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o Bt - A BRERNDIRFELEREE

AEENBReFEARNTRENEENS - &
AAZREEED AEBEEULERE
REARBITREMS BEBEESRE RN
WEREE - RMBABELRESTE RIER
ReneEBRDHES  EEEERABER
FxREHRES - AEEMEEKEEEHMER
nE - WRITERREME G AR R R
BESHE R - HEMERBNEZRKERER
IR AR TG - AT IEMIRITE KRR
Lo HAREHRBESERTAFE - K
2020F12A318 - AEBFFNREERIFE
ZEMEZRUARKHENRITRFEIR
© o AR ATERERAESHUAREE
BITFR

TREFINAIRBENRSRE

As of and for the year ended December 31,

BE12ANARBEZALFE
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB in millions RMB in millions
AREEET N =T
Net cash generated from operating activities ~ #& & EB)E LR ¢ F58 1,1415 876.7
Net cash used in investing activities REZBARSFE (2,194.9) (197.7)
Net cash from (used) in financing activities METHELFTHREFE 1,177.9 (378.7)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be KReEEFEM 124.5 300.3

Cash and cash equivalents at the FRMBEE REEFEY

end of the year 1,181.4 1,059.9
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Net cash generated from operating activities

For the year ended December 31, 2020, our net cash generated
from operating activities was approximately RMB1,141.5 million and
was more than our net cash generated from operating activities for
the year ended December 31, 2019 of approximately RMB876.7
million, primarily due to the increase of profit.

Net cash used in investing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2020, our net cash used in
investing activities was increased from approximately RMB197.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2019 to approximately
RMB2,194.9 million primarily due to the decrease of withdrawal of
restricted bank deposits.

Net cash generated from (used in) financing
activities

For the year ended December 31, 2020, our net cash generated
from financing activities was approximately RMB1,177.9 million
while our net cash used in financing activities was approximately
RMB378.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The
variance was primarily due to the decrease of dividend paid to
shareholders and the immediate holding company.

The Group expects to fund its capital expenditure commitments
principally by bank and other loans and cash generated from the
business operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENmEITT(E)

INDEBTEDNESS
(a)

Borrowings

The following table sets forth the bank borrowings as of the dates

indicated:

&18
(a)

f&

=
A

TREFHEMR B HRRITER

As of December 31,

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB in millions RMB in millions
AREEETT AR GETT
Bank loan, secured IRITE - BIRH 3,550.3 3,146.8
Bank loan, unsecured IRITE - EIKA 3,648.9 2,981.5
Other loans, secured HEEK - BIEHE 1,146.3 1,090.3
Other loans, unsecured HEMER - EEH 273.7 337.1
Discounted bills financing B E 1,878.5 1,103.9
Total st 10,497.7 8,659.6
As of December 31,
M2A31H
2020 2019
2020%F 2019
RMB in million % RMB in million %
ARKEBEET % ANREGET %
Fixed rate bank and other ~ EBFITRAMMET
borrowings 7,295.4 2.99%~12.00% 5,302.8 1.50%~12.00%
Floating rate bank and other 1% 28R1T R fhfE 3k
borrowings 3,202.3 2.89%~11.4% 3,356.8 3.51%~11.7%
Total 5 10,497.7 8,659.6

The total borrowings increased by approximately RMB1,838.1
million, or 21.2%, to approximately RMB10,497.7 million as of
December 31, 2020 from RMB8,659.6 million as of December 31,
2019, primarily due to the decrease in discounted bills financing,
partially offset by the increase in bank and other loan.
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Most of the borrowings are denominated in RMB, the borrowings
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of
respective entities are set out below:

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

%EEE\ EA\ 1}.}(/»\)

REBEFAARKEE  UERE
B BE B SN B B EHE R fE 5K
FIEATR -

®
#

As of December 31,

A12A31H
2020 2019
202046 20194
RMB in millions RMB in millions
AREHET ARBEET
usD I 757.3 1,424.7
EUR BT - 117.0
Total 5T 757.3 1,541.7

Lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases

The Group had the following total future minimum lease payments
under several lease arrangements as of the dates indicated:

(b) HEBRE BMEMEETEML

BEMREH  AEENBOREER
TR ARRSEEEFBAFEENT

As of December 31,

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB in millions RMB in millions
AREEET N =
Within one year —FN 27.8 19.9
After 1 year but within 2 years —FALERFRN 12.7 20.8
After 2 years but within 5 years MEA L ERFRN 245 5.4
After 5 years AFENE 4.5 =
Total Bt 69.5 46.1
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE MW LDT ()

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments outstanding of the Group are set out
under Note 41 of the Financial Statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND MANAGEMENT

The Group maintained some of the capital denominated in foreign
currency, mainly USD and HKD. Fluctuations in exchange rate would
influence the reserve in foreign currencies to a certain extent and the
Company is exploring and discussing measures to respond to foreign
exchange risk. The analysis of the exposure to exchange rate risk is set
out in Note 39 to the Financial Statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group entered into guarantee agreements with certain commercial
banks in the PRC with respect to loan facilities granted to a joint venture
and a related party. Under these guarantee agreements, the Group
agreed to be jointly and severally liable for the borrowings incurred
by such joint venture and related party. The table below sets forth the
maximum liabilities under such guarantees as of the dates indicated.

BARESE

REBRBITERNEERNFIBRR M BHRE
LA

SMNEE LB K B R

REBNMBHEHAOUIINESHENES =B
BETLRBITT - EXEEEINEE S HEE
E—TEFE  AREEEFRRKIHELIN
P& R SR A0 R 3 o T T FG BE R R B M 5 T SR
B T $RER MI7E39 »

HREE

AEBEREETHERTRR T —RKEE
CER-RBEHITNERBE R LERT
7o REBEZFERGZ  AKEREZHZA
BR MR ELE B FIR RAER A
B - TREJIHEERATBHLBERET
M= B AR -

As of December 31,

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB in millions RMB in millions
AR¥EHET AREEET

Financial guarantees issued to a joint M—REELEZHLREE

venture and fully drawn down IREA) B S HE IR 1,280.0 980.0
1,280.0 980.0

As of December 31, 2019 and 2020, the outstanding balance of loans
under the loan facilities guaranteed by the Group was RMB335.0 million
and RMB936.0 million, respectively. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group were insignificant
at the date of issue of the financial guarantee and no provision is
necessary at the end of each reporting period, taking into account that the
net realizable value of the pledged assets held by the banks exceeded
the facilities and credit granted to the relevant parties. In addition, the
Directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against us
under any of these guarantees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FUTURE PLANS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on March 15, 2019 (the “Listing
Date”) on the Stock Exchange. The Company issued 600,000,000 Shares
on the Listing Date, and issued additional 90,000,000 Shares on April 11,
2019 pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option, at the Offer
Price of HK$2.8 per Share. The total issuance size and gross proceeds

amounted to approximately HK$1,932 million.

During the Reporting Period, the net proceeds from the Listing had been

applied as follows:
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Unused net  Actual use of Unused net
proceeds  net proceeds proceeds
Proposed as at during as at
useof net  December 31, the Reporting  December 31, Estimated
proceeds 2019 Period 2020 timetable
R2019F HEREH 20205
FRERE 1283181 Frigs8 12A3181
FHEE KERFE BHER RERFE EHER
i} RERE B MUEEE K&
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BEET) (BEET) (BEET) (BEET)
Debt repayments EBEE 7456 = = =
Investment plans RE&E 559.2 = = =
Environmental protection plans and 3R{R&HEI K X5 4 3728 290.6 217.1 735 December 2021
system upgrade 2021512A
Working capital HEER 186.4 335 335 =
Total 1,864 324.1 250.6 (315
2020 F#R
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SRS BEEERAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Xuegang (% Z ), aged 56, is an Executive Director, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the Board. He was
appointed as an Executive Director in November 2007. He is responsible
for the overall management and business development of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yang graduated from Hebei Hydraulic College (Ja/dt7KF|EH Rl £
) (now known as Hebei University of Water Resources and Electric
Engineering (A 47K FIE 1 E6x)) in Cangzhou, the PRC in July 1985
with a diploma in hydraulic engineering construction and obtained the
hydraulic engineer qualification issued by the Handan City Labour
Bureau (HBEFM &8 A S /) in December 1993. He completed a master-
level training course in business administration at Renmin University
of China (FB AR KE) in Beijing, the PRC in March 2000 and was
a supervisor of a master's degree program at Hebei University of
Economics and Business (A1b4& 8 K£) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in July
2002. He completed a further master-level training course in business
administration at the ZhongHua Yanxiu University (FREHHEAZ) in
Beijing, the PRC in September 2003. In November 2003, he obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (381 C2F9) BB AFAE) in Macau. He obtained the
senior engineer qualification awarded by the Hebei Provincial Department
of Human Resources and Social Security (AitE A HE R ET SRE
E2) in December 2012. In January 2017, Mr. Yang obtained an executive
master’s degree in business administration from Hebei University of
Technology (3L TZK22) in Tianjin, the PRC.

Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Yang was employed at the
Dongwushi Reservoir Management Center (BRET/KEEIEE), a public
body directly subordinated to the Handan City Hydraulics Bureau (HBEB7K
# /), on a full-time basis for approximately 10 years from August 1985,
and became a deputy director of the Dongwushi Reservoir Management
Center from January 1988. He then joined the Group as general manager
as a result of his entrepreneurial efforts since the establishment of
Xingtai Risun Coking Limited in May 1995 and became chairman since
May 1996. Since September 2012, he has been a director of Beijing
Automic Technology Co., Ltd. (It REFEREHERHD AR A F]) (‘Beijing
Automic”), a company previously listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations (2B /M ERR D EEZ A7) (stock code: 430245), whose
principal business is the planning of water conservancy information
projects, consultation and assessment, as well as software and hardware
product development and services. Mr. Yang holds 49.92% interests in
Beijing Autonomic with some parties acting-in-connect with him.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Over the years, Mr. Yang has taken up leadership roles in a number of
industry associations, including those relating to the coking industry.
He has been the vice president of CCIA since October 2005, and the
president of HBCCIA since January 2006. In February 2008, Mr. Yang
was elected and had served as a deputy to the 11th NPC and in February
2013, he was elected as a deputy to the 12th NPC.

Mr. ZHANG Yingwei (&%), aged 49, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director in
July 2009. He is responsible for the overall management of the Tangshan
Production Base and the Cangzhou Production Base.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a bachelor’s degree in coal chemistry from
Tangshan Institute of Technology (LU T FMERT) (now known as
North China University of Science and Technology (ZE4b¥E T K&)) in
Tangshan, the PRC in June 1993. He completed a master-level training
program in business administration at Hebei University of Economics and
Business (A 1b4E & K E) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in November 2004. He
also obtained a master’'s degree in metallurgical engineering at Hebei
Polytechnic University (f[1£32 T K) (now known as North China University
of Science and Technology (Z4£3 T X&) in Tangshan, the PRC in April
2007. In December 2012, he obtained the senior engineer qualification
from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province (JAl4t%& Bt
MR RS/ NMEPRE).

Mr. Zhang has over 27 years of experience in iron and steel industry
and coal chemical industry. Mr. Zhang worked for Xingtai Metallurgical
Machinery and Mill Roll Joint Stock Corporation (78 & )& & ## $L 88 i%
B ABRAT]) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery & Mill Roll Co.,
Ltd. (/R B & ®mELEE AR A 7)), whose principal business is the
manufacturing of metallurgical machinery and parts for the production of
metallurgical rolls and equipment, from September 1993. He then joined
the Group in February 1996. He has been serving as a vice president of
the Coking Chemistry Sub-committee of the National Technical Committee
on Coal Chemical Industry of Standardization Administration of China
(2RB L T EMZE B E) since May 2016, an expert on the expert
panel of the CCIA since January 2018 and an expert of both the HBCCIA
and the Department of Industry and Information Technology of Hebei
Province since April 2018.

Mr. HAN Qinliang (5%)%), aged 47, is an Executive Director and a vice
president of the Group. Mr. Han was appointed as an Executive Director
in May 2011. He is primarily responsible for the management of the
financial, accounting and information systems of the Group.
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Mr. Han obtained a diploma in industrial economy administration from
Hebei College of Mechanical Engineering (At#EE67) in Xingtai, the
PRC in June 1993 (as a result of a merger, Hebei College of Mechanical
Engineering is now part of Hebei University of Science and Technology
(AL RHE A E2)). In December 2001, he obtained a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Hebei University of Economics and Business (J/dt
& KE) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC. In July 2001, he became a member
of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (& Bl & 5tEl 1
) in the PRC. In December 2003, he obtained the senior accountant
qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province

(it e BN ERE AR A E).

Mr. Han joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Han has approximately 27
years of experience in steel and coal chemical industry. From September
1993 to April 2004, he was the deputy head of the finance department
cost division in Xingtai Machinery and Mill Roll (Group) Corporation (F8&
A ELEE (2 @) BRR A a]) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery &
Mill Roll Co., Ltd. (FHiEE B & #mBLEAR A A])). In March 2004, Mr.
Han joined Xingtai Risun Trading as a general manager assistant.

Mr. WANG Fengshan (E L), aged 62, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the procurement and
sales management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a diploma in statistics from Hebei University (i 1t A £2)
in Baoding, the PRC in June 1989.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Wang has approximately
32 years of experience in procurement and sales management. From
August 1983 to September 1996, he was the sales manager in Hebei
Hongxing Automobile Factory Co., Ltd. (Ait4L 2 /REEEAR A A]), a
company principally engaged in the automobile and automobile parts
manufacturing business, and from October 1996 to October 1998, he was
the general manager of Bear Asia Furniture Co., Ltd. (38ZREBMBER A
A]), a company principally engaged in the metal furniture and furnishings
manufacturing business. From February 1999 to January 2004, he was a
general manager of Xingtai Zhongxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (ff& 9
M BR/AA]), a company principally engaged in the pharmaceutical
business. In March 2004, Mr. Wang joined the human resources
department of Xingtai Risun Trading and oversaw the human resources
and administrative management in CNC Risun Coking from November
2004 to August 2009. He has been overseeing the Group’s procurement
and sales management since August 2009. Mr. Wang has been a vice
president of the HBCCIA since December 2016 and an expert on the
expert panel of the CCIA since January 2018.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. WANG Nianping (£ %), aged 58, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the legal and risk
management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from the Institute of
Hubei Finance (#1bBIAEE6T) (now known as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (FEIPEBUEKRZ)) in Wuhan, the PRC in July
1984. He obtained a post-graduate degree in international trade and
a juris doctor degree from the University of International Business and
Economics (#9MEEE 5 AE) in Beijing, the PRC in June 1994 and
December 2007, respectively. He was admitted as a qualified lawyer in
the PRC in June 1987 and obtained the senior economist qualification
issued by the Sinopec Group in November 2004.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2011 and prior to joining the
Group, he had over 11 years of extensive experience in the petrochemical
industry. He was recognized as a third level lawyer in April 1990 by the
China National Petroleum Corporation (F Bl/A R K AR LA R]) where he
worked. In January 1996, Mr. Wang joined China Petroleum Engineering
Construction Corporation, a company whose principal business is building
oil and gas infrastructures and undertook various positions including
contracts administrator, senior officer of the debt recovery department
and deputy manager of the projects department. In May 2001, he joined
Sinopec International Petroleum Exploration and Production Corporation
(“SIPC”), a company whose principal business is in overseas oil and
gas investment and operations, as the deputy manager of the legal
department. From November 2004 to December 2008, he served as the
vice president of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Kazakhstan and as the deputy
general manager of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Syria from January 2009 to
October 2010.

Mr. YANG Lu (#58%), aged 30, is an Executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the import, export and domestic
trading business of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive
Director in September 2018.

Mr. Yang Lu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
from the Washington University in St. Louis, the United States in May
2012. He obtained the fund management qualification from the Asset
Management Association of China in June 2015.

Mr. Yang Lu joined the Group in November 2013. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a junior consultant at Roland Berger Management
Consultants (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (BB ERCEETE(LBABRRAF), a
global strategy consulting firm, from September 2012 to September 2013,
and from October 2013 to November 2014, he worked in the marketing
department of Beijing Automic. Mr. Yang Lu has been the chairman’s
assistant of Hong Kong Risun since November 2013 and worked in the
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market research department as deputy manager of Risun Sales (JBf% &
$HAFR A A]) (previously named as Beijing Risun Hongye) from December
2014 to May 2016. He then worked in Beijing Risun Fund Management
Co., Ltd. (At RIEBELEEAFR A F]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Xuyang Holding, between June 2016 and September 2018, first as
deputy general manager and subsequently as general manager. Since
September 2018, he was the general manager of Risun Marketing Limited
(JBFZ & $5HBBRAR]) (formerly known as Beijing Risun Hongye Chemicals
Company Limited).

Mr. Yang Lu is the son of Mr. Yang.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KANG Woon (ESE), aged 58, is an Independent Nonexecutive
Director and also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director between November
2011 to September 2015 and reappointed in September 2018.

Mr. Kang obtained a doctorate of jurisprudence from the University of
Texas in Austin, Texas, the United States in May 1990. He has been
an attorney-at-law of the Supreme Court of the State of New York since
March 1991, and a member of the Law Society of England and Wales
since May 1998.

Mr. Kang served as a supervisor from May 2004 to June 2007 and was
an independent non-executive director of Anhui Conch Cement Company
Limited (Z#BUSIZIERDEMR A R]), a company principally engaged in
cement products manufacturing dually listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock codes: 914 and
600585, respectively), between October 1997 and May 2004 as well
as between June 2007 and May 2013. Mr. Kang was an independent
non-executive director of China Yurun Food Group Limited (FFEIRER
mEBARAT]), a company whose principal business is manufacturing
meat products and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1068), from April 2005 to January 2010.

Mr. YU Kwok Kuen Harry (REI#), aged 51, is an Independent
Non-executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in September
2018.

Mr. Yu obtained a diploma in accountancy from the Morrison Hill
Technical Institute and a master’s degree awarded by the Manchester
Business School. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Certified Public Accountant in Macau and a fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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Mr. Yu joined KPMG China in October 1991 and was a partner of KPMG
from July 2002 to June 2011. He served in Golden Meditech Holdings
Limited, an integrated-healthcare enterprise in the PRC and a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 801) as chief
operating officer from August 2011 to June 2016.

He also served as an independent non-executive director at Impro
Precision Industries Limited, a manufacturer of high-precision,
high-complexity and mission-critical casting and machined components
and a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1286) since April 2019 and an independent non-executive director
at Suzhou Basecare Medical Corporation Limited, an innovative platform
of genetic testing solutions for assisted reproduction in the PRC and a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2170) since January 2021.

Mr. WANG Yinping (£35|3), aged 60, is an Independent Nonexecutive
Director and also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Renmin University
of China (B AR KE) in Beijing, the PRC in July 1985 and a master’s
degree in business administration from the China Europe International
Business School (REXEIR TE05T) in Shanghai, the PRC in November
2004.

Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate management. He joined
China National Chemical Import & Export Corporation (FFB{t Ti# O
4\ F]) (now known as Sinochem Group Co., Ltd. (TEF{tEEBRA
Al)) (“Sinochem”), a conglomerate offering exploration and production
of oil and gas, energy, agriculture, chemical, real estate and financial
services, in March 1988 and held various senior positions between March
1988 and March 2014 in Sinochem and its subsidiaries (“Sinochem
Group”), including the deputy general manager of the Hainan branch of
Sinochem, the general manager of the Pudong branch of Sinochem, the
deputy general manager of China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust
Company Limited (1 BI$19ME 7 E S (=5 AR 2 R]) a company principally
engaged in microfinance, industrial finance, capital market and wealth
management, the general manager of the human resource department
of Sinochem Group, the vice president of Sinochem Group, the general
manager of Sinochem International Trading Company Limited (now
known as Sinochem International Corporation (FF{bBIEE (12A%) i 15 B R
2 A])), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600500) and principally engaged in the chemical and rubber business,
the chairman of the China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Company
Limited and the chairman of the Sinochem Lantian Co., Ltd. (f{t&X
£EERAR]), a company principally engaged in research, production
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and sale of fluorine chemicals. Mr. Wang also served as chairman of the
board of Zhejiang Int'l Group Co., Ltd. (T EEFEERNDBRAA), a
company that produces and sells pharmaceutical and Chinese medicine
health products in China and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000411) from December 2010 to March 2014. From January
2015 to December 2016, Mr. Wang was an executive director of China
Pioneer Pharma Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1345) and a comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service provider dedicated to
imported pharmaceutical products and medical devices in the PRC, and
was re-designated as a non-executive director from December 2016 to
December 2019. He was a director of Western Potash Corp., a company
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (stock code: WPX) principally
engaged in building a potash solution mine in Canada, from September
2015 to September 2016, and was re-appointed and has been serving
as a director since April 2017. Mr. Wang has been an independent
non-executive director of Yida China Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3639) and an
operator of business parks in the PRC since December 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIA Yunshan (Z3#&l), aged 53, has been a vice president of the
Group since December 2004. He is primarily responsible for the financing
and cash management of the Group. In July 1990, he completed a
program in financial accounting from Hebei Materials Institute (jiit4#7& £
#2) (now known as Hebei Economy Management School (il b 4% & 1R 2
1)) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC. In July 2003, he completed a master-level
training program in business administration at Hebei University of
Economics and Business (JAI1LAS & X&) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC.

Mr. Jia has approximately 25 years of experience in financing and
cash management. Mr. Jia has been employed by the Group since the
establishment of Xingtai Risun Trading in May 1995. He has held various
management positions in the Group, including financial manager and
deputy general manager of Xingtai Risun Trading from May 1995 to
November 2004. He has been a director of Beijing Automic Technology
Co., Ltd. since September 2012.

Mr. LI Qinghua (ZE#), aged 57, has been a vice president of the
Group since June 2015. He is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Dingzhou and Xingtai Production Bases. He
graduated from the Anhui Economic Management Cadre Institute (Z2H4E
EETEAEREART) in Hefel, the PRC in July 1987 with a diploma in industrial
enterprise management and obtained a master's degree in economics
from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party
of China (A RER) in Beijing, the PRC in July 2001. He obtained a
senior economist qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office
of Hebei Province (JfI 3t & B 2 8/ MESFAZE) in November 1999.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Li joined the Group in November 2004 as a deputy general manager
of Xingtai Risun Trading. He has approximately 26 years of corporate
management experience. Prior to joining the Group, he undertook several
positions at Hebei Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (8]
It RAEREREHFRR A F]), an automobile manufacturer, from July 1983
to October 2004, including director of the special cars factory from May
1993 to June 1998, deputy director and director of the general factory
from June 1998 to September 2002 and deputy general manager of
Hebei Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. from September
2002 to October 2004.

Mr. YUAN Xixian (38%3), aged 58, has been a vice president of the
Group since August 2017. He is primarily responsible for management
of the Group’s strategic investments, production and engineering. He
graduated from the Hebei Institute of Mining and Metallurgy (AltHE/5 £
Ft) (now known as the North China University of Science and Technology
(ZFEJEIE T K22)) in Tangshan, the PRC in July 1983. He obtained a senior
engineer qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of
Hebei Province in December 2004.

Mr. Yuan has approximately 37 years of experience in the steel and coke
industry. He joined the Group in May 2017. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuan joined Xingtai Iron & Steel Corp., Ltd. (& HEEREETAF), a
high-end, specialized, wire manufacturer in July 1983 and was a deputy
general manager, general manager and chairman from June 1998 to
October 2016.

Mr. HO Pui Lam Joseph (fi5fi#&), aged 40, is the company secretary
of the Company. He is responsible for the management of corporate
governance and company secretarial matters, participation in the making
of material business decisions and development of the business strategy.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 2002. He has been a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 2018.

Mr. Ho has approximately 17 years of auditing, financial and company
secretarial experience. He joined the Group in September 2017. Prior to
joining the Group, he was an audit manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from September 2002 to November 2009. He also served as the financial
controller and company secretary of Renheng Enterprise Holdings
Limited, a company principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
tobacco machinery products in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3628), from June 2010 to August 2017.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEgHE

The Board hereby presents their report together with the Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 to the Shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND PROSPECTS

Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Overview” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Review” in this annual
report for details.

LAWS, REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Most of the business of the Company (including the production and sale
of coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals and the trading of
coal, coke and refined chemical products) shall be in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and industry standards in the PRC and is
subject to extensive regulation by the PRC government. The Company’s
aforementioned business and relevant activities are governed by the
regulations in relation to production, sale, operation, transportation,
export, energy efficiency and environmental protection. In addition, all
operations of the Company in the PRC shall be in compliance with the
laws and regulations on foreign investment, taxation and safety.

As of December 31, 2020, there are no material pending or threatened
litigation matters or other proceedings, and the Group is not involved in
any litigation or other proceedings that we believe would materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Directors have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, the Group
had complied with the applicable laws and regulations in all material
respects, and did not have any incidents of material non-compliance, and
had obtained all relevant permits, approval documents, qualifications,
authorizations and approvals upon examination material to our business
operations.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are provided in Note 45 to the
Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

We recruit new employees based on specific job requirements, our
resources and needs from time to time. We provide technical as well as
operational training for our employees, and we have tailored specific
courses for our management personnel in order to build a competent
team.

As of December 31, 2020, we had 4,407 full-time employees (2019:
3,836). Most of our senior management members and employees are
based in Beijing and Hebei province.

We enter into a standard employment contract with each of our full time
employees. Compensation for our employees includes basic wages,
variable wages, bonuses and other benefits. For the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2020 our staff costs totalled RMB458.4 million
and RMB521.0 million respectively.

The Company’s remuneration policy is set out by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are set by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to among others, salaries
paid by comparable companies as well as time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions of the Group.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and
there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate and reward
its Directors and eligible employees. For further details, please refer to the
section headed “Report of the Board of Directors — Share Option Scheme”
of this report.

During the Reporting Period, we had not experienced any interruptions
to our operations caused by major labor disputes and there were no
complaints or claims from our employees which had a material adverse
effect on our business. Our Directors believe that we have a good
relationship with our employees. During the Reporting Period, the Group
had no major labor disputes which might produce significant impact of
the normal business and operation of the Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

EEgWmE(E)

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

We sell our coke primarily to customers in the iron and steel industry
in the PRC, and export a portion to overseas customers. We sell our
refined chemicals primarily to manufacturers and traders in the chemical
industry in the PRC, and export a small portion to customers overseas.
Our end customers may purchase directly from us or purchase through
their affiliated trading arms. Our customers for trading business are
primarily companies in the iron and steel, non-ferrous, coking and
chemical industries. During the Reporting Period, we did not adopt any
distributorship business models in selling our products.

We maintain long-term cooperative relationships with our major
customers. Some of them have maintained business relationships with
us for more than five years, of which the customer with the longest
relationship has maintained a business relationship with us for more
than 16 years. Furthermore, we have entered into long- term framework
agreements with certain of our customers. Our products supplied under
such long-term framework agreements mainly include coke, benzene,
caprolactam and methanol.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue attributable to our top five
largest customers was approximately RMB4,159.0 million, accounting
for 21.0% of the total revenue of the Group (2019: RMB3,651.4 million
or 19.3%). The revenue attributable to our single largest customer was
approximately RMB1,198.2 million, accounting for approximately 6.1%
of our total revenue (2019: RMB1,249.2 million or 6.6%). Our top five
customers during the Reporting Period were independent third parties,
and none of our Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (who, to
the knowledge of our Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital as of December 31, 2020) had any interest in any of our top
five largest customers during the Reporting Period.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

The principal raw material used for our coke and coking chemical
production is coking coal. We mainly source our coking coal from
external suppliers. The major types of coking coal we purchased included
hard coking coal, fat coal, gas coal, 1/3 coking coal and lean coal.
We purchased a large proportion of our coking coal from suppliers in
Shanxi province and Hebei province. If overseas coking coal is more
competitively priced than domestic coking coal, we will source coking
coal from countries such as Mongolia and Australia.

For the production of our refined chemicals, the principal raw materials
are coking chemicals, which include crude benzene, coal tar and coke
oven gas. Coking chemicals are by-products in the coking process. We
mainly source such raw materials externally from our suppliers, but also
source a portion of such raw materials by utilizing by-products from the
coke production facilities at our Dingzhou Production Base and from CNC
Risun Coking at our Xingtai Production Base.

We generally enter into annual procurement arrangements with key
suppliers. These supply arrangements specify the indicative quantities
of raw materials that we plan to purchase in the relevant period and are
subject to separate purchase orders to confirm delivery. Our suppliers
typically granted us credit terms of 30 to 90 days. Pursuant to these
arrangements, our procurement department purchases the required raw
materials from suppliers in accordance with production plans prepared
by our production department. Generally, purchase prices are based
on prevailing market prices at the time of delivery of the raw materials.
We make and implement our raw material procurement plans in line
with our production plans which are primarily based on periodical
review of customers’ orders in order to reduce our exposure to market
price fluctuations of raw materials. The internal market analysis reports
generated by our market department also provide us with a basis for
determining procurement prices.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

EEgWmE(E)

We have a broad base of suppliers and do not depend on any single
supplier. For instance, we procured coking coals from over 100 suppliers
in the PRC and overseas during the Reporting Period. A broad base of
suppliers help enables us to procure a wide range of quality raw materials
at competitive prices. Though we did not enter into any long-term
agreements with our suppliers of raw materials, we maintained long-term
cooperative relationships with our key suppliers. Some of them have
maintained business relationships with us for more than five years.

Our subsidiaries engaged in the production business have passed the
ISO 9001:2008/ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System standard
which imposes detailed supplier selection and assessment procurement.
The selection and assessment of our suppliers include:

° the quality and specifications of the raw materials they offer;
° the size and locality of their operations; and
° their past transaction records and terms of trade with us.

During the Reporting Period, our purchases from our top five suppliers
were approximately RMB4,014.9 million, accounting for approximately
24.2% of our cost of sales (2019: RMB2,977.6 million or 18.3%).
Our purchases from our single largest supplier were approximately
RMB2,049.5 million, accounting for approximately 12.4% of our cost of
sales (2019: RMB980.0 million or 6.0%). Except for CNC Risun Coking
disclosed in Note 37 to the Financial Statements, our top five largest
suppliers are independent third parties, and none of Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder (to the knowledge of Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2020)
had any interest in any of our top five largest raw material and equipment
suppliers during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any material
shortages or delays in the supply of our raw materials, and we do not
foresee any material shortages or delays in our procurement of raw
materials in the future. We closely monitor the inventory levels of our
raw materials, and we adjust our procurement volumes accordingly in
anticipation of periods in which we may encounter raw material supply
shortages or product demand increases.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2020 are stated on page 137 of the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. The
financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries as at December
31, 2020 are stated on page 139 of the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. The consolidated cash flows of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2020 are stated on page
142 of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow.

The discussion and analysis on the Group’s business performance and
financial position for the current year are stated under “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to 35 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2020, the total issued share capital of the Company
was HK$409,000,000.00 divided into 4,090,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s
securities.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group has not issued any debentures during the year ended
December 31, 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

EEgWmE(E)

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

RESERVE

The details in relation to the changes in the reserve of the Company for
the current year are stated under Note 35 of the Financial Statements.
The details in relation to the reserve available for distributing to the
shareholders are stated under Note 35 of the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s property, plant and equipment consist mainly of machinery
and equipment. We purchased our machinery and equipment mainly with
cash from operations and debt financing from banks and other financial
institutions. Machinery and equipment are primarily the various types of
machineries and equipment at our production site at our four production
bases in Hebei province in China, including Xingtai Production Base,
Dingzhou Production Base, Tangshan Production Base and Cangzhou
Production Base.

As of December 31, 2020, our property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB11,056.7 million, with a year-to-year growth of
13.4%. This was mainly because of the addition of RMB2,029.9 million
in property, plant and equipment partially offset by the depreciation of
RMB670.7 million and the impairment of RMB45.6 million.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

After obtaining the shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting for 2018 on June 28, 2019, the Company pay a final dividend of
RMBO0.1532 per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended December 31,
2018 in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on July 10, 2019, and the final dividend was
fully paid on August 30, 2019.

On August 19, 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend for 2019
of RMB6.18 cents per share (tax inclusive) in cash, with total dividend
amount of RMB252,762,000, to its shareholders whose names appears on
the register of member of the Company on November 7, 2019. The interim
dividend was fully paid on November 29, 2019
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

After obtaining the shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting
for 2019 on June 26, 2020, the Company paid a final dividend of
RMB0.0382 per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended December 31,
2019 in cash to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on July 10, 2020, and the final dividend was
fully paid on July 31, 2020.

On August 31, 2020, the Board declared an interim dividend for 2020
of RMB2.58 cents per share (tax inclusive) in cash, with a total amount
of RMB105,522,000, to its shareholders whose names appeared on the
register of member of the Company on September 16, 2020. The interim
dividend was fully paid on September 29, 2020.

The Board recommends the distribution of a final dividend of total
amount of RMB429,450,000 (dividend amount of each ordinary share is
RMBO0.105) for the year ended December 31, 2020 to all shareholders,
details of which are set out in Note 14 to the Financial Statements. Subject
to the approval of the 2019 profit distribution plan at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be distributed on or before June 30, 2021
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of Shares of
the Company on June 17, 2021. Further announcements will be made by
the Company in due course regarding the details of the date of dividend
distribution and other specific arrangement.

The recommendation of payment and the amount of any future dividends
will be at the absolute discretion of the Board and the amount of any
dividends actually distributed to our Shareholders will depend on our
results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, payments by our
subsidiaries of cash dividends to us, our future prospects and other
factors that our Directors consider important. We expect to distribute no
less than 30% of our annual distributable earnings in every subsequent
year as dividends.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The details in relation to the bank borrowings and other borrowings of the
Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 are stated under
Note 31 of the Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEgHEE)

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEREREERE
EEeRRMARERANR  BEREHT
EEN=RBIFNTES - EENEHR
=5 EmEREEE -

The Board of Directors currently consists of nine Directors, among whom,
six are Executive Directors and three are Independent Non- executive
Directors. The Directors have been appointed with a term of three years,
after which they may be re-elected.

BRARREZNENEIIAT

The information regarding the Company’s Directors are set out as follows:

Relationship with
Date of Joining other Directors and
Name Age  Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date  the Group Senior Management
BHMESR
#E R Bf AEREE ZERH MAREENEE SREEENEE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 56 Executive Director, chairman of - Overall management and November 8, 2007 May 12, 1995 Father of Mr. Yang Lu
the Board and chief executive  Business development of the
officer Group
BEEEE 56 HTEE EFELR AEENEREEREKER  2007F11A8H 199554128 BREEMNR
RITHAZ
Mr. Zhang Yingwei 49 Executive Director and vice Overall management of the July 24, 2009 February 5, 1996 N/A
president of the Group Tangshan Production Base
and the Cangzhou Production
Base
REERE 49 WTERRAKERIEH ELEERERAMEERR  2009%7H24H 19965 2A5R TER
HERER
Mr. Han Qinliang 47 Executive Director and vice Management of the financial, ~ May 18, 2011 March 1, 2004 N/A
president of the Group accounting and information
systems of the Group
EPnnk 47 HOEERASERIRH AEEMYE  &FtRER  2011F5A18A 2004£3718 TR
ZER
Mr. Wang Fengshan 62  Executive Director and vice Management of procurement  September 29, 2018 March 1, 2004 N/A
president of the Group and sales of the Group
TRL%E 62 HOTEERALERIRH AEERERIEEEE 201859 29H 200453710 TER
Mr. Wang Nianping 58  Executive Director and vice Legal and risk management of ~ September 29, 2018  February 22,2011 N/A
president of the Group the Group
TETEE 58 HTEERASERIRH AEEERREARER 2018595290 2011527228 TER
Mr. Yang Lu 30 Executive Director Management of the import, September 29, 2018 November 1,2013  Son of Mr. Yang
export and domestic trading Xuegang
business of our Group
BREE 0 HiTEF ERASEMELORER 2018597298 2013511718 BEHEENTT
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Relationship with
Date of Joining other Directors and
Name Age  Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date  the Group Senior Management
BHEMESR
#E R Bf AEREE ZERH MAREEHNES SREEENEE
Mr. Kang Woon 58 Independent Non-executive Oversight of the compliance September 29, 2018 November 11, N/A
Director and corporate governance 20110
matters of the Group and
provision of independent
advice to the Board
FERE 58 BUFHTER EERSENAAREEER  201859A20R NENANBY TER
2E - TREFER{EEY
ER
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen 51 Independent Non-executive Same as above September 29, 2018 September 29, 2018 N/A
Harry Director
REELE 51 BUEHTEZR At 2018597298 201859H29H TR
Mr. Wang Yinping 60  Independent Non-executive Same as above September 29, 2018 September 29, 2018 N/A
Director
FalTEsE 60 BUIHMES .t 201859F 298 2018%9F 298 ik

The information regarding the Company’s senior management are set out

BREARBSRERENEREINMT

as follows:
Relationship with
Date of Joining other Directors and
Name Age  Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date  the Group Senior Management
REMEER
i3] FR OB ABREE ZEAH MAFEENES SREEENBE
Mr. Jia Yunshan 53 Vice president of the Group Financing and cash December 6,2004  May 12, 1995 N/A
management of the Group
el 5 AEEEIEH AEEMRERRLER 2004 127368 1995F5 4128 TER
Mr. Li Qinghua 57 Vice president of the Group Overall management of the June 8, 2015 November 1,2004 ~ N/A
Xingtai Production Base
FRERE 57 AEEEEH MatEERTMNEEER F 201556A8H 2004511418 TR
MERERNEEEE
Mr. Yuan Xixian 58  Vice president of the Group Management of the Group’s August 1, 2017 May 8, 2017 N/A
strategic investments,
production and engineering
BERRE 58 AEEEEH ERAKENRARE £EL 201758A1H 20174588 TER
T
2020 F3}
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EEgHE(E)

Relationship with
Date of Joining other Directors and
Name Age  Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date  the Group Senior Management
BHEMESR
#E R Bf AEREE ZERH MAREEHNES SREEENEE
Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph 40 Company secretary Management of corporate September 29, 2018 September 20,2017 N/A
governance and company
secretarial matters, participation
in the making of material
business decisions and
development of the business
strategy
AR5 0 REARE ERATABAARNEEE . 2018F9A20H 2017F9A20R TER
BEEREBARRATER
R

The Company has received the confirmation of the independence
issued by the Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is of the opinion that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.

CHANGES TO THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

According to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, during the Reporting
Period, there is no change made to the information disclosed by Directors
pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that may not be terminated by
the employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and five
highest paid individuals are stated under Note 12 in the Financial
Statements. The range of remuneration of the senior management are as
follows:

BEEEHmEE)
EEREREZEOTH

ARREERAERDHALTHIOFITE
R BHRERMEI2 - SRERENFHNEE
LU

Number of
Range of Remuneration (HK$'000) Senior Management
¥NgsE (75T SREEBAY
0-1,000 0
1,000-1,500 0
1,500-2,000 0
2,000-2,500 4
4,000-4,500 0
5,000-5,500 1

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

None of the Directors (and their connected entities) is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance entered into by the Company or the Controlling
Shareholders or any of their respective subsidiaries at any time during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any competing interests in such business that is in direct or indirect
competition with any of the Group’s business.
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EEgHE(E)

THE INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as of December 31, 2020, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code as set out in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

EEREREEEARSG - HER
DRESNERRAR

BT FTREE SN - 120206128318 - #f
BEERARNRETESERRRA RS EEMA
HREEEE (& R EH RS KB EXVED K
B - BERMDKEST  BEEREZESFR
HEEHIEXVERE T R ESD EAMG ANA R
REBEHI TR EMERIOAE « IREFE
F RHEGAIEI521G BN ZIEIEE
A EAERSOAR - SRR ETRRIAT
IZETABENE A AR REBHRATHE
AESTOAR °

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
HAEARFE

BITRABEEE

BEERE 54, EntE KRB E N B D
Mr. Yang® Interest in controlled corporation 3,116,074,928(L) 76.19%
B ED Y EERER 3,116,074,928(L) 76.19%

(L) denotes long positions
Note:

(1) Texson is wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. Accordingly, Mr. Yang is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Texson.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors of the Company, as of December 31,
2020, the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) had interest and short positions in the Shares, or
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which had already been notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange:

sE=gHRE(E)

FERRRR O HER

PAQNRESRAA - H2020F12A31H * T
WAL (EEHARAEESERINKAR
AR R SABERD T - HEREES KB
EIEBIEXVEFE2 R EID EAEIE AN EIH
AR - HIRBEES KBS KHIZ336
IR AR SR ZIEFTIEE L AR AR -
K EMEARRE LB BT ER &K

A
B e

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
RN

ERITRABHE

RER AR B RRtE RDEE WA B DL
Texson Beneficial owner 3,116,074,928(L) 76.19%
B BB A 3,116,074,928(L) 76.19%

(L) denotes long positions
Notes:

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2020, the Directors of the
Company were not aware of any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interest or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein, or which had already been notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On February 21, 2019 (the “Adoption Date”), the shareholders adopted
the Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the
Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules.
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EEgWmE(E)

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
Participants (as defined in the following paragraph) to contribute to the
Company and motivate them to higher levels of performance, and to
enable the Company to recruit high caliber employees and attract or
retain human resources that are valuable to the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to subscribe
for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set out in the
Share Option Scheme (“Options”) to any employee, executive director or
non-executive director (including independent non-executive director) of
any member of the Group (the “Participants”).

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Maximum
Number of Shares”) and any other Share Option Scheme of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Global Offering, however, that,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules:

(i)  the Company may, at any time as the Board may think fit, seek
approval from our Shareholders to increase the Maximum Number
of Shares, up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue at the
date of approval by our Shareholders in general meeting. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
scheme of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
or any other scheme of the Company) shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the new Maximum Number of Shares. The
Company will send a circular containing the details and information
required under the Listing Rules to the Shareholders;

(i) the Company may seek separate approval from the Shareholders in
general meeting to permit the granting of Options which will result
in the number of Shares in respect of all Options granted exceeding
the then Maximum Number of Shares, provided that the Options
exceeding the then Maximum Number of Shares are granted
only to Participants specifically identified by the Company before
Shareholders’ approval is sought. The Company will send a circular
containing the details and information required under the Listing
Rules to the Shareholders;
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

(iii)  the total maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other options granted and
yet to be exercised under another scheme of the Company will not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company if this will result in such limit
being exceeded.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as of the date of grant.
Any further grant of Options in excess of the 1% limit will be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. The Company will send a
circular to the Shareholders disclosing the identity of the Participant,
the number and terms of Options to be granted to the Participant, and
containing the details and information required under the Listing Rules.
The number and terms (including the subscription price) of Options to
be granted to the Participant must be fixed before the approval of the
Shareholders and the date of the Board meeting proposing the grant will
be taken as the offer date for the purpose of calculating the subscription
price of those Options.

GRANTING OPTIONS TO CONNECTED PERSONS

Where any offer of the grant of an Option is proposed to be made to
a director (other than an independent non-executive director), chief
executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates, the offer must be
approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding any
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of an Option).
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Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and to be granted
(including Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and (ii) having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of Options
will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting at which all connected persons of
the Company must abstain from voting in favor at such general meeting
and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options will be taken as a poll.

PERFORMANCE TARGET AND CONDITIONS FOR
VESTING

No performance targets are to be achieved before an Option can be
exercised.

SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of an Option shall be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified to a Participant, which shall be at least
the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the relevant offer
date in respect of such Option;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the relevant offer date in
respect of such Options or where the Company has been listed for
less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the
closing price; or

(i)~ the nominal value of the Shares.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on the Adoption Date, i.e. February 20, 2029, after which period no further
Options will be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any Options granted before that. Options granted before
that but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

OPTION GRANTED

No option has been granted under the Scheme during the Reporting
Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any contracts
in respect of the management and administration of all or any significant
portion of the business (except for such service contracts entered into
with the Group’s Directors and all employees) and there existed no such
contracts in respect of the management and administration of all or any
significant portion of the business (except for such service contracts
entered into with the Group’s Directors and all employees).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We have entered into some transactions with connected persons of the
Company. In accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, such
transactions have constituted Continuing Connected Transactions of the
Company.
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PROJECT SERVICES FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

The Company entered into a project services framework agreement
on February 22, 2019 and a supplemental project services framework
agreement on April 29, 2020 (together called as the “Project Services
Framework Agreements”) with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang
Group will provide project design, construction management and general
contracting services to the Group in relation to our various initiatives to
upgrade our energy saving and environmental protection capabilities and
improve the efficiency and quality of our existing large-scale production
facilities in light of the adoption by the relevant PRC government
authorities of more stringent energy saving and environmental protection
requirements. Relevant members of Xuyang Group may enter into
separate contracts with the Group to set out specific terms and conditions
of the relevant services in accordance with the principles provided in the
Project Services Framework Agreements. The initial term of the Project
Services Framework Agreements and any separate contracts entered into
under it will expire on December 31, 2021 and such term can be renewed
subject to mutual written consent of the Company and Xuyang Holding
and approval in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and the
Listing Rules. The Group is free to contract with other independent third
parties for the relevant services if Xuyang Group is unable to provide such
services or the terms that Xuyang Group offers become less favorable to
the Group than those offered by other independent third parties.

Xuyang Holding is a company wholly-owned by our Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Yang and his spouse. Pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1),
Mr. Yang, an Executive Director and our Controlling Shareholder, is a
connected person of the Company, and thus, Xuyang Holding is an
associate of Mr. Yang and a connected person of the Company.

While the Group could procure independent third parties to provide
such services, the Group considers that the Project Services Framework
Agreements is beneficial to the Group as:

(i)  the project design and construction management of various
chemical production facilities requires certain technical expertise
and experience in the design and construction management of
coal, coking and refined chemicals systems and facilities which
Xuyang Group can provide;

(i)~ Xuyang Group has extensive knowledge of our existing production
facilities and our technical and operational requirements, and may
thus be more efficient in implementing the projects; and

(i) the terms and prices offered by Xuyang Group may be more
favorable than what we may obtain from independent third parties.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

The Group conducts a public tender process for each project for which
we require project design, construction management and general
contracting services. Interested bidders would be selected on the bases
of the prices proposed, the technical specifications achievable, the
business model and background of the bidders, payment terms proposed
and the estimated delivery dates, and the bidder offering the best overall
terms would be awarded the project. As such, the fees for the services
provided by Xuyang Group under the Project Services Framework
Agreements would be in line with the prices proposed by Xuyang Group
in its submitted bids, and the Group would compare such bids with the
bids submitted by other independent third parties.

CHEMICALS PROCUREMENT FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

The Company entered into a procurement framework agreement
on February 22, 2019 and a supplemental procurement framework
agreement on April 29, 2020 (together we called as the “Chemicals
Procurement Framework Agreements”) with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to
which Xuyang Group shall provide to our Group certain water purification
chemicals for sewage treatment in accordance with the principles set out
in the Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreements. Pursuant to the
Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreements, Xuyang Group shall
provide the Group with certain water purification chemicals for sewage
treatment in accordance with the principles set out therein. In view of the
operational requirements and development strategies of the Group as
well as the market conditions, the Group will also procure thermal coal
from Xuyang Group for power and heat generation in the course of its
daily production and operation on top of the water purification chemicals
under the Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreements.

The initial term of the Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreements
and any separate contracts entered into under it will expire on December
31, 2021 and such term can be renewed subject to mutual written consent
of the Company and Xuyang Holding and approval in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules. The Group is free to
contract with other independent third parties for the relevant services
if Xuyang Group is unable to provide such services or the terms that
Xuyang Group offers become less favorable to the Group than those
offered by other independent third parties.

Xuyang Holding is a company wholly-owned by our Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Yang and his spouse. Pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1),
Mr. Yang, an Executive Director and our Controlling Shareholder, is a
connected person of the Company, and thus, Xuyang Holding is an
associate of Mr. Yang and a connected person of the Company.
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EEgWmE(E)

While the Group could procure independent third parties to provide
such products, the Group considers that the Chemicals Procurement
Framework Agreement is beneficial to the Group as:

(i)  Xuyang Group can provide stable supply of water purification
chemicals and thermal coal;

(i) based on the past transactions, Xuyang Group has extensive
knowledge of the Group’s requirements for water purification
chemicals and thermal coal, and is capable of providing products
that meet the Group’s operational and quality requirements; and

(i) the terms and prices offered by Xuyang Group may be more
favorable than what the Group may obtain from independent third
parties.

The amounts of fees charged by Xuyang Group with respect to the project
services and procurement for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB317.3 million and RMB89.2 million (tax-exclusive).

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) for the Project Services Framework Agreements is less than 5%,
the transactions under the Project Services Framework Agreements and
Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company which are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION BY THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the aforementioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed that

the transactions have been conducted:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions, on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Co

CONFIRMATION BY THE AUDITOR

The auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, have issued a
letter to the Board, confirming that for the year ended December 31, 2020,
in respect of the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the transactions have not been approved by the Board of Directors;

2. the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

EF the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements; and

4. the amount of each of the transactions has exceeded its annual cap
mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Note 37 to the Financial Statements discloses the related party
transactions of the Company in accordance with IFRS. The transactions
disclosed therein between the Company and the following parties
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules: Mr. Yang
Xuegang, Ms. Lu Xiaomei, Texson and the entities controlled by Mr. Yang
Xuegang. During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On February 20, 2019, the Controlling Shareholders have entered into
a Deed of Non-competition, pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders agreed that, except for the supply of coal as described
above, (i) he or she or it will not engage in, participate in or assist others
to engage or participate in any business that competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with our business within the PRC, Hong
Kong or any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates,
and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to engage in any
business that competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business (the “Competing Businesses”) in the PRC, Hong Kong or
any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates; and
(i) he or she or it will inform us of any new business opportunities of the
Competing Businesses, and use his or her or its best efforts to procure
such opportunities be made available to us.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders have also undertaken in the Deed of
Non-competition that during the term of such agreement, he or she or it
will not, and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to:

° directly or indirectly engage in or participate in, or assist others
to engage in or participate in, any Competing Businesses in
any form (including but not limited to investments, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures, cooperation agreements, partnerships,
contractual arrangements or purchases of shares of listed or private
companies) within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates;

° assist any entity other than the Group to engage in any Competing
Businesses within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates; or

° engage in any Competing Businesses (directly or indirectly) in any
manner.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible
for examining, reviewing, considering and determining whether to adopt
and accept the new business opportunities referred to the Company by
the Controlling Shareholders.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed that they complied with the
Deed of Non-competition during the Reporting Period. The independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have examined and reviewed the
implementation of the Deed of Non- competition and have confirmed that,
during the Reporting Period, the Controlling Shareholders fully complied
with the deed and there had no violation of the deed.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the retirement and employee benefits plans of the Group are set
out under Note 36 of the Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Please refer to “Corporate Governance Report — Compliance of the Code”
in this annual report for details.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

PUBLIC FLOAT

When it applied for the listing of its Shares, the Company applied to the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange has
granted the Company a waiver that the minimum public float requirement
under Rule 8.08(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules be reduced and the
minimum percentage of the Shares from time to time held by the public to
be the higher of (i) 22.1%, the percentage of Shares to be held by the
public immediately after the completion of the global offering (assuming
the over-allotment option is not exercised); and (ii) 23.8%, the percentage
of Shares to be held by the public after the exercise of the over-allotment
option.

Based on the Company'’s publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, as of the Latest Practicable Date, the number of
Shares in public hands represents approximately 23.8% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and as of the latest practicable date, the
Company (including but not limited to) had purchased and maintained
a group liability insurance for the Directors of the Company and its
associated companies (as defined for such term under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Financial
Statements as for the year ended December 31, 2020 prepared in
accordance with IFRS.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)
EEEmE(E)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants is appointed as
the auditor for the Financial Statements as for the year ended December
31, 2020 prepared in accordance with IFRS. Such Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS as stated herein this annual report
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants and a standard unqualified audit report has been issued.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, there was no change in the
auditor of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

By Order of the Board
Yang Xuegang
Chairman

March 26, 2021
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Corporate Governanc

The Board of Directors of the Company has hereby submitted
its Corporate Governance Report for the Reporting Period to the
Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE

The Company focuses on maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for purposes of enhancing the value for shareholders and
protecting their interests. The Company has adopted such provisions of
the Code as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) and
Corporate Governance Report provided in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Company has established and perfected the corporate
governance structure in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Code and has set up a series of corporate governance system. During
the Reporting Period, the Company has been observing all mandatory
provisions of the code as stipulated in the Corporate Governance
Code except the provisions of A.2.1 (please refer to below for detailed
explanation).

The Board of Directors will continue to examine and review, from time
to time, the Company’s corporate governance practices and operation
in order to meet the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules and to
protect the shareholders’ interests.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS CONDUCTED BY
DIRECTORS AND THE RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the standard code against which the Directors
of Listed Issuers conduct securities transactions as provided in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Standard Code”), taking such Code against
which the Directors of the Company may conduct securities transactions.

Upon specific enquiry conducted by the Company, all the Directors
have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, they have been fully
observing the Standard Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rERERWE(E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(a) Composition of Board of Directors

The Board comprises nine Directors, including six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Directors have been appointed with a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation requirements under the Articles of Association
of the Company.

The Company has at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board), and among
whom, at least one Independent Non-executive Director must
possess professional qualifications or accounting knowledge
or professional knowledge related to finance management in
compliance with the provisions of the Listing Rules. Moreover, after
taking into consideration of the factors regarding the evaluation
of the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the written
confirmation of all Independent Non- executive Directors, the Board
of Directors believes that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent individuals.

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises the following:
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Name Age  Sex Position Appointment Date
HE R ME B ZIEH

Mr. Yang Xuegang 56 M Executive Director, chairman of the Board and chief executive officer November 8, 2007
HBEREEE 5 WITES EFGLFERTREHR 2007411 A8H
Mr. Zhang Yingwei 49 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group July 24, 2009
RIRELE 5 MITESRASERBE 20094F7 A 24H
Mr. Han Qinliang 47 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group May 18, 2011

BE R 5 HITERRASERIEE 20114F5 8 18H
Mr. Wang Fengshan 62 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
ERWEE 5 MITESRASERBE 20184F9H29H
Mr. Wang Nianping 58 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
EFFFEE 5 MITESRASERBE 20184F9H29H
Mr. Yang Lu 30 M Executive Director September 29, 2018
B EE 5 HITER 20184F9H29H
Mr. Kang Woon 58 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
BERE & BUIFRITES 20184F9H29H
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 51 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
RERERLE 5 BUIFRITES 20184F9H29H
Mr. Wang Yinping 60 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
EaITFEE 3 BUIFRITES 20184F9H29H
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(b)

(c)

Corporate Governance Report (Contin

The Directors may, at the Company’s expense, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances. The Company
will provide separate independent professional advice to Directors
upon request to assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company.

Before each Board meeting, the senior management will provide
relevant information pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to the operational and
financial performance of the Group. Where any Director requires
more information than is supplied by the senior management, each
Director has the right to separately and independently communicate
with the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries.

Job Duties and Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be accountable to the Shareholders
and have the duty to report to the General Meeting. The Board
of Directors is responsible for convening the General Meeting,
implementing the resolutions of the General Meeting, determining
the operational plan and investment proposals of the Company,
setting up the annual financial budget proposal, final accounts,
profit distribution proposal, proposal for increase or decrease of
capital and others, deciding on the establishment of the Company’s
management authority, determining the appointment or dismissal
of chief executive officer, chief financial officer and other senior
management officers, formulating the basic management system
of the Company and determining the establishment of the special
committees of the Board of Directors.

Job Duties and Authority of the Senior Management

The senior management is responsible for the specific
implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and of
the daily business management of the Company, which includes
formulating (i) the Company’s operating plan and investment
proposal, (ii) the plan of establishing the internal management
authority, (i) the basic management system of the Company and (iv)
the Company’s specific regulations.
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MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS EEEERMKE
During the Reporting Period, the Company convened a total of eleven RIWEHRN - ARRaHBRT—REFE
Board meetings and two general meetings. The attendance of the FHEEMARERE - ESHESRBELE
meetings by the Directors is as follows: FEAT
Board meetings EEgER
Number of Number of Times of
meetings meetings attendance by
Name Position should attend attended Attendance rate alternate
HE B BHESBRE CHESBERH HE=R ZREHERE
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 11 11 100% -
HEMEE WITES
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 11 11 100% -
SRE(E ST A WITEF
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 11 11 100% -
B AL WITEF
Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 11 11 100% -
FRWLEE WITEF
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 11 11 100% -
FFFRE WITEF
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 11 11 100% -
B WITEF
Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non-
executive Director 11 11 100% -
B4 BUIIEHITES
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Independent Non-
Harry executive Director 11 11 100% -
REESEE BUIEHITES
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non-
executive Director 11 11 100% -

TaIFEE

B IEITER
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rEEBHRE(E)
General meetings BRERRE
Number of Number of Times of
meeting should meetings attendance by
Name Position attend attended Attendance rate alternate
HE B BLHESRRE CHESBRRH HE=R ZEHERE
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 2 2 100% -
e b WITES
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 2 2 100% =
SRE(E B4 BITES
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 2 2 100% -
B AL BITES
Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 2 2 100% -
FRILEE WITES
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 2 2 100% -
FEFEE WITEF
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 2 2 100% -
HER S WITEF
Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non-
executive Director 2 2 100% -
BSR4 BUIEHITES
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Independent Non-
Harry executive Director 2 2 100% -
RERESEE BUIEHITES
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non-
executive Director 2 1 50% -
EaIFRE BIEHITES
2020 F3}
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Yang is our chairman and chief executive officer. In accordance with
Rule A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as provided in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be held by the same person.
The Board of Directors has noticed that there was deviation from Rule
A.2.1 of the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. However,
with extensive experience in the coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals industries, Mr. Yang is responsible for the overall management
and business development, the operations of our subsidiaries and their
corresponding production facilities and human resources of the Group
and has been instrumental to our growth and business expansion since
our establishment in 1995. The Board considers that vesting the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial
to the management of the Group. The balance of power and authority
is ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board
currently comprises six Executive Directors (including Mr. Yang) and
three Independent Non-executive Directors and therefore has a strong
independence element in its composition.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Directors have been appointed for a term of three years,
after which they may be re-elected. At each general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of members after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
The procedures and process of appointment and re-election of directors
are laid down in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee
shall be responsible for nominating new Directors and then submitting
such nomination to the Board of Directors for review and consideration.
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Corporate Governance Repor

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any
claim which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any
contract between him and the Company) and member of the Company
may by ordinary resolution appoint another in his place. Unless otherwise
determined by the Company in general meeting, the number of Directors
shall not be less than two. There is no maximum number of Directors.

TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Directors of the Company actively
participated in seminars on the obligations and responsibilities required
to be fulfilled for being the directors of a listed company in Hong Kong,
as well as the obligations for the listing compliance of a listed company
in relation to the continuous professional developments in the following
manner:

ntm

e ued
TEERmE (&

)
)

ARRAEB-BEBRAZRGERRER
MEZLBERBTZEZEEHEEIR
AR ERS B0 R M H REEEER) -
MARBBRATBBERRERRES %
ATEBRERT - FRIFARBRBIRAE L
AERE > BAEZABIFIRMA - &
EABAE LR -

BEEMEIINSEERE

RBEHA - ARREFEB2EEREE
FHARBFARTTOHEBRBEAR LT
RAEBEHBEEEER 2 TTERBBHHOMH
\T@ T2 Elu$ RN

Type of continuous
professional development

Name Position programmes (Note)

HA B FEEXBRRERER W)

Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 2

HBEmEELE HITES

Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 2

RRELE HITES

Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 2

BE =L HITEE

Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 2

FRLEE HITESE

Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 2

FTHEFEE HITE=R

Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 2

B EE HITE=S

Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non-executive Director 182

==L BIYFMTES

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry Independent Non-executive Director 1&2

REIREE L BIYFENTES

Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non-executive Director 182

E5IFEE BIYFENTES

Notes: it

1. Attending seminars/courses for development of professional skills and 1. 2MBEBAREEERERAERNATE
knowledge. RIg o

2. Reading materials in relation to regular update to statutory requirements, 2. BEEMTHERNEEER - EmaA

listing rules and other relevant topics related to listed company

K ER AR E MR T REEME -
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND HIS TRAINING

Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph acts as the company secretary and is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial and accounting operations and
internal controls, and provides financial and business advice to the Board
and senior management of the Group. Mr. Ho shall report significant
events to the chairman. The profile of Mr. Ho is stated in the section
of “Profiles of the Directors and Senior Management” of this Report.
During the Reporting Period, Mr. Ho undertook more than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Agenda
of board meetings are presented to the Directors for comments and
approval. The Board of Directors is provided with adequate, timely and
reliable information about the Group’s business and developments before
each board meeting at which the Directors actively participate and hold
informed discussions. A notice of regular board meeting shall be given to
all directors at least 14 days before the meeting is convened pursuant to
the requirements of the Code, and such notice shall state the date, time
and venue of the meeting to be convened and the format to be adopted
of such meeting. Other interim board meetings have reasonable notices
be delivered to all Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Company shall
publish an announcement at least 7 clear business days in advance
of the date fixed for any board meeting at which the declaration,
recommendation or payment of a dividend is expected to be decided or
at which any announcement of the profits or losses for any year, half-year,
quarter-year or other period is to be approved for publication.

The quorum for a board meeting shall be the presence of two Directors.
Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment through which
all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously and, for the purpose of counting a
quorum, such participation shall constitute presence at a meeting as
if those participating were present in person. The company secretary
is responsible for preparing and safekeeping the minutes of the board
meetings and ensuring that the Directors can enquire about such minutes.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has strictly complied, and will
continue to comply, with the provisions in relation to the meetings of the
Board of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Repor

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors delegates certain responsibilities to various
committees. In accordance with relevant laws, regulations and the Articles
of Association of the Company, we have formed three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has expressly stated the
scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry, Mr. Kang
Woon and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members of the Audit Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in ensuring that
the Company has an effective financial reporting, risk management and
internal control system in compliance with the Listing Rules, overseeing
the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, selecting, and
assessing the independence and qualifications of, the Company’s
external auditor, as well as ensuring effective communication between the
Directors and the internal and external auditors of the Company.

As for the selection, appointment and dismissal of external auditors or
resignation of auditors, the Board and the Audit Committee have reached
a consensus.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings was held by the Audit
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out below:
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ARRIEARE EMARAFEI 215G K EHARA
s 14mTE R EIATAIKII EZEZE S
VEEIPAZZEGNRERE - FZZE
EH=RREMAK  DHISREELEL - B
BRERESIFERE - ERZBEMAKE
VRBUIFPITES - REELERELZ
BEgTE-

BERZEBRNENRHHEESRERED
BB KRS - EREIR R ABEERS ﬁﬁ
ARALETRA - EBARBPBRRAT
B BEAQR NSNS ZEEL i E S
VHERER - WHEREEEARTAREE R
B 2 ENERER -

HRIMNEZBE R E - RERERIEK
%ﬁ&%ﬂ EFEeRERZBEREN—
BER

RIWEBA  BERLEGERITRARSH -
EREZESBRNEMNHEREEHINIT

Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

ZEEREMSA BHiE ELHEEEAE HE=
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 5/5 100%
RERERLE

Mr. Kang Woon 5/5 100%
BB E

Mr. Wang Yinping 4/5 80%
E5IFEE
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee:
1. assessed the independence and objectivity of external auditors;

2. advised the Board on re-appointment of external auditors;

B reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company;

4. reviewed the audited annual results for the year ended December
31, 2019;

5% reviewed the unaudited interim results for the period ended June
30, 2020; and

6. reviewed the audit plan 2020.

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and has
expressly stated the scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Kang
Woon, Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Kang Woon is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include establishing
and reviewing the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on employee benefit arrangements. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for determining the vesting of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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Corporate Governance Report (Contin

During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out below:
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Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

EESHENRE BHE EBHEEEAE HE=
Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%
RBE%AE

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 11 100%
REIREEL

Mr. Wang Yinping 11 100%
FaIFEE

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee:

1. reviewed the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
Senior Management’s remuneration; and

2. reviewed and approved the remuneration proposals of individual
executive Directors and Senior Management, as well as non-
executive Directors for the year 2019, with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives formulated by the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, and has expressly stated the scope of job duties of
such committee in writing. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Yang Xuegang, Mr. Kang Woon and Mr. Yu Kwok
Kuen Harry. Except for Mr. Yang who is an executive Director, all other
members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors to
determine their eligibility, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

R|EHA - FHEES

1. BHAARAZBEFKERERED
FRBER RS R

2. SEEZSHEZLERR
[ M /E201 9¢F“K$$Lﬁ%$&
?&E@EM&#ﬁLﬁi%Z%ﬁ@Hk

e

ARRCRE ETRAM S4B EEER

R
[0
IjES

-~

SRAKIIRAEEE YEEAAZZES
B’]H%k’fié%&l REZEGHM=FKEAMNX -
DHRBEEELE  REXERRERES

£ BRBEERNTESRI  MERMKE
BRBIYFNTES - BELERREEZES
ESE

REZBEENIZEREREEZIEFRIE
EZENRE AR AREZ XHRE
MEERz BB REESRUERES &
ZEARRNE 2 PERMBIBEENK - FHEBL
FRTEENB LI ARTEELER - R
RE BEREREEUANERLIFER
ExEeRftEE -

2020 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G

79



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
ﬁ:\ kk;lzlifﬁ&i(n\/\)

During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Nomination RBEHARN  REZESERIT—AEH -
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Nomination REZESTAKEMLFLEFHINAT
Committee is set out below:

Name of committee members Number of meetings attended/should attend Attendance rate

ZESREHRE EHE EHEEEH HER

Mr. Yang Xuegang i 100%

HERE RS

Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%

BB A

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry i 100%

REIRES &

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee: RWMERAAN - RBEEE

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills, 1. EREFE2EE - AERAKERE
knowledge and experience) of the Board; AL - AR R AER)

2. made recommendations to the Board as to nomination of Directors 2. M2019FEMRRBAFASLHESZE

for re-election at the 2019 AGM; and BRAEENESEREES
3. assessed the independence of INEDs; 3 AHMEBMIERITES BN

4. considered and assess the performance of the Board and consider 4., BERFEEFeNRALEHRIL

such performance against the boards of comparable companies; NAEFEEZ2HURE &
and
5. monitor the implementation of, and review, the board diversity policy 5 EBAQREZTCLZTIEBEZNTT
of the Company. WA SRR -
In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective BREFEgEIN  KEEBAEBREFBEM
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail ERERFEBIRBIEBAERBITHR
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties. &o
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and
to support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development, we have adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, we
seek to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors when selecting candidates to the Board, including but not
limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience, knowledge,
cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of service.
Appointments will ultimately be based on merit and the contributions the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board believes that such
merit-based appointments will best enable the Company to service our
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Nomination Committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing
the structure, number of members, and composition of the Board of
Directors. In addition, the Committee makes recommendations to the
Board relating to the size and structure of the Board of Directors based
on the Company’s strategic plans, business operations, asset size and
shareholding structure. The Committee also discusses and reviews the
selection standard, the nomination and appointment process of relevant
Directors, and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors.
In identifying candidates, the Company solicits candidates through
recruitment agencies, referrals by existing directors, and recommendation
by shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association. The candidates will be approved by the Board of Directors.

The Board Diversity Policy needs to be followed when the Nomination
Committee of the Board makes recommendations on the candidates
or when the Board of Directors makes nomination. The Nomination
Committee of the Board is responsible for monitoring the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing it at the appropriate time to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
amendments when necessary and make recommendations to the Board
of Directors for final approval.
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Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including in
overall management and strategic development, sales and marketing,
finance and accounting, law, consulting and corporate governance,
as well as experience in the coke industry. Our Directors also obtained
degrees in various majors including business administration, coal
chemistry, metallurgical engineering, industrial economy administration,
accounting, statistics, law, international trade and chemical engineering.
The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing one-third of the members
of the Board. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging
from 30 years old to 62 years old. Out of the nine Directors, only Mr. Yang
Xuegang and Mr. Yang Lu are related. Taking into account our existing
business model and specific needs as well as the different backgrounds
and abilities of our Directors, the composition of the Board satisfies the
Board Diversity Policy, despite the lack of gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the diversity of the
Board. The Nomination Committee monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy from time
to time to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
also included in our annual corporate governance report a summary of
the Board Diversity Policy together with measurable objectives set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the progress made towards
achieving those objectives, as well as the Board’s composition from a
diversity perspective.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board of Directors and concluded that the Company
had met the diversification requirements with regard to gender, skills, age,
professional experience, knowledge, cultural and education background,
ethnicity and length of service. When making the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors in the future, the Nomination Committee will
nominate new Directors pursuant to the requirements of the Board
Diversity Policy to achieve the objective of diversity in Board members.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
our Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times. In
order to ensure the internal control operate effectively, the Company has
adopted a series of internal control policies, procedures and programmes
designed to provide reasonable assurance for achieving objectives
including effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board reviews
the risk management and internal controls annually. Highlights of the
Company’s internal control system include the following:

(a) Code of conduct. Our code of conduct explicitly communicates to
each employee our values, acceptable criteria for decision-making
and our ground rules for behavior.

(b) Internal audit. Our internal audit team regularly monitors key
controls and procedures in order to assure our management and
the Board of Directors that the internal control system is functioning
as intended. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is
responsible for supervising our internal audit function.

(c) Compliance with Listing Rules. Our various policies aim to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules, including but not limited to
aspects related to corporate governance, connected transactions
and securities transactions by the Directors.

(d) Enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
non-compliance incidents. The Company also adopted a number of
enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
noncompliance incidents.

We have established a set of risk management policies and measures to
identify, evaluate and manage risks arising from our operations. Our risk
management process starts with identifying the major risks associated
with our corporate strategy, goals and objectives. Each of our operating
departments is responsible for identifying and analyzing risks associated
with its function, maintaining a comprehensive risk register, preparing risk
mitigation plans, measuring effectiveness of such risk mitigation plans
and reporting the status of risk management. Our audit personnel, the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and ultimately the Board of
Directors supervise the implementation of our risk management policy at
the corporate level by bringing together each operating department, such
as quality control, research and development and sales, to collaborate on
risk issues among different functions.
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The Board of Directors and the senior management are accountable for
the overall responsibility in respect of monitoring the implementation of
internal control and risk management procedures and other measures in
the Group. The Company’s risk management and internal control system
aims at managing but not eliminating the risk for not being able to achieve
the business objective. Moreover, only reasonable but not absolute
guarantee is made for materially untrue statement or loss. The Board of
Directors will conduct an examination on the Company’s risk management
and internal control system once per year. The Board of Directors has
confirmed that it has examined the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system as of December 31, 2020. The
Board believed that the Company’s risk management and internal control
system is effective and sufficient. The Company’s risk management and
internal control system can effectively guide against such risks existing in
the operation.

We have appointed and renewed the appointment of external professional
advisors (including the auditor, legal or other advisors) for provision of
professional suggestions in respect of how we observe all applicable
related laws and regulations.

THE DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has not encountered with any significant and uncertain
events and circumstances that might produce significant doubts on the
Company’s capability of its continuous operation of business. The Board
of Directors has confirmed that it is responsible for the preparation of the
Group’s Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

For the Reporting Period, the Company has appointed Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, an international accounting firm,
to provide the Company with auditing service in accordance with IFRS
and the amounts of remuneration in connection to annual audit service
are RMB4.6 million. The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as to
the Financial Statements are set out on pages 131 and 136 of this annual
report.

Non-audit services provided to the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2020 represented the fee for the assurance of the
environmental, social and governance report of the Company amounting
to approximately RMBO0.48 million and interim fee for review of the
unaudited interim financial statements amounting to approximately
RMB2.6 million.

Special assurance services provided to the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2020 of approximately RMB3.7 million represented the fee
for the major transaction in relation to the acquisition of Shunri Xinze.
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Corporate Governance Repor

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

SHAREHOLDERS HAVE THE RIGHT TO INITIATE AND
CONVENE THE GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the following right: Any
one or more shareholder of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one(21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group at a general
meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or the company secretary
in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS ARE ENTITLED TO THE INQUIRY
RIGHT

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board should by
sending written enquiries to the Company at its principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company will deal
with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communications with its
Shareholders is essential to enhancement of the relationship with
investors and enhancement of investors’ understanding of the Company’s
business and strategies. The Company highly values Shareholders’
opinions and suggestions, and actively organizes and conducts various
activities related to the relationship with investors in order to keep the
communications with Shareholders, and to timely satisfy the reasonable
demands of all Shareholders.
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To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains its website
at http://www.risun.com where latest information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

The 2020 annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company will be
held on May 24, 2021. The notice of the AGM will be sent to shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors may help
build more stable and consolidated shareholder base. As a result, since
the Listing, the Company has been and will be dedicated to maintaining
a higher degree of transparency, observing the Listing Rules and timely
providing investors with comprehensive and accurate information, and
sustainably performing the obligation of disclosing the information as a
listed company. The Company will strengthen its communications with
investors and let investors understand corporate strategies and business
operation by organizing road shows, participating in investors summit,
voluntary information disclosure and others.

The Company will continue to maintain open-up and effective investors
communication policies for purposes of timely providing investors with
the latest information on the Company’s business when the Company is in
compliance with the relevant regulatory provisions.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, there is no amendment to the Articles of
Association.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
provisions of “Comply or Explain” stated in the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide. Please refer to “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report for details.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report

UNDERTAKINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of China Risun Group Limited undertakes that the
Company strictly complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange.

The environmental, social, and governance ("“ESG”) working group
under the management of the Company is responsible for formulating
the Company’s ESG strategy and overseeing the implementation of ESG
measures, regulating the commitment and performance of key issues
concerning ESG, and examining and approving disclosure information as
contained in the Company’s environmental, social and governance report.
This report will be published after being deliberated by the ESG working
group and the board of directors in March 2021.

The Secretary Department of the board of directors of the Company,
as the general lead and coordination department, is responsible for the
coordination and implementation of daily ESG and regular reporting
to the board of directors and senior management, and is responsible
for reviewing environmental, social and governance risks. In 2020, the
Company reviewed the environmental, social and governance risks
through the meetings of the audit committee. The management team has
confirmed to the Company’s Board of Directors that within the Reporting
Period, the Group’s risks management and internal monitoring system
concerning environment, society and governance is effective.

In 2021, the Company’s board of directors will further improve the ESG
governance system, and promote the continuous improvement of the
Company’s ESG governance level.
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RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

The Group actively fulfills the enterprise social responsibilities and
promotes the inclusion of social responsibilities in operations of the
Company by establishing the social responsibility management system
with the board of directors as the core, actively responding to and
meeting the demands of the stakeholders etc.

* Responsibility Management System

The Group established an environmental, social, and governance
("ESG”) working group. The board of directors and senior
management are responsible for the environmental, social,
and governance strategy and report, periodically review
the environmental, social, and governance information and
performance, reviewing proposals about ESG such as safety,
environment, employees, and investment, and direct, decide,
and promote ESG work uniformly; the secretary department of the
board of directors, as the leading and coordinating department,
is responsible for daily ESG coordination and implementation,
and periodically reports to the board of directors and senior
management; departments of the headquarter and the subsidiaries
(branches) are responsible for implementation of the ESG work
according to their own businesses and functions, report the ESG
performance and disclose and report the ESG information of each
year when necessary.

e Stakeholders Communication

The Company kept the communication with stakeholders (including
shareholders, governments and regulatory authorities, customers,
partners, employees, community, etc.) during the year, and listened
to the demands and appeals of the stakeholders and made
responses to the opinions of the stakeholders in a timely manner
through diversified channels, including the forum with stakeholders.
The Company collated and prepared stakeholders communication
form from the perspective of sustainable development, and laid a
foundation for identification of material topics of the Company.
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Stakeholders Communication channels

FEEREE BERE

Investors/Shareholders e Periodic report and information disclosure e Continue to return value

REE/RR EHRERESRE FEAIEBEEDR
General meeting Corporate governance and risk management
RERE rEERERBER
Investor relations activities Right to know and right to make decision
REEBRED TR AERN2 AR E

Governments and regulators

BRREERE

Customers

®P

Supply chain
s

Partners

AfEBH

Daily communication
Syt
Information bulletin
BELE

Government and enterprise cooperation

BaE
Government review

BHEE

Daily service and communication
BERBER

Customer visiting mechanism
KR ED#

Web portal

PPk

Daily communication
BRER
Symposium
BHAE

Open tendering
NHER

Carry out project cooperation
FRIER &1F

Daily business communication
AEEBLR

Attend association meetings
ampees

On-line service platform

B ERBTA

Pay taxes according to the laws
LR

Intellectual property protection
AHERERE

Safety Production

TREE

Energy saving and consumption reduction
EnaERE#E

Pollutant treatment

ARAE

Information disclosure

ERBE

Stable product quality
EREERTE
Service and feedback response guarantee

R SR REERE

Good relations of cooperation

RIFNAEERRFR

Expedite communication channels

HRnERRE

Conscientiously implement cooperation agreement
RENTAERZ

Mutual development
HREKE

Project cooperation
BRAE
Resource sharing

BRAE
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Stakeholders Communication channels
FEEREE BERE
Experts e Industry forum
EX o 1IXmE
e Project review meeting
o HEAFEEE
Employees e Periodic meetings
8T o EHEzE
e Employee training
o BT
*  Labor union activities
o IEEE
e Cultural activities
o ULED
Communities ¢ Volunteer services
it o TRERY
e Public charity activities
o RHEZEDH
[ ]

Identification Process of Material Topics

With respect to topics concerning the environment, social, and
governance, the Company, in accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the
securities listing rules of Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and based on the stakeholder communication and practices of the
Company, evaluated and screened important environmental, social,
and governance matters concerning business of the Company from
the perspective of importance of the topics to the stakeholders and
to the environment and society to form a matrix of material topics, as
the focus of ESG of the Company and the basis of disclosure.

Definition and Selection of Topics

BERCHEE

Combined with domestic and foreign industrial
policies and standards and benchmarking reports of

combined to identify 32 topics for stakeholder
research through expert analysis and judgment.
FRENIMIZBREE  HERTERSE 48
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AR AR R T A0 o

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited
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Questionnaire Survey

&R

Conduct research on stakeholders
123 valid questionnaires were
received.
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Promote the construction of green plants
EBNAR B TR

Adopt low carbon development technology
PR IE IR B R R

Product upgrade

ERTHR

Essential safety

rERZE

Safeguard legal rights and interests of employees
REBIAZER

Promote occupational development and
improvement of skills

DB RRERRRS

Work-life balance

T{EEEETE

Occupational health

Community public service
HEBAR

Charity and educational aid
wEHZS

Precise poverty alleviation
TEEKE

Environmental quality improvement
RREEENE
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Questionnaire Analysis and
Comprehensive Assessment

BESHRGEFM

According to the responses to the questionnaires,
the priority of major issues of each group of
stakeholders was ranked, and the matrix of
important issues was obtained by integrating the
opinions of experts and relevant personnel.
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e Results of Identification of Major Topics s BEURBHNER
&®
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Low Importance to the Company High
& HADNRNEEM =)

Topics of High Concern Topics of Medium Concern Topics of Low Concern
EREERE R R {EMEERE
@zzzmmn @ =EeranRmuE @ armEnx

Investment in safety production Improving the efficiency of energy resources Care for and assistance to employees
(14 R TS EEER @ srxmeEn

Incidence rate of occupational disease Charitable donations Employee volunteer activities
(1 EEOES (s EEy LRSI

Good performance Environment and biodiversity protection
D =rmirn (1oL it

Safeguarding customer's rights and interests High-quality products
(> Bt O rEETRE

Compliant operation Safeguarding employees’ rights and interests
O smsms) @ =rnufii

Control over the pollutants emission Scientific and technologica | innovation of products
@ sz @ renzanE

Occupational health and safety training Disposal of substandard products
@ iz @rens

Measures for occupational health and safety Green procurement
@ rEarei @ srmHseEmpREy

Climate change mitigation Supplier HSE management system audit
O rsmm @ vmnms  wwEREE

Equal employment
©anz

Corporate governance
@ z2cEBu00

Safety production accident

EFRBER

Customer service quality
DrusT

Regulating employees
(5 [

ESG governance
O ==x

Anti-corruption

Environmental and social risk management of supply chain
@ mesa

Precise poverty alleviation
@ nusimnt

Fighting the COVID-19
@ ovsm

Fair procurement

BTHEIRERRE

Employee training and development
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1.

GREEN DEVELOPMENT

1.1 Emissions Management

We are dedicated to reduce the impact of pollutant emissions
during the coke and chemical production on environment,
actively implement the environmental protection, and
stringently comply with the environmental protection laws and
regulations and standards, such as the PRC Environmental
Protection Law, the PRC Law on Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution, the PRC Law on Prevention and Control
of Air Pollution, the PRC Law on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Environmental
Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Measures for Pollutant Discharge Permitting Administration
(For Trial Implementation), the Law of the People’'s Republic
of China on Appraising of Environment Impacts, the Notice of
the State Council on Issuing the Three-year Plan on Defending
the Blue Sky, and the Emission Standard of Pollutants for
Coking Chemical Industry.

During the reporting period, the total NOx emissions of the
Group decreased by 12.27% on year-on-year basis, and
total particulate emissions decreased by 29.13% on year-on-
year basis, and the environmental performance continued
to improve. 6 production units of the Group passed the
ISO 14001 environment management system certification, with
the certification ratio up to 88%.

. Established an environmental responsibility
management system: The Group established a
sound six-level environmental protection management
and control system. The Group set up a special
environmental management committee; the base
implemented the integration of environmental
management; the Company established an
environmental management committee; the team'’s
environmental management was vertical to the end;
everyone was an environmental management executor,
and the posts at various levels had clear responsibilities
with clear goals. The Group ensured continuous
improvement of system operation through establishing
the assessment and incentives mechanism;
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu
IR - 2 RERmE(

Revise and improve the management system: The
Group formulated the Pollutant Discharge Management
System, Management Measures for the Environmental
Monitoring, Management System for the Environmental
Protection Facilities, Environmental Protection
Responsibility System, Management Measures for the
Pollution Discharge Declaration, Management Measures
for Solid Waste, Implementation Plan of “One Plant, One
Policy” for Emergency Response to Heavy Pollution
Weather, and other management and assessment
systems and measures;

Upgrade and transform process equipment: The
Group improved the production process by adopting
the dry coke quenching instead of wet coke quenching
to reduce pollutants emission from the source; the
Group upgraded and transformed desulfurization,
dust removal, and denitrification treatment facilities to
achieve ultra-low emissions; the Group implemented
the LDAR and oil and gas recovery and transformation
to reduce VOCs emissions;

Stabilize the operation of process equipment:
The Group implemented the operating procedures
for pollutant facilities and equipment in depth, and
conducted regular maintenance to reduce process
fluctuations and ensure stable discharge up to the
standards;

Monitor the pollutant emissions in real time: The
Group established an on-line monitoring system for
waste water and waste gas emissions, and implemented
monitoring of the operation status of pollutant control
measures;
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. Adjust the freight transport structure: The Group
vigorously promoted the transfer of highway to railways
to effectively reduce vehicle exhaust emissions;

° Construct projects: The Group did a good job in
covering earth and stone on the construction site of new
construction projects and reconstruction and expansion
projects to reduce the generation of construction dust;

. Carry out publicity and training on environmental
protection: The Group organized training activities
for environmental laws, regulations and standards
to improve the consciousness of law-abiding of the
management and employees; as well as actively
carried out special trainings on contingency plans
for environmental emergencies and the operation of
environmental protection equipment and facilities, so
as to improve our professional skills and emergency
handling ability.

The exhaust gas arising from coke and chemical production of the
Group mainly consists of particulate matters, sulfur dioxide, nitric oxide
and greenhouse gas; and the solid wastes mainly consist of tar residue,
renewable residues, acid tar oil, waste catalyst, waste activated carbon
and the coal dust and coke powder collected by the dust collection
facilities, sludge from the waste water treatment plant, and domestic
wastes. Waste water arising from production was recycled for production
after treatment. To reduce the impact of discharge on the environment,
we stringently controlled the discharges, ensuring effective treatment
of discharges and taking various measures to reduce greenhouse gas
emission and various wastes. In 2017, Hebei Risun Energy was awarded
the honorary title of China’s first batch of “Green Factory”; the joint venture
company CNC Risun Energy was awarded the honorary title of China’s
third batch of “Green Plants” in 2018, and was awarded the “National
Green Supply Chain Management Demonstration Enterprise” in 2019;
Cangzhou Risun Chemicals was rated as an enterprise in the “positive
list” of Hebei Province Ecological Environment Supervision for two
consecutive years in 2019 and 2020; in 2020, Hebei Risun Energy was a
hydrogen energy application demonstration industrial enterprise in Hebei
Province.
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Exhaust Gas Management
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The coal storage unit was completely enclosed for transformation, and the enclosed
dust removal facilities were installed for the intermediate links of powder materials and
products such as coal transport, coal pulverizing, coal loading, coke pushing, coke
quenching, coke screening, and ammoniumsulfur drying to reduce the release of
particulate matters such as coal dust and dust;

FEBTEMDHEANGE - FIRHEEE BN BE - #5 - BFE 6% R
REMEYR - EmEREIR LR  RERIEREE - MELZBR YR ;

Adopt advanced and stable desulfurization, denitration, and dust removal technologies
at the end of the production process to realize ultralow emission;

HEETERRERATRELE - BTRERR - B BRETE  BRBESW:

Adopt leak detection and repair technology for oil and gas pipelines, oil storage
facilities and equipment to reduce VOCs emissions;

S RE AR S AR © SRIBTET TR BRI AEE AT - B VOCSHE

The pond of the sewage treatment station was sealed and the exhaust gas was
released up to the standards after collection and treatment;

THIKERIBUL MR BT - EERRERSR SRR IEERIEW

The construction camp of the renovation and expansion project was equipped with
hard fence, and effective dust prevention and reduction measures such as covering,
sprinkling and dust suppression, washing the ground and vehicles were adopted;
speed limit of vehicles at the entrance and exit of the construction site, road hardening
or watering and watering were adopted to ensure that the ground was wet and reduce
the dust generated by vehicles.

WIERIER M L& MR ERE EE - WRREBEE/KIE - EAEMERSE TR
BE - PREEFEHE  MEISH I A D BEIRE - @R SOR/KEARBEEE - RP =
%ﬁ%ﬁ?‘f%ﬂ’]%%

Establish the carbon emission accounting system and clarify the key points and
directions of control;

BRI ER R - A EEER R

Promote the application of energy-saving and environmental protection equipment,
improve the process route, and optimize the energy consumption network to reduce
energy consumption density and greenhouse gas emissions;

HEEAEEIRIREE  BCETERE - BLAREE  RERREAEE @ BLARE
AR ;

Make comprehensive use of the residual heat and pressure to achieve energy
recovery;

RANIMSRE - RE - BREED

Use high efficiency catalyst to improve the conversion rate of carbonaceous products
and reduce wastes.

FERAERELE  RReRERBEE  REERVEL -
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R - g LER

Sewage Management
BEKERE

Solid Waste Management
[l R TR
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HeE (&)

Construct effluent segregation system to collect and treat all industrial wastewater and
domestic wastewater;
BIRERDMEAR  BHEERKEEEEKEIBEREE

Construct sewage treatment and recycling facilities such as the sewage treatment
station and advanced sewage treatment station, and recycle up-to-standard water
for the production system and the concentrated water from the desalination station
and advanced sewage treatment station for sprinkling, blending or discharge to the
sewage treatment station in the base;

RSN  J5ORERIBIESKEE KB AR - HAKOKEEIEEE AR EE
RE - BRERK  J5AORE BRIR IR KR ARSI AL B sk A B[R )5 K BE B 3
BRIB

Construct multi-directional comprehensive sewage recycling pipe network, and
optimize “water resource” dispatching by serial recycling and classified utilization to
realize comprehensive utilization.

ERZAMESKEEEAER  BREAOA HBFBEFNELAZOKER] &
WEFENA -

Control, store and treat solid wastes by categories and accomplish recycling,
reduction, and hazard-free treatment;
EREEMHRER  BEEEE - #EERE - REL - BEL

Materials or products with certain heat or necessary for production such as coal dust,
coke dust, tar residue, acid tar oil, and waste activated carbon are returned to the
production system for comprehensive utilization or for sales to prevent the impact of
hazardous wastes discharge on environment;

BEE - fREE S  BEH BEUREAB-TEAEHREEMTHNRHNER -
FERMAERGHEENAIERERINE - D IEEEREDMFIGERNERTNHY
&=

All production bases have built temporary storage for hazardous wastes, with functions
such as rainproof, windproof, sun-proof, and anti-leakage, posted hazardous waste
signs for such temporary storage, and regulated the storage management;
EHERRHERCREDSFE - AEH® - BHE - IR - H2RETE - WiRWE
RREYIRS - MBI FEIRE

Qualified units are entrusted to carry out safe transportation and disposal of hazardous
wastes to ensure safety and compliance;
ERENEZTAELEBIETLR L ERNEE BRE2EH

The household garbage among the general solid waste was delivered to the municipal
sanitation departments for unified disposal. For those that can be recycled and
utilized, such as the fly ash and slags, enter into a cooperation agreement with a third
party to carry out comprehensive utilization and turn the wastes into resources.
—MRERBEDFNEENRZERTIREHPVETR RS - HEK - EEFABREK
MABEMNRE=FFIaERZ  ETHFENA  BEREVERL -



Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)

2018-2020 Emission Performance

IRE - e NERRE(E

2018-2020F HE I aE 3k

Category of Emission Unit 2020 2019 2018
B iER By 20205 201945 20184
Total SO, emission Ton 252.81 239.05 377.50
SO, HEiE & U
SO, emission density kg/RMB 10 thousand 0.15 0.14 0.19
SO, BFREZ TR/ BTARYE
Total NO, emission Ton 1,090.06 1,242.54 2,491.20
NO, #rria g WA
NO, emission density kg/RMB 10 thousand 0.63 0.70 1.27
NO M T,/ BLARE
Total particle emission Ton 129.97 183.39 340.85
FERLBE R = WA
Particle emission density kg/RMB 10 thousand 0.08 0.10 0.17
FERBE R R TR/ BTARE
Total emission of greenhouse gas Ton of CO,e 2,800,743.44 2,576,379.76 3,065,070.27
BERBHRGE HiCO,e
Direct emissions of greenhouse gases Ton of COe 2,305,227.12 1,986,369.87 2,447,564.97
BERBEERE WACO,e
Indirect emissions of greenhouse gases Ton of CO,e 495,616.32  590,009.89  617,505.65
BERBEENE MECO,e
Greenhouse gas emission density Ton of CO,e/RMB 10 thousand 1.62 1.46 1.57
BERBEREE BACO,e BT AR
Total sewage discharge Ton 1,133,180.37 2,099,929.01 1,515,245.01
EIKEE L E WA
Total COD discharge Ton 54.11 58.82 44.52
COD#Em#EE Mg
Total ammonia nitrogen discharge Ton 3.04 3.86 2.62
R HEE Mg
Sewage discharge density Ton/RMB 10 thousand 0.65 1.19 0.78
V7 S W, & AR
Amount of hazardous waste Ton 51,347.01 51,423.88 40,504.69
BEEEMELS i
Production density of hazardous wastes Ton/RMB 10 thousand 0.03 0.03 0.02
BEEEVEEEE W&t AR
Treatment rate of hazardous waste % 100 100 100
BEBERYRIER %
Emission of harmless wastes Ton 133,378.32  137,432.87 144,248.41
mEBENELE I
Emission density of harmless wastes Ton/RMB 10 thousand 0.08 0.08 0.07
BEBRRMELRE W BT AR
Treatment rate of non-hazardous waste % 100 100 100
BEREEYRIER %

2020 F3}
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Note: 1. The emission data of SO,, NO, and particulate matters in the exhaust

gas are calculated according to the on-line monitoring system and self-
monitoring and statistics of the Group; 2. Greenhouse gas emissions
are calculated according to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol-Enterprise
Accounting and Reporting Standard issued by the World Resources
Institute (WRI) and World Business Council for Sustainable Development
(WBCSD), the Fifth Assessment Report 2013 of the Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), and the Guide for Calculating Method
and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Independent Coking
Enterprises of China (Tentative), among which the greenhouse gas
emission factor with respect to power generation is selected according
to the Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids of China
in the Emission Reduction Project in 2019 issued by the Ministry of
Ecological Environment; 3. The total amount of hazardous waste and
sewage discharge are calculated according to the statistical account of
the production system of the Group; 4. Total COD and ammonia nitrogen
emissions are calculated according to the third-party monitoring report;
5. The nonhazardous waste is mainly domestic garbage, and the total
amount of discharge is calculated based on 0.5kg/person/day; 6. The
density data is calculated according to the emission/production divided
by the operating revenue; 7. In 2020, the Group, in light of the actual
production and operation conditions and regulatory requirements,
further optimized the statistical caliber and range of emissions, and
simultaneously updated the data of previous years.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
RE g kERHEE

Case: Carry out Nine Environmental Protection “Ultra-low Emission” Control Projects to Facilitate the Battle for Blue Sky
SRy T\ RRBRBESRGIEIE B B HER R

In 2020, the Group’s Xingtai Production Base implemented nine new environmental protection transformation
projects, including the three-in-one desulfurization and ultra-low emission transformation project, the ultra-
low and in-depth treatment of the coke oven flue gas project, the coke oven riser waste heat instead of tube
furnace project, the SNCR denitrification project of the flue gas of the methanol integrated heating furnace,
and other projects. The completion and commissioning of the nine environmental protection “ultra-low
emission” upgrading and transformation projects is another significant breakthrough achieved by Xingtai
Production Base in environmental protection management on the basis of the original achievement of “ultra-
low emission”. After treatment by the new device, the emission indicators of various pollution factors in Xingtai
Production Base have fully achieved the “ultra-low emission” standard, among which sulfur dioxide emission
concentration was less than or equal to 10 mg/m?, and nitrogen oxide emission concentration was less than
or equal to 30 mg/m®. The pollutant emissions can be reduced by 218 tons per year on the existing basis. The
nine environmental protection transformation projects implemented by the Group’s Xingtai Production Base
have played an active role in demonstrating and leading the Battle for Blue Sky.

2020%F » AEEMELERRHERT WARRRBGERR » fE=6 —MBBEHNSUETRE - SEERE
BIEREREIEE - SRELLAERAERENEEE - PEBRES MBEZERSNCRIHEIRR FIHAE - AARRK
BRI AGRBERENEHRTIRA  ERNAERERERADEINBEHFMINER F - BERELES
ERRBISHEARRE - LBHEBRER  MBeEEERNZIHSARFHERE 2 BR B ERE
B HR Z@bIRBEBURE <102 R, /AR - RAtWHBRE<30Z R, LK - BFAEREER FER
AR 2181E - AEE A £ERRE AN RIRRIGEIE B i 7 & RXREBT EE T RGN RE5/E
fER -
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
B . B REARE (B)

Implement Seven Environmental Protection and In-depth Treatment Projects in Dingzhou Production Base
to Promote Cleaner Production

EMNEERREREtARRREAEAR HEBREE

During the reporting period, seven environmental protection and in-depth treatment projects implemented in
the Group’s Dingzhou Production Base, including the advanced sewage treatment, full closure of coal yards,
smoke plume elimination, and VOC treatment, were all completed and put into use, further improving the level
of cleaner production in the Dingzhou Production Base, and providing assistance to continuous development.
After the projects were put into use, the emission of particulate matter can be reduced by 355 tons, the
sewage can be recycled by 1.752 million tons, and the emission of VOCs can be reduced by 73.91 tons.
BESHAN - AEEEMNEEREERNTORERRE - B52HE - BREA  VOCRBSELARRAERE
HE2METRA  E—PReEEMNEERRSREEKT - BN HERR - HE KRB AT AR BRI
F355ME ~ EIUE57K175.28 M -+ VOCSHHE73.911 -
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu
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1.2 Resources Saving

The Group adheres to the clean development philosophy and
actively implements relevant policies and guidelines such as the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving Energy and
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Promotion of Cleaner
Production to develop recycling economy and realize efficient
resources utilization. The Group promotes the research and
development and application of new energy, new technology, and
new equipment in the course of the coke and chemical production,
and is dedicated to the construction of the “Ecological Chemical”
project to reduce energy consumption and cost. The Company
also actively promotes green office, ensuring efficient resources
utilization by implementing a series of green office actions.

During the reporting period, the Group vigorously implemented
waste heat and pressure transformation, resulting in its net
purchased electricity decreasing by 22.11% on year-on-year
basis, and implemented fuel vehicle replacement, resulting in the
gasoline consumption decreasing by 25.12% on year-on-year
basis, thus achieving significant achievements in energy saving and
consumption reduction; at the same time, the joint venture company
China Coal Risun Energy passed ISO5001 energy management
system certification.

o Green Production

- Establish the energy saving and consumption reduction
organization, set up an energy management center
for the supervision and administration of energy
consumption, and compile the Energy Management
Manual and the Procedure Document;

- Revise and improve the management systems
for energy saving appraisal. The Energy Saving
Management System, the Rated Energy Consumption
Management System, the Detailed Energy Management
Appraisal Rules, the Administrative Measures for
Electricity Saving by Off-peak Production incorporate
water, electricity, and vapor into the appraisal to
standardize the key points and direction of energy
management and improve the management level of
energy saving;

= Apply or use the MES system to monitor and analyze
the energy consumption such as vapor, water,
electricity and the material consumption data of each
production unit, so as to achieve unified scheduling and
optimization and reduce the loss of material and energy
consumption;

1.2
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- Promote the application of energy-saving and water-
saving new technologies and products, carry out
research on the utilization of residual heat and
pressure, and implement energy-saving and water-
saving technical upgrading projects, such as recovery
of coke residual heat for power generation, recovery of
residual heat of the ascending pipe, to realize cascade
utilization of energy;

- Strengthen water recycling, such as the system for
recycling production wastewater after advanced
treatment to reduce water consumption;

- Gradually increase the use ratio of clean energy
vehicles;

- Carry out supervision on energy conservation, and
prevent leakage, venting and energy waste;

- Carry out the industry benchmarking analysis, set up
the process energy consumption index and water
consumption quota standard, and conduct regular
statistical analysis to follow up the completion of the
index.

o Green office

- Formulate office lamp lighting instructions, requiring
lights off when leaving;

- Implement the green lighting project, and transform the
street lamps and lamps of the operating room and office
into energy-saving lamps;

- Implement the OA paperless office system to reduce
waste paper and encourage the employees to reuse
one-side paper;

- Promote the remote conference system;

- Promote the use of durable goods and minimize the
procurement of disposable goods;

- Regulate public vehicle management and promote one
car for multipurpose.
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Resource Consumption Performance of 2018-2020

ed
:b
=

ued)
RE 2 RERBRE(E)

2018-2020F € &R IERELE K

Category of Resources Unit 2020 2019 2018
EREE B 20204 20194 20184
Coal Ton 6,356,672.00 6,022,081.00 6,051,850.00
Hix U

Diesel Ton 1,384.40 1,287.21 1,320.22
g i

Gasoline Ton 33.79 4512 37.43
i L7

Net purchased electricity MWh 734,136.13  942,565.85 927,727.38
FINEE JKELEF

Net purchased heat GJ -246,502.01  -644,974.84 -369,807.27
FONEER HE

Comprehensive energy consumption

Ton of standard coal

6,532,639.10 6,205,951.23 6,251,675.98

REBERE MR
Comprehensive energy consumption Ton of standard coal/RMB ten
density thousand 3.77 SISl 3.20
FEREERERE WA BT AR
Total fresh water consumption Ten thousand tons 1,573.31 1,060.70 941.65
MEOKAKRE i
Fresh water consumption density Ton/RMB 10 thousand 9.09 6.00 4.82
EOKFAKEE e, BT AR
Notes: 1. The comprehensive energy consumption data in the table g 1 RPRERFEBRERRBUREEET

were calculated based on the General Rule for Calculation of
Comprehensive Energy Consumption; 2. The energy consumption
in the table was from the Group’s production statistics account; 3.
The density data in the table was calculated according to the energy
consumption divided by the operating revenue; 4. The negative value
of net purchased heat refers to the heat sold by the Group; 5. In 2020,
the Group, in light of the actual production and operation conditions
and regulatory requirements, further optimized the statistical caliber
and range of emissions, and simultaneously updated the data of

previous years.

BERANDZESE 2 kP ERERERE
rEBEESGAR S RPEEEHRE
ZEBERNEZERAZESE 4550
BRNAEREASEERMIINEENET
52020 F A BEAEEEEERREE
EX - E—SEBLETERBEMATOCR
HE - WERSEHTFEIRM T EH -
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1.3

Environment and Natural Resources Protection

The Group strictly complies with the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China and relevant local environmental
protection laws. In the process of project construction and
operation, we took full consideration of the effect on possible
important ecological protected areas around, such as the
environmental sensitive area, important water source, and wetland,
reduced the occupation of farmland, field, and forest land,
actively carried out public participation, as well as established
risk prevention and control program with respect to soil and
underground water and took effective measures to protect the
ecological environment of the area where the project was operated
and establish a responsible corporate image.

- Strictly comply with the system of environmental impact
assessment for new, renovation and expansion projects and
take relevant ecological protection measures;

- Take effective measures for the production, use, storage,
transportation, recycling, disposal, and discharge of
poisonous and hazardous substances to prevent their
leakage, loss, and scattering and soil pollution;

= Monitor surrounding soils and underground water periodically
and pay attention to the change of environmental quality to
prevent environmental risks in a timely manner;

= Set up an emergency management agency for environmental
emergencies, work out emergency plans for environmental
emergencies, and carry out drills for environmental
emergencies regularly to improve its emergency response
capacity;

- Carry out the work of direct water supply from the South-to-
North Water Diversion to reduce the utilization of underground
water of the project;

- Carry out the publicity activity on the environment day to
improve the environmental awareness.
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1.4 Response to climate change

Response to climate change has become a global consensus.
The Chinese Government has put forward the climate action goals
of “striving to peak carbon dioxide emissions before 2030 and
achieve carbon neutrality before 2060”. While making important
contributions to economic development, the Group has always
adhered to the standard requirements of high efficiency of resource
utilization and clean production process, constantly innovates and
breaks through environmental governance technologies, and is
committed to building a green and low-carbon enterprise.

The Group attaches great importance to greenhouse gas emissions
during production and operation, and actively responds to climate
change. We adhere to the priority policy of energy conservation
throughout every link of production and operation, strengthen
energy management, continuously upgrade high-efficiency and
energy-saving equipment, and gradually eliminate high-energy-
consuming equipment in batches; continue to optimize processes,
improve equipment operating flexibility, improve reaction operating
conditions, and reduce the energy consumption of the process;
meanwhile,we also continue to promote the construction of digital
factories, to achieve equipment asset management, energy
consumption management, environmental optimization, process
optimization and other efficient management, and to promote
the realization of “green, agglomeration, intelligence, and high-
end” development; in terms of optimizing industrial layout, we
vigorously develop hydrogen energy, make good use of industrial
by-product hydrogen, and become the first batch of enterprises
to be selected into the List of Key Projects of Hydrogen Energy
Industry in Hebei Province in 2020. In 2020, we signed the
Strategic Cooperation Framework Agreement with the People’s
Government of Dingzhou City with respect to the “hydrogen
production, storage and transportation and hydrogen refueling
station construction and operation projects”; phase-I hydrogen
purification and charging system of hydrogen energy project of the
Group has successfully completed the installation linkage test run,
and achieved comprehensive connection; the Group’s joint venture
company Hohhot Risun Zhongran signed the framework agreement
on strategic cooperation in the development of hydrogen energy
industry with the Qingshuihe County Government of Hohhot, Inner
Mongolia, to carry out all-round strategic cooperation in such
fields as the hydrogen production, storage and transportation,
and hydrogen refueling station construction and hydrogen energy
industry.
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In the future, we will actively respond to national policies on climate
change, give full play to the Group’s comprehensive advantages
in hydrogen energy manufacturing and development, and build an
industrial chain of environmental protection and green economy, to
assist in mitigating climate change, and achieve the carbon peak
goal earlier.
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2. HEALTH AND SAFETY
2.1 Safety Production

Safety is the lifeline of development of the Group and the
impassable red line. The Group, stringently complying with
laws and regulations in connection with safety production,
such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Production Safety, the Regulation on Work Safety Permits
of the People’s Republic of China, and the Regulation on
Production Safety of Hebei province, continued to reinforce
the foundation for management, improved the safety
management system and institutional system, promoted
the implementation of the primary responsibility for safety
production of the production and operation units, further
promoted the construction of the double prevention
mechanism of safety production risk control by ranking and
elimination and handling of hidden dangers to greatly improve
the level of risk prevention and control, carried out safety
production inspection, and dedicated to construct a long-
term mechanism for safety production to improve the safety
production management level.

During the reporting period, the Group invested RMB
56.2267 million in safety production, such as safety training,
maintenance of fire-fighting facilities and equipment, anti-
corrosion and insulation, safety precautions, and safety
bonus for employees. Except for Tangshan Risun Aromatics
(styrene project company), which was just put into production
at the end of 2020, all production subsidiaries were honored
as enterprise of above grade |l national work safety
standardization, and all production subsidiaries established
the dual prevention system of risk control by ranking and
elimination and handling of hidden dangers. The situation of
safety production continues to improve.
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Improve the safety responsibility system: Set up
the safety production committee and establish the
safety production responsibility system for all posts of
all subsidiaries, levels, departments, and employees
with the responsible person as the core, specifying the
responsible persons of all posts, scope of responsibility,
list of responsibilities; and organize and hold safety
meetings regularly to coordinate and solve the problems
in the safety production process of each subsidiary
company;

Establish the safety assessment and the reward
and punishment system: Formulate various
management systems such as the Provisions on
Accident Management, the System of Safety Production
Responsibility, the Management System of Major
Hazard Sources, and the Management System of Safety
Inspection and Elimination and Handling of Hidden
Dangers to further prevent safety risks;

Carry out safety target management: Formulate the
annual safety objectives and indicators, and divide the
annual goals and indicators to the subsidiaries in the
form of responsibility letters. Each subsidiary divided
and implemented the general objective of production
safety layer by layer, and conducted regular assessment
on the completion of safety objectives to standardize
the operations;

Standardize the operations: Establish comprehensive
and detailed operating procedures to standardize
the operation of facilities and equipment, and strictly
execute the work permit system for special operations as
hot work and work in confined space;

Carry out risk investigation and hidden danger
control: Compile the risk identification manual and
risk control manual, organize and carry out risk
identification work regularly to create the risk control
list and major risk list, and update the safety warning
signs dynamically; as well as carry out comprehensive
inspection of hidden safety hazards, special inspection
of hidden safety hazards, and inspection of hidden
safety hazards on holidays in a timely manner according
to the division of duties and responsibilities, timely, and
rectify the problems found in a timely manner to form a
closed-loop management;
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Implement dynamic safety monitoring: Make full
use of the control and command center and the MES
system of the production base to monitor the operation
of process pipelines and facilities in real time, and
monitor the inflammables, explosives, toxic and harmful,
high-temperature and high-pressure materials and give
early warnings;

Establish the safety emergency response
mechanism: Establish a complete emergency
management system equipped with full-time and part-
time emergency rescue teams, prepare the Emergency
Plan for Production Safety Accident, the Special
Emergency Plan for Hazardous Chemicals Accident,
the Special Emergency Plan for Special Equipment
Accident, the Special Emergency Plan for Major Hazard
Sources, and the Program for Handling Production
Accident On-site, and regularly organized and carried
out emergency drills to improve the emergency
handling ability.

Carry out emergency drill
il R B = B AR

China Risun Group Limited
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2.2 Occupational Health Management

The Group, adhering to the guideline of “focusing on prevention
and combining prevention with control” and stringently complying
with relevant laws and regulations such as the Production Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, constantly strengthened the occupational health and
safety management system, strengthened the occupational
diseases prevention and control measures, and periodically
organized physical examination for employees to ensure the
occupational health of the employees.

During the reporting period, the Group had no occupational
disease.

. Improve the occupational health management system:
Establish a number of management systems, such as the
Occupational Health Management System, the System of
Warning and Informing of the Occupational Hazard, the
Operating Procedures for Occupational Health of the Posts,
the Provisions for Management of Labor Protection Articles on
the Construction Site, the Maintenance and Service System of
Occupational Disease Prevention Facilities, the Management
System of Occupational Disease Protective Equipment, and
the Management System of Occupational Hazard Monitoring
and Assessment;

. Identify the influencing factors of occupational hazards
in the workplace: Identify possible occupational hazard
factors in during the production in accordance with relevant
management norms and standards, and conduct regular
tests; strictly implement the occupational hazard prevention
and control plan and implementation plan in each operation
area;

o Set up occupational hazard warning signs: Set up a notice
board in a conspicuous position of the workplace where
occupational disease hazards occur, and announce the rules
for and regulations on occupational disease prevention and
control, operating procedures, emergency rescue measures
for occupational disease hazard accidents and the detection
results of occupational disease hazard factors in the
workplace;
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o Provide occupational health protective equipment:
Provide personal protective equipment, such as protective
clothing, protective goggles, dust mask, protective gloves,
insulating shoes, gas mask, ear plugs, etc., to the workers in
accordance with the labor protective equipment distribution
standards, and urge them to use correctly;

. Carry out occupational health training: Organize pre-
job and in-job training on knowledge about occupational
health for workers to ensure that they have the necessary
knowledge about occupational health, so as to correctly use
the occupational disease prevention facilities and personal
protective equipment. Those who do not pass the examination
of the training shall not be employed;

. Organize occupational health examination and establish
the occupational health monitoring records: Organize the
occupational health examination before, during and after the
work, and inform the employees of the examination results in
writing.

2.3 Safety Training and Propaganda

The Group attaches great importance to the safety training and
propaganda. We have formulated the Management System of
Safety Education and Training, strictly implemented the safety
education for safety management personnel, special operators,
staff and new recruits, learning accident cases of the industry and
safety knowledge that should be known and mastered through a
variety of channels, such as the pre-shift meeting and WeChat, to
enhance the safety awareness of the crew,improve the safety skills,
and lay a solid foundation for better safety production.

o Strictly implement the three-level safety education:
Strictly abide by the national laws for safety production
management, strictly implement the three-level safety
education, carry out trainings on safety regulations, safety
operation procedures,and safety warning cases, and carry
out examination. Those who fail the examination shall not be
employed;

. Carry out safety training for special operators: Strictly
comply with the provisions of relevant departments of
the national and local governments for special operators
and operators of special equipment, regularly organize
professional safety education and operation skills training.
Only those obtain the qualification certificate of special
operations can be employed to eliminate work without
certificate;
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Carry out safety training for contractors on entry to o
the factory: Carry out safety training and education for

contractors on entry to the factory. The contractors cannot

operate before passing the examination;

Carry out the safety-themed activities: Carry out the speech °
contest, writing competition, knowledge contest and skill

matches to elect the “safety guard”, and other forms of safety

activities through such carriers as safety production month

and one hundred-day without accidents activities, to create

the culture atmosphere of everyone talking about safety.
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Organize safety open day activities 100-day safety training

ZERHEREHEE
Safe production month preaching activities
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3.

EMPLOYEE COHESION

3.1 Building a Diversified Team

The Group strictly complies with the national laws and
regulations such as the PRC Labor Law, the PRC Labor
Contract Law, and the PRC Law on the Protection of Minors,
always adheres to the principle of equal employment, and
rejects child labor and forced labor in any form. In order
to maintain the employees’ right to know, participate and
supervise, we sign formal labor contracts with employees,
to fully safeguard employees’ rights and interests in terms
of employee recruitment, dismissal, promotion, working
hours, vacation, salary and benefits, diversity, prevention of
discrimination, equal opportunities, etc., and strive to promote
the construction of equal and diversified employee team.

During the reporting period, the Group did not break the rules
for using child labor and forced labor, nor was involved in any
litigation case due to employment matter.

Equal Employment, Diversification and Recruitment
Policy

We paid high attention to the diversified composition of
employees, assessed the qualifications of professional
employees from the perspectives of compliance, working
attitude, performance and competence, guaranteed all
employees enjoyed equal employment opportunity, and
eradicate the any discrimination based on gender and
age. We adopted multichannel recruitment system,and the
recruitment channels included the campus recruitment, social
recruitment and internal recommendation. In the recruitment
process, we always adhered to the principle of openness
and fairness, treated all applicants equally, selected and
recruited outstanding talents in various fields, eradicated the
discrimination against factors such as gender, language,
region, belief, physical disability, etc., and advocated
diversity of employees.
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With respect to employment in 2020, the performance is as 20204 E - BIRIBEAEMER
below: M -
Name of Indicator 2020
EEE8 2020 E
Number of employees (Person) 4407
BT (A)
Total number of outsourcing labors (Person) 0
BISIKIE B T4 (N)
Percentage of Male Employees (%) 84.62
SMHE T A
Percentage of Female Employees (%) 15.38
ZMEB T E P
Percentage of employees with senior titles (%) 1.07
=R E T
Percentage of employees with medium titles (%) 8.33
HARERAE B Tl
Percentage of employees with junior titles (%) 18.83
BB LA
Percentage of contract labor (%) 100
ARIBIH
Percentage of outsourcing labor (%) 0
BIEIKE B T LA
Percentage of employees under 30 years old (%) 36.19
308K A T E LAl
Percentage of employees from 31 to 40 years old (%) 43.93
31-405% B T LLf)
Percentage of employees from 41 to 50 years old (%) 14.77
41-505% 8 T ELf)
Percentage of employees above 50 years old (%) 5.06
5055 A B T LEf
Percentage of employees from Hebei Province (%) 88.40
A dbE AHb[E & T Ll
Percentage of employees from regions outside Hebei (%) 11.60
Province
LA LASME 8 T )
Percentage of minority employees (%) 2.36
LERIEE AL LG
Annual turnover rate of regular employees (%) 9.08
ERBIFERKALE
Turnover Percentage of Male Employees (%) 8.17
HA S8 TRkt al
Turnover Percentage of Female Employees (%) 0.90
Hh 8 Timk bl
Among them, the turnover percentage of employees in Hebei (%) 7.69
Province
HemibE W E TiRA LA
Among them, the turnover percentage of employees outside (%) 1.39

Hebei Province

HAaibasNE Tk LAl

Turnover percentage of employees under 30 years old (%) 6.46
(inclusive)

30B AT B Tk Ll

Turnover percentage of employees from 31 to 40 years old (%) 2.11
31-405% 8 Tt kLl

Turnover percentage of employees from 41 to 50 years old (%) 0.33
41-505% 8 Tim Skt il

Turnover percentage of employees above 51 years old (%) 0.18
515 _E B T LI
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Working Hour, Holiday, Salary and Benefits

We stringently execute national provisions on working hour
and holiday, formulated the Leave Management System to
fully safeguard the right to rest and vocation of the employees,
provide day off and statutory holidays in accordance with the
national labor laws, advocate employees to have all holidays
as far as possible, and provide front-line employees with paid
leave other than statutory holidays such as maternity leave,
sick leave, personal leave and annual leave.

We have formulated the Staff Compensation Management
Measures, which covers a comprehensive remuneration
system covering basic salary, performance salary, seniority
salary, allowances, subsidies, etc. and determined salaries
of the employees based on such factors as level, order,
business line, and region of the employees. To attract,
retain and motivate talents, we will organize a designated
occupational physical examination once a year to ensure
the basic health of employees; we also provide employees
with benefits of the two festivals (Spring Festival and Mid-
Autumn Festival), meal subsidies, transportation subsidies,
high temperature subsidies, heating subsidies, consolation
payments and other benefits; in addition, we also organize
many recreational and sports activities for the employees,
including welcome party, travel, employee birthday party,
etc., in order to enable the employees to integrate into the big
family of Risun and enhance employees’ sense of belonging
and participation.

Prohibiting Child Labor and Forced Labor

The Group opposes any form of forced labor, and
strictly avoid child labor, forced labor or any other illegal
employments. We strictly follow the international, the national
and local criterions, regulations and rules, ensure reasonable
working hours for employees, and set up the system of
overtime work and compensatory time off to eliminate forced
labor.

The Group stringently complies with the Provisions on
Prohibition of Child Labor issued by the State Council and
formulates the Management Provisions for Anti-Forced
Labor to review identifies of the applicants and stringently
prevent child labor, forced labor and other illegal labor. The
Group adheres to the eight-hour day working system or the
legal working hours of 40 hours per week and sets up the
overtime and holiday system to prevent forced or compulsory
labor, ensure reasonable working hour of the employees,
and provide fair, free, and reasonable labor rights to the
employees.
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3.2 Promoting Development of Employees

The Group has always adhered to the philosophy of “creating
first-class environment, training first-class talents, and
achieving first-class cause”, actively improved the employee
growth and development system, enriched the training
contents and innovated the training methods by established
a multi-level comprehensive training management system
for the purpose of providing training and learning throughout
the whole career path of the employees, so as to meet the
needs of employees’ development, reserving knowledge and
experience for the growth and development of the employees
and improving comprehensive quality of the employees to
meet the changing job requirements and adapt to long-
term development of the Group. Meanwhile, we continue
to improve the employee development and promotion
mechanism to provide a smooth path for the development
of talents and build an equal and just talent development
platform, so as to motivate employees to achieve self-value,
post value and social value and build a high-quality talent
team.

Employee Promotion

The Group has formulated Management Measures for Cadres
and Management Measures for Class of Position and other
management systems, clearly standardizing the qualification
standards and management requirements for such aspects
as the cadre selection and management of class of position,
and the work procedures for selection, evaluation, job
rotation, training and elimination. We implemented such three
occupational sequences as the management sequence,
professional sequence and skill sequence. The employees
can choose a development path suitable for their post and
expand their career plan according to the post grading
system and based on their own abilities and wills.

In 2020, the Group promoted 136 persons of the management
sequence and 28 persons of the professional skill sequence
in total.
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Employee Training

The Group is committed to building a learning-based
organization with taking the cultivation of high-quality talent
team as its long-term development strategy and taking the
promotion of the overall improvement of the quality of its
employees as its starting point.

° Promote the standardization of training work: The
Group formulated the Administrative Measures for
Internal Trainers to promote the construction of the
talent training system;

° Establish an training platform: The Group constructed
Risun University, and developed a series of training
courses for employees of different sequences and
grades according to their career development plans, so
as to improve their business theory and work skills;

° Establish an internal faculty database: We have
established an internal training faculty database of the
Company to further promote the sharing and inheritance
of internal management experience, knowledge and
information, and to promote the sharing of excellent
faculty resources;

° Develop various training courses: Carry out multi-
faceted and multi-level training activities, including
safety and environmental protection training, production
technology training, new cadre training, safety
management personnel qualification training, etc., to
inject vitality and motivation into the Company’s cadre
staff;

n o«

° Diversify training methods: Use “on-line”, “off-line”,
“internal”, and “external” trainings, carry out trainings
through actively applying on-line training, remote
education and audio-visual education and other means,
and implement the “school-enterprise” cooperation
training mode with Renmin University of China and other
colleges and universities; meanwhile, flexibly choose
the means such as by watching the multimedia, in-situ
observation, practical operation, experience exchange,
appraisal and contest, and examination based on the
trainees and training contents, so as to improve the
training effect.
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Employees Training System

New Employees
MABET

Front-line Employees
HEEBT

Management
EIRE

ed
:b
&

ued)
IRIE e hEAmE(E)

BETHIER

Provide training on safety, the information of the Group, corporate culture,
office system, financial system and other major management systems for
new employees recruited from society, so that new employees can quickly
be competent for their posts, improve work efficiency, and lay a solid
foundation for future work and management.

HUEHRENETIRRENZ2EI - NEEBFR - tEXE - BRRES -
MBHIEEFETRHENIFI - L8 TRARRBERL - 'R IIER

SEE T - EIRIT T RAFER

For recruiting new employees on campus, the Group organized a series
of trainings such as college student training camp induction training,
production system work experience, mentor assistance and guidance,
and college student internship team leader training camps to help new
employees adapt to the working environment as soon as possible.
HRERIEHE T - REBSEHER T RBEIREABITIN - EERSLT
1ERAR - BMVER RBETEWARIIKREZZ75E - EBFE THRR
HEIFIRE -

Actively carry out job skills training, safety and environmental protection
training, production process training, team leader training, technical
competitions, etc., to improve the job professional ability of grassroots
employees, and strengthen the learning atmosphere of grassroots
employees.

ERAREMC RS - Z2REEI - AETEEI - ARSI - 51l
RS - ReEEEINMAUERE)  RMEEEEINSZERE -

For new middle-level cadres from the business sectors of the Group’s
companies, trainings were held in Xingtai and Dingzhou Production Bases,
in order to help new cadres understand their jobs in an all-round way,
master work essentials, working procedures and working methods, and
enter the job role as soon as possible;

HEREAREZRRAEBREFTEBRTESRE - SREBEMNEMNEREAR
FIEI - BB ABRSSE AU TRE SN IR - ERIIERE - IF
BEMIERE  KREARLAS

Organize middle-level reserve cadres and general managers of the Group
to participate in the training on “Road to Enterprise Digital Transformation”.
Carry out school-enterprise cooperation. The Group organized general
managers to participate in training class, to help managers establish a
learning awareness of keeping pace with the times.
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Employee Training Performance of 2020

Name of Indicator
EEER

Number of employees trained

HINEIH

Percentage of employees trained
SINETEDL

Percentage of male employees trained
SHEETEAILL

Percentage of female employees trained

Z B TR

Total training hours of employees

B ITElaR &

Average training time per employee

B T3R8

Total training hours of senior employees and above
=R FETEIAERE

Average training hours of senior employees and above
BRI LB TRIITHRE

Total training hours of middle-level employees
FHRBEIXIIERR

Average training time per middle-level employee
PRE TEIIFHRE

Total training hours of junior employees
MFEIZ B

Average training time per junior employee
B TE T HR 2

Unit
By

(Person)
(AR)
(%)

(%)
(%)

(Hour)
(/)B%)
(hour/person)
(GNE YN
(Hour)
(/)\B%)
(hour/person)
(B A)
(Hour)
(/)\B%)
(hour/person)
(B A)
(Hour)
(/)B5)
(hour/person)

(/1EE/A)

Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
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2020 EE TIFIEN

2020
20204

4,407
100
100
100
92,137
21
1,687
15
3,914
20

86,565

21

Newly appointed middle-level cadre training

MERTERSEIIAR
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Training for newly recruited college students in
Xingtai Production Base
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3.3 Enhancing Care for Employees 3.3 ILHEETHE

The Group attaches great importance to and cares for
the work and life of the employees and pays attention to
humanistic care, actively solving practical difficulties of
the employees, vigorously carrying out warmth projects,
and caring about the life of the employees. For example,
the Group made donation to sick employees in hospital,
expressed regards to employees with difficulties in life,
helped employees in difficulties with the education of their
children, expressing the Group’s sincere care for employees,
helping employees to overcome difficulties and face their life
bravely with positive and optimistic attitude, and improving
the sense of happiness and belonging of the employees. We
also organized various recreational and sport activities, and
carried out recreational and sport activities of various forms
such as physical fithess, outdoor quality development, holiday
parties, providing opportunities to employees to show their
talents and relieve their stress in happiness, so that they can
continue their work and life better and more vigorously.

Assistance to Employees

The Group continues to provide assistance to employees,
and visit employees of poor families and front-line workers
on duty in important holidays, help the children of poor
employees to go to school, donate to help seriously ill family
members of the employees, do its best to relieve the life
pressure of employees; provide considerate services for
female employees, including giving gifts on the Women'’s
Day, paid holidays, special holidays for lactation period,
etc., pay attention to the physical and mental health of
female employees; listen to and solve the difficulties and
problems in work and life of the staff through the meeting
of staff democratic life meeting, forum, staff meeting and
management review meeting, and truly care about the life of
the staff.

Cangzhou Risun Chemicals carried out
“One-day Donation” activity
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Xingtai Risun Chemicals visited employees in
difficulty in the Spring Festival
TEa Bt TEEh R m T
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Recreational and Sports Activities

The Group always adhered to the people-oriented
management philosophy, paid attention to the physical
and mental health development and the improvement of
comprehensive quality of employees, and actively organized
employees to carry out recreational and sports activities of
various forms. In important holidays, we organized employees
to carry out party activities such as the Spring Festival Party
and New Year’'s Day Cultural Show, to enhance employees’
sense of belonging and enterprise centripetal force while
expressing holiday regards to employees; we paid attention
to the physical health of employees, and regularly organized
mountaineering, basketball, badminton, table tennis, and
basketball fellowship games and other sports activities. At
the same time, the Group actively enriched the employees’
amateur life, and organized condolence activity of bringing
cool solace in the summer to highlight the corporate culture of
Risun Group and reflect the humanistic care.

Production Base

EMEERRFARMERETIE - RELSTE IR EEES

Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
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Carry out “Healthy Work, Happy Life” Series of Recreational and Sports Activities in Dingzhou

In 2020, a series of recreational and sports activities with the theme of “Healthy Work, Happy Life”
have been carried out in Dingzhou Production Base of the Group, such as three-person basketball,
badminton, table tennis, six-person rope skipping, blind people touching objects, crossing the
river by feeling stones and other fun activities, enriching the leisure cultural life of employees and

enhancing the cohesion of the team.
2020%F @ AEETEMEERRFARTMERIE REEFTIREBRIIEES - M= AZR - PE
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HIGH-QUALITY PRODUCTS

The Group stringently complies with the laws and regulations such
as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality
and has established the awareness of “quality first” and carried
out the whole-process quality management to improve the quality
of products and services. We adhere to the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, and label the coal chemical products and
other products according to the standard as required to ensure
that the information is true and accurate; we adhere to the “Market-
Oriented, Customer-Centric” business philosophy, strengthen
brand management, take the initiative to find out the problems of
customers in the purchase and use of coke and chemical product,
timely feedback solutions to customers, standardize customer
data management, and pay attention to the protection of customer
privacy; we promote the technological innovation of enterprise
products and formulate the patent protection mechanism to promote
the continuous improvement of product performance and quality.
We provide all-around assurance for the quality of each product
delivered to establish a good brand image and market reputation,
and increase the competitiveness of the Group in the country.

During the reporting period, we did not receive any significant
complaints from customers concerning products and services.

Product Quality Management

The Group continues to improve the quality management system,
strengthens product research and development and design, strictly
controls raw material procurement, implement standard operations,
realizes whole-process quality control, and keeps improving the
quality management work. The Group stringently executes and
complies with relevant industrial standards for coke and chemical
products, such as the Coke for Metallurgy (GB/T1996-2017), the
Coal Tar (YB/T5075-2010), the Crude Benzene (YB/T5022-2016),
the Industrial Methanol (GB338-2011), the Ammonium Sulfate (GB/
T535-1995) and the Liquid Anhydrous Ammonia (GB/T536-2017).

During the reporting period, the customer satisfaction of coke and
chemical products of the Group reached 100%, and all production
enterprises have obtained the ISO9001 quality management system
certification.
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Establish the quality management system: Set up the
quality management system covering all production bases,
define the functions and responsibilities of all production
bases, functional departments, project managers and related
posts, standardize and improve product quality control to
comprehensively improve the product and work quality and
meet customer needs;

Improve the quality control and appraisal system:
Formulate and improve such systems or administrative
measures as the Quality Management System, the Regulations
on Product Quality Management and Control, the Quality
Control Points and Appraisal Methods, the Non-conforming
Products Control Procedure, and the Administrative Measures
for Quality Accidents;

Optimize product technical quality indicators: Strictly
control the indicators of raw and auxiliary materials entering
the factory, optimize production process operations, to ensure
stable product quality;

Carry out quality follow-up inspection: Set up the quality
management file for coal suppliers to monitor the coal
variety supplied by the coal suppliers, rank the suppliers
every month and eliminate disqualified suppliers;meanwhile,
conduct sampling inspection, and track the inspection of the
production process, and warn the possible quality problems
in a timely manner, to reduce the production risk of the
enterprise;

Establish the quality problem handling mechanism:
Formulate procedure documents such as the Control
Procedures for Incident Investigation, Nonconformity and
Nonconforming Product; in case of unqualified products,
make traceability analysis in a timely manner and urge
the formulation of corrective measures and follow up the
implementation, so as to achieve closed-loop management;

Conduct customer satisfaction evaluation: Regularly
conduct customer satisfaction surveys for major products.
The survey content includes product quality satisfaction,
product delivery timeliness rate, product prices, service
timeliness, effectiveness, etc.
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After-sale Service and Protection of Consumers’
Rights and Interests

The Group stringently complies with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protecting
Consumers’ Rights and Interests and formulates the Rules for
Customer Service and Internal Requirements to ensure high-quality
product and after-sale service. We appoint professional customer
service team to visit the production bases of major customers and
collect feedback about the products and services, get to know the
operation and demands of the customers timely, so as to provide
better services and meet specific demands of the customers.

Intellectual Property and Brand Protection

The Group attaches great importance to intellectual property and
patent protection. Our trademarks, patents, trade secretes and
other intellectual properties are important properties of the Group.
During the reporting period, the Group was not subjected to any
dispute, claim and action concerning intellectual property and
brand protection.

- Intellectual property protection

The Group fully complies with the policies and laws in
connection with patents and copyrights, and formulates
such systems as the Patent Management System, the Patent
Writing Application System, and the System of Promoting
Intellectual Property Standard Compliance to establish an
autonomous and innovative intellectual property system,
specify the patent management responsibilities, the
application and handling procedures, and the requirements
for licensed use and protection, and standardize the patent
writing application, management and utilization, pay patent
annuities on time, protect patent assets, and accelerate the
creation of invention; with respect to technical confidentiality,
we formulate the Confidentiality Management System to keep
the data and information about research and development,
technical import, and technical innovation confidential,
requiring maintaining the confidentiality of secrets arising from
the production, research and development, design, scientific
exchange, and technological introduction and keep such
secrets in accordance with the File Administrative Measures.
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- Brand protection

The Group formulates the Visual Image Recognition System
Handbook and the Brand VI Manual and etc. for uniform
planning and management of advertisements and trademarks
in accordance with relevant national regulations such as the
Company Law, the Trademark Law, and the Advertising Law
of the People’s Republic of China, so as to keep enhancing
the brand value and give full play to the marketing functions
to make brand management and marketing more scientific
and standard and protect the enterprise, product and service
reputations.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group carefully fulfills the relevant laws and regulations on
prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Company Law of the PRC, and the Interim Provisions for Prohibiting
Commercial Bribery, and carries out multi-level anti-corruption and
pro-cleanness education and obtains excellent achievements in
anti-corruption by improving the supervision system, deepening
the system construction, and upgrading risk prevention and control
measures.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of nor
received notices of cases involving violation of laws and regulations
due to commercial bribery, blackmail, fraud or money laundering.

° Comply with the anti-corruption system: Strictly follow the
Management Regulations on Gift Exchange, the Registration
System for Major Events of Cadres, the Regulations on
Handling Violations of Regulations and Disciplines by
Employees, the Administrative Measures for Self-inspection
and Correction, and the All Staff Whistle-blowing and
Suggestion System, and other relevant systems to standardize
daily performance of the employees and provide strong
guarantee for anti-corruption;
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Establish the whistle-blowing and supervision
mechanism: Establish a smooth whistle-blowing and
supervision mechanism, and provide such whistle-blowing
channels as mail, telephone, WeChat official account “Service
Supervision Platform of Risun Group Supervision and Audit
Department”, whistle-blowing box of key posts and personnel
interviews. We will protect the informer and verify the whistle-
blowing information immediately upon receipt of the whistle
blowing, carry out investigations or special audit as the case
may be, and handle in accordance with relevant provisions
on the internal audit system if facts corruption are identified;

Sign on the honesty responsibility agreement: Require
cadres of middle-level and above and employees on key
positions to sign the honesty responsibility agreement,
and enter into the sunshine cooperation agreement with
suppliers and customers, requiring them to comply with the
basic principles of honesty and trustworthiness, equality and
justice, compliance with regulations, making no personal
gain, interest-based disqualification, and information privacy,
and prohibiting any form of bribery, blackmailing, fraud, and
money laundering in internal and external activities;

Carry out the anti-corruption education activities:
Arrange anti-corruption warning education and training
contents in training sessions for new employees, weekly shift
meetings, monthly regular meetings and other staff meetings.
Meanwhile, remind employees of integrity in time during
major holidays, deepen the themed integrity education, and
strengthen the ideological defense line of employees.
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Case: Carry out Integrity Education and Training Activities for Middle and High-level Cadres
e FAEFRRESHSRZASHEINES

During the reporting period, the Group organized the integrity education and training activities for
middle and high-level cadres and employees from important departments or positions related to
the marketing, procurement, measurement, quality, etc. The training took the Group’s Integrity and
Self-Discipline System of the Group, Provisions on Red Line of Staff Basic Behavior of Risun Group,
and anti-corruption cases as the main content, urging middle and high-level cadres to seriously
study the Company’s supervision and audit system, firmly establish the red line awareness,
bottom line thinking, and keep ringing the alarm bell, and requiring all staff to be careful and self-
disciplined, work diligently and to be excellent cadres and excellent employees of Risun according
to the requirements on “how to be an excellent leader of Risun” and “how to be an excellent
employee of Risun”.
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SUPPLY CHAIN RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

The Group continuously strengthens the responsibility management
of the supply chain and selects the suppliers and contractors in
accordance with prudent principles and strict standards, not only
giving consideration to product quality, service ability and enterprise
reputation, but also the philosophy and actions in assuming social
responsibilities such as execution of the QHSE standards and labor
standards. We adheres to the philosophy of “Win-Win Cooperation
and Mutual Development”, implements centralized, uniform,
classified and level-to-level supplier management, strengthens
training and supervision, optimizes performance appraisal, and
implements whole-process and dynamic management of the supply
chain from admission to exit to ensure normal performance of the
economic contracts.

o Formulate the administrative measures for suppliers:
The Group formulated the Administrative Measures for
Suppliers, established the market access and performance
evaluation system for suppliers of the Group, and other
management systems to specify the introduction, approval
and maintenance, assessment, screening process and
punishment for violations of suppliers, so as to further optimize
the resources of the suppliers and ensure performance of the
businesses under the principle of fairness and justice.

° Carry out supplier selection and audit: Examine the basic
business qualification, advanced level of main production
equipment and testing equipment, technical skills, production
technology, and quality and environmental management
system certification of the suppliers, and prepare the
inspection report and enter into the supplier information
database after being approved;

° Establish the classification examination and elimination
mechanism for the suppliers: The Group organizes annual
review of the suppliers of the previous year at the beginning
of each year, assessing and scoring the suppliers in terms
of technical indicators, price, quality, delivery time, service,
energy saving and environmental protection of the suppliers,
classifies the suppliers by the final scores into: disqualified
supplier, qualified supplier, good supplier and excellent
supplier, and update the supplier database and eliminate
from the system suppliers whose assessment results fail to
meet the cooperation standard;
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Strengthen the performance of responsibilities of
suppliers on site: Carry out the supervision and management
of the performance of responsibilities of the suppliers on site,
set up fences around the construction site, hang the slogans
and signs related to safety and environmental protection,
and regularly carry out water spraying and cleaning to further
strengthen the inspection and management of the supplier
with respect safety and environmental protection on the
construction site;

Select energy-saving and environmental protection
products and services: Clearly put forward the requirements
for environmental protection and energy saving in the bidding,
procurement and acceptance of the supplier’s products or
services; for the new renovation and expansion projects, we
give priority to the energy-saving, environmental protection
technology and equipment; at the same time, the Group
will regularly monitor the procurement and use of energy-
saving and environmental protection equipment in the new
renovation and expansion projects of the users, and report
the violations and omissions.

Percentage of supplier by region

Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Contmu
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COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION

The Group always adheres to the responsibility and philosophy of
“taking from society and repaying society”, actively participates
in public welfare activities, and contributes to the construction of
the community. In terms of targeted poverty alleviation, the Group
actively cooperates with villages and towns to carry out counterpart
assistance work, and gives a helping hand to poor areas; in the
face of the epidemic, we actively organized donations of money
and materials to make due contribution to winning the fight against
the epidemic at an early date.

Carrying out Precise Poverty Alleviation Solidly

2020 was not only a year of achieving the goal of completing
the building of a moderately prosperous society in all respects,
and also a year of decisive victory for the elimination of poverty.
The Group thoroughly implements the national requirements for
targeted poverty alleviation, forms a assistance pair with the local
area, improves infrastructure construction through donations
of money and materials, and carries out activities such as
donations to schools. During the reporting period, we carried out
counterpart assistance work in Nanquhe Village, Zhuaniu Town,
Kaiyuan Town, Suiguantun Town and other villages and towns
to help the construction of “beautiful villages” and “thousands of
enterprises helping thousands of villages”, with a total donation of
approximately RMB 1.53 million.
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Hebei Risun Energy organized the public welfare activity of
“Realizing Micro Wishes Joining Hands to Warm Children’s Hearts”.
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Fighting the COVID-19

In 2020, in the face of the sudden COVID-19 epidemic, the
Group always attached equal importance to development and
responsibility, and did its best to contribute love. During the
epidemic period, we actively carried out donations of money and
materials to support epidemic prevention and control, successively
donated cash and materials to such places as Xingtai County of
Hebei, Qingshuihe County of Inner Mongolia, China Railway Beijing
Bureau, Dongming County of Shandong, Xingtai City of Hebei,
Yuncheng County of Shandong, and Dingzhou City of Hebei, and
sent sentimental items to frontline anti-epidemic personnel.

As of the reporting period, the Group has donated a total of RMB 3.7
million and ten thousands of various protective equipment such as
medical masks, goggles, and disinfection supplies to fully support
local epidemic prevention and control.

Environmental, Social, and Governance Report (Continued)
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Hebei Risun Energy organized donation activities for epidemic prevention and control
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RISUN GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Risun
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 137 to 282, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BB S (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BREETEE )

Key audit matter

BRESE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENEFNAEERREENSHE

Revenue recognition from contracts with customers

BF A TR

We identified revenue recognition from contracts with
customers attributable to the coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing segment as a key audit matter because
the amount is significant to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Furthermore, revenue from contracts with customers is
a key performance indicator of the Group and therefore
there is a high inherent risk of misstatement.
EmTEERRECEREESBEENT LS LK E
uu% HEARENEFE  ARATPEHNNGREGEAER
Hih2HWamREEERX « 19 B &K Ef%lé’]
ﬁ%fu BIERR - Bt - FEERRANR EFRR

As disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognized revenue from
contracts with customers attributable to the coke and
coking chemicals manufacturing segment amounting to
RMB8,715,621,000 for the year ended December 31,
2020.

WiRE WIS M 6T ER - B R EMRE = 20205121
A LFREERRECEREEDBEENEL AL
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Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition from
contracts with customers attributable to the coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment included:

EREERRENCEMEEDBELENT S G QKRR
%Eﬁfﬁ BIE

° Understanding the key controls relevant to revenue
recognition from contracts with customers;

o THRERPAMKEEREMNERES

° Performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the unit sales price, gross profit
margin, production volume, material consumption,
production utilization rate and freight charges;

o BT MIEFAMEBEAEE  EFE ES - MEHEER
ERFRAEREEEBNSIEN

° Obtaining confirmations for the sales to the major
customers;
. HEF2EF A EEEKE

° Checking, on a sample basis, the recorded transactions
by examining the underlying supporting evidences such
as invoices, receipt notes, final settlements and other
documents; and

. HMEMEMARRS %;ﬁﬁ?ﬁsﬂ% AnER - ke
¥ RBRAEEREMXHE)

° Performing cutoff procedures by selecting samples of
sales recognized close to the year end, agreeing the
date of revenue recognition to the underlying supporting
evidences such as invoices, receipt notes, to confirm
sales are recognized according to contract terms.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B Z BN A s ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BN Az B EN RS (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 26, 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB000
HiaE AR¥TFT AREFT

Revenue g 6 19,784,866 18,842,038
Cost of sales and services SHE RARTER A (16,561,423) (16,259,130)
Gross profit E 3,223,443 2,582,908
Other income HA A 7 116,176 161,520
Other gains and losses H AU zs & EiE 8 27,865 104,970
Impairment losses under expected TEHEEEBEERIAT

credit loss model, net of reversal ZBERE - BEFEE 9 (1,005) 5,978
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAT (789,337) (778,717)
Administrative expenses THAZ (441,186) (381,599)
Listing expenses Eaiil=bd - (15,835)
Profit from operations KRR 2,135,956 1,679,225
Finance costs [ELEENDIN 10 (532,032) (465,579)
Share of results of associates Paka i —UNCIE S (4,688) 25,734
Share of results of joint ventures DhEEEEEA 398,479 439,999
Profit before taxation BRBE AT R 11 1,997,715 1,679,379
Income tax expense FriSifsz 13 (296,812) (305,711)
Profit for the year FERR 1,700,903 1,373,668
Other comprehensive income Hit 2wz
Item that may be reclassified BB M Z BB -

subsequently to profit or l0ss:
Exchange differences arising on BREINEREEMEN Z5

translating foreign operations 2,678 8,310
Other comprehensive income FEHMBEWE

for the year 2,678 8,310
Total comprehensive income for the FEEXHEKSAR

year 1,703,581 1,381,978
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

reaBalEMmEE kAR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
st AR¥TFT AREFT
Profit for the year attributable to: A FERR
Owners of the Company ARARER A 1,700,041 1,363,165
Non-controlling interests Eealiig T 862 10,503
1,700,903 1,373,668
Total comprehensive income for the BEFEXEKSERE
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RAREB A 1,702,719 1,371,475
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A 862 10,503
1,703,581 1,381,978
Earnings per share (RVB) BRERBFNALY) 15
Basic BN 0.42 0.34
Diluted i3 N/A 0.34

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ra SRR R

At December 31, 2020 7202012 H31H

2020 2019
20205 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iz ARKEFT AREFr
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REEE 16 11,056,657 9,751,346
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 17 1,119,374 1,144,603
Goodwill kS 18 31,808 31,808
Intangible assets BEAE 19 78,748 75,914
Interests in associates REEE N B RS 20 346,623 351,311
Interests in joint ventures AE R ERER 21 1,355,575 1,230,431
Other long term receivables and H fth = BRI R FE AT IR
prepayments 22 2,589,411 1,588,154
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFABENESHEE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") 23 251,038 222,105
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 24 187,787 202,242
17,017,021 14,597,914
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =& 25 1,507,383 963,679
Income tax prepayments SEANIIE ) 7,311 28,015
Other receivables H fth fEUGRIB 26 1,825,706 1,600,527
Trade and bills receivables measured at  ZAR BT AEMEEKETERN
fair value through other comprehensive 2 5 EUFIE K BN E S
income (“FVTOCI”) 26 1,005,281 699,479
Amounts due from related parties FEUR B 5 5R08 37(c) 367,717 167,653
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFAEBENSREE 23 8,175 10,525
Restricted bank balances SR IR TEE R 27 1,294,656 1,073,747
Cash and cash equivalents RBe MRS ED 28 1,181,390 1,059,857
7,197,619 5,603,482
Current liabilities REBaE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRAREAEENEREE 23 52,329 1,866
Trade and other payables B 5 K H M ERFIE 29 3,798,062 3,051,228
Contract liabilities EHaE 30 994,517 938,950
Income tax payable FERT RIS HL 237,097 249,305
Bank and other loans RITRAMER 31 7,771,801 7,290,471
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 27,790 19,885
Amounts due to related parties JE1<I BAESE 77 SR8 37(c) 168,006 338,066
13,049,602 11,889,771
2020 F 3R

TEEEEBERA R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

eI (&)

At December 31, 2020 72020412 H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 ARETFTT ARMFT
Net current liabilities REBAERE (5,851,983) (6,286,289)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 11,165,038 8,311,625
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other loans RITREME 31 2,725,933 1,369,167
Lease liabilities HEarE 32 41,736 26,184
Deferred income EIEUTA 33 81,652 80,021
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEE 24 39,314 36,151
2,888,635 1,511,523
Net assets EEFE 8,276,403 6,800,102
Capital and reserves EXRGEE
Share capital & 34 354,699 354,699
Reserves ] 35 7,777,664 6,336,705
Total equity attributable to owners ARATREBEAELERERE
of the Company 8,132,363 6,691,404
Non-controlling interests IR 144,040 108,698
Total equity R 8,276,403 6,800,102

F17TE282E T A M RREEETS R
20213 A26 A #L/E RIFHETIBEW R IA T A

The consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 282 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on March 26,

2021 and are signed on its behalf by: TRERES:
Yang Xuegang Han Qinliang
BEM Bg=
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE FE

140 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
l\\/\ 4;_"_/\/\1%5“‘@2%

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRRAER
Non-
Share Share  Merger  Reserve Safety Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve profits Total interests equity

Bx  ROBE ANRE HEEE  22Ee  BMERE  REER B FEREE W 4ER
ANBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  AMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBUOO  AMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBU00
NEETT AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note34) — (Note 38)  (Note 35)  (Note 35)  (Note 35)  (Note 35)

W) Witz W) s W) W)

Balance at January 1, 2019 R2019%1 1R &t 87123 475949 384869 222,268 34978 (38486) 3437139 4603840 109,183 4713023

Profit for the year FEEF - - - - - - 1363165 1,363,165 10503 1,373,668
Other comprehensive income 2 ERE - - - - - 8310 = 8310 = 8310
Capitalisation issue BRLES 08548 (208548) 5 5 5 = = = 5 5
Ordinary shares issued BRLER 59,028 1,589,903 - - - - - 1648931 - 1648931
Transaction costs atrioutableto ~ EAIRMEERFRE

issue of shares - (5349 - - - - - (5349 - (5349
Liquidation of a subsidiary —FHELTER - = = = = = = - 20 (2250)
Net transfer to safety fund FEREREES - = = - (a789) 5 2788 = 5 5
Transfer to reserve fund BPHERS - = - 246313 5 - (8313) = 5 5
Divicends appropriation (Note 14) &R ME14) - (426588) - - - - (452,762)  (879,3%0) - (879,350)
Dividends to a non-controlling W~ AR R RAY

shareholder REAR - - - - - - - - (8738)  (873%)

Balance at December 31, 2019 R2019512A31R % 354699 1377224 384869 468581 32190  (30176) 4104017 6691404 108698 6,800,102

Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - 1,700,041 1,700,041 862 1,700,903
Other comprehensive income A2 EkR - - - - - 2,678 - 2,678 - 2678
Capital contriputions fromnon- ~~~ FERIRERABARA

controlling interests - - - - - - - - 34,480 34,480
Net transfer to safety fund FEHERLES - - - - 3,688 - (3689) - - -
Transfer to reserve fund BUSRELS - - - 303542 - - (303542) - - -
Divicends appropriation (Note 14) & DM 14) - - - - - - (261,760)  (261,760) - (261,760)

Balance at December 31, 2020 RONF12A31ELS 354699 1377224 384869 772123 3,878 (27498 5235068 8,132,363 144,040 8,276,403
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
l\‘/—_l—\/\fﬁ \/ ;ﬁ%%

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12A31HILFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARKEFT AREFr
Operating activities SRR
Profit before taxation B A5 A 1,997,715 1,679,379
Adjustments for: AT RIERE
Finance costs BhE AR 532,032 465,579
Interest income FEKA (39,516) (94,884)
Share of results of associates DREEE N AR 4,688 (25,734)
Share of results of joint ventures MEAELEEE (398,479) (439,999)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ JBEAEEEIEEN T ZmEEE -
model, net of reversal R 1,005 (5,978)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « = MR EITE 668,520 641,598
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 54,135 47,473
Amortization of intangible assets EREEEH 12,206 11,154
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1%  BE MEERE 45,633 =
Losses (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEREFEHEL W)
and equipment 841 (55,616)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAEEEN KRG (24,619) (52,585)
Impairment losses of interest in an associate A —REH4 A BN R RERE - 24,000
Government grants released to profit or loss B 2 ESBUTEE) (6,428) (5,779)
Change in fair value of financial assets/liabilities sz’&fﬂﬁﬁ)\?%ﬁnﬁ’]ipaﬂéﬁ/ﬁ EHA
at FVTPL nE# 59,870 4,380
Foreign exchange (gain) loss ER(HQE)E{% (36,430) 16,305
Operating cash flows before movements in HEACEHINEERSRE
working capital 2,871,173 2,209,293
(Increase)/decrease in inventories RO, wH (543,704) 45,356
Increase in amounts due from related parties FEHW@ i BB N (229,972) (24,879)
Increase in amounts due to related parties JRE 1S Bt 77 SRIE S AN 940 26,087
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K EH M RIE N (836,586) (165,042)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills BARBFAEMBEARSTENE SHE
receivables measured at FVTOCI WRIE I PRI AR (35 N /H’J\ (305,802) 2,479,816
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 2 5 K& H fth &+ F0IE1E hn,~ (sl > 400,270 (3,143,613)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities A?*’JE%W?JD/ ) 55,567 (135,739)
Decrease/(increase) in other long-term Hip REITAEN IR D,/ (38h0)
prepayments 292 (3,368)
Cash generated from operations KEMSRe 1,412,178 1,287,911
Income tax paid, net of tax refunded EATETER - MREM (270,698) (411,183)
Net cash generated from operating activities E& EEFERLTBHE 1,141,480 876,728
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
melengER(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
(k23 ARETFT ARETFT
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELRE (1,801,446) (1,666,141)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand ~ HEYE « BE MREFGHE
equipment 95,475 66,152
Purchase of right-of-use assets BEFRAREE (50,000) (4,650)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets ~ H&FEFREEEFSTIA 102,318 61,849
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (15,040) (12,643)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERAAEABRENERHEE (181,643) (140,028)
Loan to third parties RE=FiREER (368,367) (365,000)
Repayment of loan to third parties RE=HEEER 331,000 =
Deposit paid for operation management service 5t & & 12 fr % RSB HT B A B
and proposed acquisition of subsidiaries XRRE 22 (413,000) (1,350,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ HERAREFABENEBEE
FVTPL FSsE 145,653 4,068
Interest received BEUFIE 39,516 94,884
Government grants received EUE R B B 9,776 17,661
Dividends received from a joint venture BE—REELENRE 131,804 164,145
Dividends received from associates [EEG AN [E) 35S - 101,734
Placement of restricted bank deposits FAZBHIRITIER (5,034,458) (6,509,211)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REVEZ R BRI TIER 4,813,549 9,016,761
Decrease in amounts due from related parties  FEUREAES 77 78R 2 - 391,499
Investments in a joint venture R—REBDENRE 21 - (68,750)
Net cash used in investing activities RETBDFFAREFHE (2,194,863) (197,670)

2020 Fi#R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

AR TRER(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

2020 2019
2020 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT
Financing activities MEEE
Capital contribution from a non-controlling — BRI R TE
shareholder 34,480 -
Capital return to a non-controlling shareholder ~E—RKIBRARIERA—F
due to liquidation of a subsidiary FEERR AR R B AR - (2,250)
Dividend paid to shareholders MR R AR B 2K (261,760) (879,350)
Dividends paid to the immediate holding RIEEERA BRRED K
company - (467,533)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder  [a]— & IFER R AL E 7R - (16,301)
Interest paid [ARENESS (616,224) (480,875)
Net proceeds from issue of shares B BEITAERIBFR - 1,595,439
Proceeds from new interest-bearing borrowings ~ #1at BT E 9,487,710 9,056,398
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings 1@5&#51 B (7,452,790) (9,134,310)
Repayment of leases liabilities BHEa’E (13,556) (49,920)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BEZHELFTABREFE 1,177,860 (378,702)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BE&RELSEYHEINFEE 124,477 300,356
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FERERELZEY
of the year 1,059,857 759,037
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSBHNTZE (2,944) 464
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the HFERRERALZEY
year 1,181,390 1,059,857
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR T

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Risun Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands on November 8, 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been successfully listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on March 15, 2019. The respective addresses
of the registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company are stated in the section headed “Corporate Information”
section to the annual report.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of
the Company is Texson Limited (“Texson”, the “Ultimate Holding
Company”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI"), and ultimately controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang (the “Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder”).

The Company’s operating subsidiaries are engaged in the
production, sale and distribution of coke, coking chemicals and
refined chemicals and relevant operation management services
(the “Core Business”). The consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Group”)
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

At December 31, 2020, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB5,851,983,000. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) are of the opinion that, taking into consideration the
availability of unutilized banking facilities of the Group amounting
to RMB8,887,928 at the report date, of which RMB3,128,928
is unconditional, RMB4,212,000,000 is with conditions to be
determined by certain banks, and RMB1,547,000,000 is the
outstanding portion of syndicated loans for special purpose of
construction of certain production lines, and the assumption that
approximately 55% of bank loans and other banking facilities at
December 31, 2020 will be successfully renewed upon maturity,
the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its capital
expenditure and working capital requirements when they fall due
for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

—REHR

PEBBEEERARTRAAF]DR
2007F 11 AsHIREFAEHE R AES
22E (1961 F FE 35 LR - LirE RkiE
FEHSHEEAMK L AEREER
Aal e R2019FE3A158 @ AR AR
DERBEBBHERZHBRA R (B
FRD)EMAT) £ o AR R EE
RErEL e HNERINTE
B —Ef -

RRARNZREERA R RERZERA
AAFERHRAERAA(FRFK] » [H&E
ZEIRARD  ER—RKRRBRELES
(EBEXESDEMKINAT - I
M55 R T A ([ RAIE R R ) ki
i) o

RARPARENNBRAREELEE
HERDHER - ELEMMBAL
TEMMMBBELEERE (RO
) o AR REMB QR (A%
EDFEPBHRRAARBTARE]D
25 - BARRREEERER o

REMBERNNREREE

2020128310 AEERHE
BEFEAEARYES 851,983,000 °
ARAEEF(ERDRA  BEEX
EERBEBHRDHRITHEA
R#8,887,928 LM AT M + Hf A
R#3,128,928 T AEKMS + AR
4,212,000,0007t BB &4 - AE TR
THEE - AR 547,000,0007T AR
BEROKRELS  AREBETEER
EENERAE - WEREN2020%F12
A31B4955%MRITER K EMIRIT
RERD AR INEE  A5E%
EREUBERENEEATHRE
BESHRNAIRERIBHAERE -
At - GREMBRE DIRBELE
R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4= A

e BB mRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and
the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after
January 1, 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Definition of Material
IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
39 and IFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards and the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase2®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current!

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020?

3.

P& RIS S 5T B BR Bt 75 3 5 22 A
(TEIPR R 35 3R &5 22 B 1) (3)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR e MR M A ()

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property Plant and

Equipment-proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of any item that were
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management (such as
samples produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the proceeds from
selling such items should be recognized and measured in the profit
or loss in accordance with applicable standards. The cost of the

items are measured in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The Group’s existing accounting policy is to account for sale
proceeds on samples produced during testing as reduction of cost
of the relevant property, plant and equipment. Upon application
of the amendments, such sale proceeds and the related costs will
be included in profit and loss with corresponding adjustments to
the cost of property, plant and equipment. During the year ended
December 31, 2020, sale proceeds and related costs included
in property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB24,435,000,

RMB21,804,000, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements includes applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable
value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

For financial instruments which are transferred at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognized. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4= A

e BB mRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the International Accounting Standards
Committee’s Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in September 2010).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and |IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognized and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS 16)
as if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition
date, except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognized and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4= A

e BB mRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit (or a group of
cash-generating units) may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

4,

FEETEHERGE

AR

Yo B S 755 T 2 A R 7 B T IR A AN (R MK
BEBEARE) (2 LEXEFERR)
R 2EHRER K (H) AR

BREARME  AEEWROEER
HRA KO BRIMEmEDNSFHE
ReELBEM(FREELEMAR)
e AEEM S SEAEN&E
BRB AR ED TR ELL -

EoRmENRSEASM(RATE
FEMERN) EFFETREND - X
REDSBREREVKCREELE
LAY A] BE I BRRL (B B SR TR M HE 7T
RAERIE - BLNERE AR W E
ENEEME  BoEBENRSE
AEN (R eEESBMARNNZRE
HIRATETTRERR  HAIRE S5
PREREE - ARERXEENE
AR E R B NREE - ERIRZ
B (FReELBMERNNEREE
FREEMLHIDEEEMERE -

2020 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire I BHRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognized
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognized is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss be recognized in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value on the date
it lost significant influence or joint control over the investee and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits or losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the products or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price

for any significant financing component.

Revenue from the sales of products (mainly including coke and
chemicals products) directly to customers is recognized when
control of the goods has been transferred, being when the
products are accepted by the customers at the customer’s specific
destination or the Group’s plants. The customers have full discretion
over the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. A receivable
is recognized by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customers as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due. Customers have no right to return

the products purchased once accepted.

Revenue from the management service provided to customers is

recognized when services are provided.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an

agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service

before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognizes
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or

services to be provided by the other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contract costs
Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its sales of products
and service contracts. The Group first assesses whether these
costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other relevant
standards, failing which it recognizes an asset for these costs only if
they meet all of the following criteria:

° the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the Group can specifically identify;

° the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

° the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognized is subsequently amortized to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Lease

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application or arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under IFRS 16 at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of

the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a

single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognizes and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4= A

e BB mRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
and

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating lease is recognized in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Variable lease payments for operating leases
that depend on an index or a rate are estimated and included in the
total lease payments to be recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognized as income when they arise.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e., RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange rates at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such
accumulated differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalization rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognized as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.

Retirement benefit scheme contribution

Payable to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
retirement funds scheme managed by local social security bureau
in accordance with the government regulations in Hong Kong and
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), are recognized as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefit

Short-term employee benefits are recognized at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits to be paid as and when employees rendered
the service. All short-term employee benefits are recognized as
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
difference associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognizes the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognized at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4= A

e BB mRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Ownership in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the costs (other than
properties under construction) less their residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4= A

e BB mRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized,
development expenditure is recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (the “CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or the CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or a group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
applicable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or a
group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in

profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUS) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Costs of inventories are determined using weighted average cost
formula. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs to completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognized and derecognized on a trade day basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

4,

FEETEHERGE

At
bl

FEIERARAEHFEME PR
REDIRR - FERALRINEFHRA
ARFE - JERFEEFERTH
EEMBIRE TR B AT A [ ET AR &
EITIHEPTFHROPA o

TRTH

EEEERMAIAASNEXZATH
o leRRAEHEERSBAE -
MEFHREREEREDRRZ B
HEEBARKILER BHREE/A
B HRERBE O 2 FRARN
BENSREEBEIHE -

TREERSBMABVNSEAAER
B EEPANELNE S EKFR
VI RIE BB B 75 o o5 2 RSB 16 5R 1
B -RBIBTEREERTHAE
(FHEAAEFAERNEREENRS
BAENNERBIENIBRARY)
SRR ACREEXEREBGR
ERBRNARERREPNE - K
BRAAEFARESNEREELS
REEEREENRZRARBERD

IR R ©

ERMEER - B EERRSHA
TREELSBBENEHKANAR
DEMBRANFEFHZINITE - B
RMEBRNEREEXSHBENTE
HATF B s (RsE ) 5 AR M BE 4R
R E R RERE WA RRIR (B
BRERMNEAARRBY 2—UIE
NHEWERREHE  XHEUARE
fia (B IR R 2 V) S HER R AR E
FERFIE

2020 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G

175



176

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortized cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment
that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortized cost and interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortized cost and
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortized cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for receivables
classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, are recognized in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these receivables
are recognized in OCl and accumulated under the other reserve.
Impairment allowance are recognized in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these receivables. The amounts that are recognized in
profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognized in profit or loss if these receivables had been measured
at amortized cost. When these receivables are derecognized,
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are

reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at

amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any fair
value gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains and

losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including other long-
term receivables, other receivables, trade and bills receivables
measured at FVTOCI, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances) and financial guarantee contracts which are subject
to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of each reporting period.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of each reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings except that significant
balances are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognized is based on significant increases in the
likelihood of risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the end of each reporting
period with the risk if a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the end of each reporting period. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii)
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date
of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay all

amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognized in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables
using a provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost and effort.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
ECL is the present value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtors or any other

party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if,
and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being

discounted.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and other receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward looking

macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the

following characteristics when formulating the grouping:
. Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognized at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income

recognized over the guarantee period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for trade and bill receivables measured at FVTOCI and
financial guarantee contract, the Group recognizes an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognized through a loss
allowance account. For trade and bill receivables measured at
FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognized in OCl and accumulated
in the other reserve without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt receivables. Such amount represents the changes in the other
reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred financial asset,
the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the other reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

FEETEHERGE

EMIAME
SREEE
BB RN R RER (B

BTRAREFAHMEEAKEZE
SRR ARERRE R BEERE
WO AEEBBREMASRITA
M RR EE N R s R R 2 R (B I
KEIR - MEE AL WRIRRR SN - W
BRATEBBRBEFRERERER
EopREAREFARLMEEENREZ
BHREFBAREREEMS - BR
BENEMEEKET ERLNEM
T RFAMAERDZEFRRIER
ZHREE - R MR KRERFTE IR
BIRRM M EED -

RITERTBEE

AEEEEREENRBREREZE
MEmntEKeREEREEERE
ENEASyERRERERET S —
TERIEREREE - WMAKEEL
TEETTREAESREENEA
E2ERERROR  WEEZESHEE
ENEREE  AREEHEAET
BXNMESRERENEENRERA
B REELD - HAKBERECHE
EREEMAENEAT YRR RO
B AEEEEERSREE Yt
EWEZ FISSORIER A RIFEE

R ILERIRB KA ENSRE
ER - BEMKREESRD KR ERRK
BRBNZHESERETER -

R ILER D BRI AR BT AEM
2HKRENEFTRRER a0
HinE B Rt 2 Rt EREBRDE

o ERE -

2020 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G

185



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost, including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and bank and other loans,
are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial
liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognized over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, canceled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the

consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Application of various accounting principles related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the Group to
make judgements and estimates. Specifically, significant judgments
include determining whether the Group is acting as the principal in
a transaction. The Group is a principal in a transaction if the Group
obtains control of the products sold or services provided before
they are transferred to customers. If control is unclear, when the
Group is primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject to inventory
risk, has latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers,
or has several but not all of these indicators, the Group records
revenues on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net
amount earned as commissions from products sold or services

provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are as follows:

Useful life and impairment of property, plant and equipment

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the management
requires an estimation of recoverable amount of an individual asset
or the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, and has
to exercise judgement and make significant degree of estimation
in determining the recoverable amount of the assets, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset’s value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belongs.

Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including product price, volume of sales
and growth rate, gross profit ratio or discount rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
as at December 31, 2020 were RMB11,056,657,000 (2019:
RMB9,751,346,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment of interests in associates at the end of each reporting
period. Test for impairment is required when there is any objective
evidence that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For
the interests in associates, an impairment exists when its carrying
value exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The value in
use calculation for the interests in associates requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
associates and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss/
further impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of interests
in associates as at December 2020 were RMB346,623,000 (2019:
RMB351,311,000).

Estimated impairment of doubtful receivables

The Group recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast conditions at end of the reporting period. In
addition, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL for other receivables
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL
model is measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise. Further details are included in Note 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Taxation

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatments of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatments of such transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account of all changes in tax
legislations.

The recognition of deferred tax assets require formal assessment by
the Group of the future profitability of related operations. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates, amongst other factors, the
forecast financial performance, changes in technology and future
assessable profits or taxable temporary differences. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, a reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognized in profit or loss for the period in which such estimates
are changed. Further details are included in note 24.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the reporting period, the Group’s revenue represents the
amount received and receivable from the sales of goods to external
customers arising from the coke and coking chemicals, refined
chemicals, trading and operation management services. Except
for the provision of operation management services, which was
recognized over time, the revenue of the remaining operations is
recognized at a point in time when the customers obtain control of

the goods delivered or management services provided.

All sales/trading are for period of one year or less. As permitted
under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not

disclosed.

Information was reported to the executive directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM”) for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on

types of goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8

Operating Segments are as follows:

° Coke and coking chemicals manufacturing segment: the
production and sale of coke and a series of coking chemicals
from externally sourced coking coals processed at the

Group’s coking facilities;

° Refined chemicals manufacturing segment: the purchase
of coking chemicals from the Group’s coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment and third parties, and
processing such coking chemicals into refined chemical
products at the Group’s refined chemicals facilities, as well as

marketing and selling such refined chemicals;

° Operation management segment: the operation management
service provided to the third-party plants, and the sale of
coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals produced by
these plants under the management service agreements and

commissioned processing contracts; and

. Trading segment: the sourcing of coke, coking chemicals and
refined chemicals from third parties and the marketing, sale

and distribution of such coal chemicals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The CODM reviews operating results and financial information
for each operating company separately. Accordingly, each
operating company, including associates and joint ventures held
by the relevant operating company, is identified as an operating
segment. Those operating companies are aggregated into coke
and coking chemicals segment, refined chemicals segment,
operation management segment and trading segment respectively
for segment reporting purpose after taking into account that those
operating companies are operating in similar business model with
similar target group of customers, similar products and similar
methods used to distribute their products. The accounting policies
of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 4.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reporting segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortization of assets attributable to those
segments.

All assets are allocated to segment assets other than unallocated
head office and corporate assets. All liabilities are allocated to
segment liabilities other than unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “segment results”.
To arrive at segment results, the Group’s earnings are adjusted
for unallocated head office and corporate expenses and listing
expenses which are not specifically attributable to individual
segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
results, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter segment sales and share
of losses/profits of associates and joint ventures), depreciation,
amortization and additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations.

Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices charged to
external parties for similar orders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERIBERGE

(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEFEE  BEERBRGE)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s results, assets and UTEBREBU 2RO MESE  EE
liabilities by reportable segments: KEENT

Year ended/as at December 31, 2020
BZE2020F 128310 1L EE/REZA

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing Manufacturing  Management Trading Total
ERREL BT
EmtE EREE EgER g5 )

RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RIB000
ARBTE  ARBTZ  ARETZ  AREFT  AREFZ

Revenue from contracts with external ~ 9MNEFE B A 414z

customers
Sale of coke and coking chemicals HEERKELER 8,715,621 - 20,484 - 8,736,105
Sale of refined chemicals HERBLIER - 5,845,621 420,912 - 6,266,533
Trading 25 - - - 4,622,776 4,622,776
Management services EERRE - - 159,452 - 159,452
8,715,621 5,845,621 600,848 4,622,776 19,784,866
Inter-segment revenue D EprIdGS 822,912 201,498 - - 1,024,410
Reportable segment revenue B R e 9,538,533 6,047,119 600,848 4,622,776 20,809,276
Reportable segment results 2RI DEE 1,932,528 (20,178) 131,696 62,979 2,107,025
Unallocated head office and corporate  RATREHER
expenses RAGRX (109,310)
Consolidated profit before taxation ~ BHAI&AHA 1,997,715
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. W3R S&E% ()
(CONTINUED)

ht

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEHFEE  BEERABRGE)

m

Year ended/as at December 31, 2020
HZE20205128HBLLEE /RER

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing Manufacturing  Management Trading Total
ERRE BT
EmEE EREE Eegn g5 Eh

RIMB 000 RMB’000 RIMB 000 RIMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTZ  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETZ

Reportable segment assets 2RI HEE

(including interests in associates and ~ (BERBIZRARA

joint ventures) EERER) 9,466,094 9,182,620 809,763 3,383,078 22,841,555
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI BEE 5,867,401 6,315,371 125,133 3,272,583 15,580,488
Other information: Hit &R
Additions to non-current segment assets  FRIEREID HEE

during the year 0 898,716 1,178,314 - 20,235 2,097,265
Share of results of associates HMEBERFREE 658 (5,346) - - (4,688)
Share of results of joint ventures SERELEEE 398,479 - - - 398,479
Depreciation and amortization for the ~ FRITEREH

year 312,394 396,571 20,130 7,923 737,018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Year ended/as at December 31, 2019
HE2019F12A31ALEE /7R

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing  Manufacturing ~ Management Trading Total
ERKkEN e
EREE EmEE BEER 25 mt
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000
ABEFT AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETFT
Revenue from contracts with external ~ SMIEEFA 47U
customers
Sale of coke and coking chemicals ~ SEERREELESR 8,621,458 = 424128 = 9,045,586
Sale of refined chemicals EERMELIER - 7,155,664 531,582 = 7,687,246
Trading Z5 - - = 2,031,549 2,031,549
Management services Bk - = 77,657 = 77,657
8,621,458 7,155,664 1,033,367 2,031,549 18,842,038
Inter-segment revenue AEE N 972,635 161,089 6,947 = 1,140,671
Reportable segment revenue AE2HA PR 9,594,093 7,316,753 1,040,314 2031549 19,982,709
Reportable segment results 2B PEE 1,103,589 527,552 144,157 6,872 1,782,170
Listing expenses isiiliF3 (15,835)
Unallocated head office and corporate k7 Ft i £ 5
expenses RRBAY (86,956)
Consolidated profit before taxation BB Ai% & EF 1,679,379
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

=AN
=Y

PRI et (48)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

52 2 7 BB E 4 (4])

(CONTINUED)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEE BERBEGE)
Year ended/as at December 31, 2019
BZ2019F12A318 15K /R%B
Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing Manufacturing  Management Trading Total
ERKkEN BT
EmEE EmEE BRER g5 &t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000
AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT
Reportable segment assets 2RI HEE
(including interests in associates (BERBEATR
and joint ventures) BELENER) 8,135,053 8,352,039 779,125 2,163,167 19,429,384
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI HEE 6,100,641 5,242,520 93,182 1933655 13,369,998
Other information: Hin&# -
Additions to non-current segment FRIFRDHHEEL
assets during the year m 564,977 659,819 60,391 11,861 1,297,048
Share of results of associates AMEBE D REE (3,879) 29,613 = = 25,734
Share of results of joint ventures AEEELEREE 439,999 = = = 439,999
Depreciation and amortization FRITE REH
for the year 292,242 385,259 15,098 7,805 700,404
2020 3R

TEEEEBERA R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR e MR M A ()

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION Wiz K& o EBE L (4
(CONTINUED)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEFEE  BEERBRGE)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, results, assets and AEmn PR - ¥E BEERER
liabilities. B AR -
Year ended/as at December 31
BZ12A310LFE R&A
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT
Revenue H&lﬁ
Reportable segment revenue 2RI 20,809,276 19,982,709
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %fifé“flliﬁaﬂuﬂzm (1,024,410) (1,140,671)
Consolidated revenue e 19,784,866 18,842,038
Results %ﬁ
Reportable segment results RO EHLE 2,107,025 1,782,170
Listing expenses J:ml?ﬁi - (15,835)
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBBHERR AT
expenses (109,310) (86,956)
Profit before taxation B 258 B ) 1,997,715 1,679,379
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets BoEAEE 22,841,555 19,429,384
Unallocated head office and corporate ﬂi ﬁ BREERABEE
assets 1,373,085 772,012
Consolidated total assets EBERS 24,214,640 20,201,396
Liabilities 8&
Reportable segment liabilities AIZ2WmoEaE 15,580,488 13,369,998
Unallocated head office and corporate i @Eﬁ@ﬂ#%?&ﬁﬁl%%
liabilities 357,749 31,296
Consolidated total liabilities e BaEeE 15,938,237 13,401,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(CONTINUED)

Geographic information

Substantially all of the Group’s revenue and profit were derived from
the PRC sales and all principal assets employed by the Group are

located in the PRC during the reporting period.

Major customers

No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of

the Group’s turnover for each reporting periods. Details
concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note 39.

OTHER INCOME

ol &kt

Wz 2 7 BB E 4 (4])

RBERA - K8 LEAKEMRA KRS
MgMTIREPEREE - MAKEE

RHFFE X2 EEBRNFE -

T2EF

REREHAR  HEBERNEFETH

of RHDBBAEEEETE10% - BBEE
PEERBRAFFEHTIRHFE9 o

7. HfA

Year ended December 31

BZ12A31BLFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT AREFr
Interest income F2WA 39,516 94,884
Production waste sales HEERERHHE 5,228 4,883
Steam sales S 9,805 121
Equipment rental income HRERSWA 4,398 5,241
Government grants (Note) AT+ Bh (K7 77) 39,694 39,292
Others HAp 17,535 17,099
116,176 161,520

Note: Government grants were received from several local government

Hrit - ARBERERERE  HOERE

authorities as subsidies for the Group’s contribution to the
environmental protection, energy conservation recycling
resources, relocation, purchase of land use rights and
infrastructure construction.

REWELERERE  BELH
150 R 4 o T 5 B T 2 25 {[E 38 05 B
BB RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HttzmKREE
Year ended December 31
BZ12B31BLEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT ARETFT
Fair value (loss)/gain of financial assets/ BROREFNERNEREE BED
liabilities at FVTPL: DREER), /e
— Listed equity securities (Note 23a) — R AE S W E23a) (3,415) (2,507)
— Unlisted equity securities (Note 23b) — I LR E S (B i£23b) (8,230) 1,333
— Private equity investment funds —ALEREREE S (W it23c)
(Note 23c) 8,524 322
— Futures contracts (Note 23e) — BB S 7723e) 76,671 43,804
— Derivative financial instruments-swaps ~ — 744 gt T B — s B3 (51 :£23F)
(Note 23f) (69,668) =
— Other non-derivative financial assets —EMIETESREE 12,919 (3,527)
Impairment losses of property, plant and ME - BRE REERERE
equipment (Note 16) (K17t 16) (45,633) =
Gain/(Loss)on foreign exchange, net SNEURES,(B518) F 5 25,531 (19,557)
Impairment losses of interest in an associate A — KB & A BHYE 55 FORUE BT 18
(Note 20) (Krz#20) - (24,000)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of: HENTEIEARE(BE)
- right-of-use assets —ERAEEE 24,619 52,585
— property, plant and equipment —¥% - BERF (841) 55,616
Others Hib 7,388 901
27,865 104,970
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 9. AHEEBEERE NHNRERS

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL B HIBREE
Year ended December 31
BE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETFTT AREFr
Impairment losses recognized/reversed AT 18 E 2 B E 2R EERE :
on:
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k H AU IR 13,022 9,762
Other long term receivables H b R EAFERIE (13,588) (4,233)
Amounts due from related parties JE LK A 5 3R (439) 449
(1,005) 5,978
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 39. B ERFHEE M9 o
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. EE KA
Year ended December 31
BZE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TFT ARBFr
Interest on bank loans SRITEFRFE 425,270 264,621
Interest on other loans HERF S 106,980 89,870
Finance expenses on bills receivable B AR ERRIER I S E A
discounted 92,247 124,669
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEaENTKER 2,926 11,046
627,423 490,206
Less: Amount capitalized under B ERIRE NEMNMEMSEE L)
construction in progress (Note) (95,391) (24,627)
532,032 465,579
Note: The finance costs were capitalized at annual rates of 6.58%- Hfat - B E2020F12A31BIEFE © @
11.40% per annum during the year ended December 31, 2020 BRABIRFEFEE.58%-11.40%
(2019: 5.80%-8.00%). (20194 : 5.80%£8.00%) FIAE
AL o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4= A

e BB mRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

11.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRBL AT A

BRI A AR FNER

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT ARETFT
Staff costs (including directors’ BTKA(BIEEZESZEH)
remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENMEMEF 504,322 426,146
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R KE 5T 2145k 16,696 32,255
Total staff costs 8 TR A B 521,018 458,401
Capitalized in construction in progress FEIRERNE (48,847) (29,774)
Capitalized in inventories FEERNE (265,599) (216,432)
206,572 212,195
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - WEREEBITE
equipment 670,677 641,777
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEITE 54,135 47,473
Amortization of intangible assets mLAESEE 12,206 11,154
Total depreciation and amortization e M iE A RE 737,018 700,404
Capitalized in inventories FEAERE (641,578) (608,310)
Capitalized in construction in progress FERIREARL (2,157) (179)
93,283 91,915
Auditors’ remuneration (A 9,596 9,021
Cost of inventories recognized as an REHAZFERAR
expense 16,679,113 16,344,116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. £ FTESEREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2020

BZ2020F12A31ALLFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 28 RIKER
Ezhe REVER WA R #act

RMB000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
AREFT  AR®FrT  AREFT AREFT ARETZ

Executive directors HITES

Yang Xuegang D - 3,525 960 4 4,489
Zhang Yingwei RERE - 776 960 4 1,740
Han Qinliang BEE) - 800 960 4 1,764
Wang Fengshan TR - 803 960 - 1,763
Wang Nianping TEY - 800 900 4 1,704
Yang Lu 5% - 584 660 3 1,247
Subtotal et - 7,288 5,400 19 12,707
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Wang Yinping F5F 252 - - - 252
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry REIRE 252 - - - 252
Kang Woon B 252 - - - 252
Subtotal Nt 756 - - - 756
Total st 756 7,288 5,400 19 13,463
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re SRR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12A31HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. £ FESEREEME

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
Year ended December 31, 2019
HZ2019F12A31ALEE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total

= RIKEF
EENE  REVEN [iD]=prz HELGS @t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETET  ARETL  ARETT  ARETZT

Executive directors HITES

Yang Xuegang 155 I - 3,687 800 50 4,537
Zhang Yingwei SREE(E - 800 800 50 1,650
Han Qinliang HE)sy - 800 800 50 1,650
Wang Fengshan FRW S 800 800 - 1,600
Wang Nianping FEF S 800 660 50 1,510
Yang Lu 15 - 615 650 34 1,299
Subtotal NEt - 7,502 4,510 234 12,246

Independent non-executive BIFHITESE

directors
Wang Yinping FaIF 269 - - - 269
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry KRB 269 - - - 269
Kang Woon |51 269 = = = 269
Subtotal 251 807 - - - 807
Total st 807 7,502 4510 234 13,053

204 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The emoluments of non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were for their services as
Directors.

Directors are entitled to bonus payments which are determined
based on the duties and responsibilities of the Directors as well as
the operating results of the Group.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during the reporting period.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2020 included two Directors (2019: three Directors),
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments in
respect of the remaining highest paid individuals during the
reporting period are as follows:

12. EE  FESEREEMNS

(&)

ERBTEEME /REREEAR
AIRASEEHRERRGOME -

ERFARTEERBILIFATES
ERREETERNME -

EZERUEDREEBHEREEUR
KRB L REBENTEAN K -

R|EHA - TRERIENEEY
RMEEMBE

hE&mHAL

HZE2020612A31BILFE - A&EH
hEEeHFALTREMBEE(2019
F:=ZREF) HEMeR LB
EoRMESHAN BEBTERSFA
THBEST

Year ended December 31

BZ12A31HLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBFor
Salaries and other emoluments FehEMAME 5,287 3,195
Retirement benefits scheme contributions EK{BFIETEI R 27 82
5,314 3,277
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re SRR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12A31HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. £ FESEREEME

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) hamaHATE)

The remunerations of the five highest paid employees (including hEERHFAT(BRER)NHFHN T
Directors) are within the following bands: LATN#E R -

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
2020F 20194
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEAH EEAE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0Z%1,000,000/8 7T - S
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T - =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 2,000,000/ 7T - 4
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 22,500,000/ 7T 4 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,00187C24,500,000/%8 7T - S

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 725,500,000/ 7T 1

During the reporting period, no amount was paid or payable by the RIWESRN - REEYRFAESREMNTSE
Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as e AL N RENFIBERFEMAK
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation R IIAZN S B 5 ) 22 ) Sk B B PSS O 18 o

for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

13. FIfERiRX

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB000
ARKEFT AREFr
Current tax BIHEA%E1E
PRC income tax for the year FERBEH 279,194 265,424
Land appreciation tax (“LAT”) T HIIBER - (18,005)
Deferred tax charge (Note 24) EERIE X (H2724) 17,618 58,292
296,812 305,711

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group did not earn any income subject to any income tax
in these jurisdictions during the reporting period.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong had no assessable profits
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and no provision
for taxation is made.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
applicable for PRC group entities is 25% for the reporting period,
except for certain subsidiaries which enjoyed tax rate of 15% due to
relevant incentive policies.

During current year, 3 subsidiaries (2019: nil) of the Company are
qualified as “High and New Tech Enterprises”, which are subject
to PRC enterprise income tax at the preferential rate of 15% of the
estimated assessable profit as determined in accordance with
relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC. This preferential rate
could be applied for three years, and the subsidiaries are eligible
to apply the tax concession again upon expiry of the three-year
period.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the PRC are
eligible for tax holiday and concession. Pursuant to the relevant
tax rules and regulation in PRC, revenue from comprehensive
utilization of resources (“&EiR&R& M MA") is eligible for additional tax
deduction.

BREFRSEEREABRAHENRAER
) AEBERRE AL ERRAZRZE
AEEBERMSHNEMKA -

HZE2020F 201912 A31HILEE » &
EEESWBRARLERZFESN B
YEHRLIB S -

RIEFESEMETOE(REREBED) ki
EMBTUEBRES  TEEEERNEE
HARERRER25%  BRETHEARH
KRB B ZERHER15%I) °

RAEE - KRR =FEHE AT (20194F :
)M SRR E AR - HIRETEME
FARERERFTEEE 2 FEAERBS R A =
B15%R BB EMSHEERDE - ILEER
MEAWRA=F  WBRARKR=FHME
MBI EBEREFRBEAREER

ARRRHELENETHEBARNNASER
ERRTE MRS  RIET BEAREHS
BRARER  BERGANAEEZKREAR
BRESEINENMRES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progress rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

THIREWBEVIRABTBEREA
RIERAEH R ELE L AR - i
BERCDMIBEEENERERXEN
B (5 TR MR %) -

AEENMEHAX EGEEE
b 2 T e 2 R HO R B AT m?‘FUE"JxTﬁEZID
T

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT ARETFT
Profit before taxation Rk 75 AT A 1,997,715 1,679,379
Tax at the PRC tax rate of 25% & B R 25% 5T E IR 499,429 419,845
Tax effect on: LATXIEE’ﬁRi‘%E“
Share of results of associates and joint DMEEE R REEREES
ventures (98,448) (116,433)
Non-deductible expenses AATIBRFAS 6,025 14,805
Unused tax losses and temporary RERREATIAEE KGR ERE
differences not recognized 55,050 19,697
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB RERNIBEE
recognized - (5,529)
PRC tax concessions AR BB TR R S (180,994) (16,169)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of P BIE B2 2R % F FO TE IR
PRC entities 15,750 7,500
LAT (Note) T IR ERL (B L) - (18,005)
Income tax expense for the year FEFSHAY 296,812 305,711

Note - The amount represents the LAT on gain arising from a land
transferred within the Group during the year ended December 31,
2018, which got tax exemption from the local tax authority during

the year ended December 31, 2019.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. BRE
2020 2019
2020F 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ANBEFT AREFT
Dividends recognised as distribution FARRBIRZRE -
during the year:

2020 Interim, paid - HK ¢ 2.92 per share 2020FHEARE. + BN —&R2.927 1L 105,522 =

2019 Final, paid - HK ¢ 4.19 per share 2019 RHEIRE - BN —&R4.1951L 156,238
2018 Final, paid - HK ¢ 17.44 per share 2018FRHEIRE « B —EIR17.44551L - 626,588
2019 Interim, paid - HK ¢ 6.89 per share 2019FHEIRE + BN —&iR6.897 L - 252,762
261,760 879,350

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the proposed
final dividend in respect of the year ended December 31,2020
of RMB10.5 cents per ordinary share with total amount of
RMB429,450,000 has been proposed by the Directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REREEIRE - EEEZHZE2020F
12A31 B IEFEBIRRBPR S F/RE
BERAARB105D BEAARE
429,450,0007T + WAL R R BN
BIT7BRRAFAREG EHOER AR E

.
=

2020 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

Basic earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2020
and basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2019 are calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to the owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares issued.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company is based
on the following data:

BREF

HZE2020F12A31H I FERNERE
REMEEZE2019F12A318 ILEE
MEREARANEERF TIRARRHE
B AFEER R AT 317X @A hniE
EHEETH -

RRAREBEBRB R EGSRERRE
SEENTR T BEE

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
Earnings BF|
Profit attributable to the owners of the RAEIHEE AEE ST
Company (RMB'000) (AE#HEFT) 1,700,041 1,363,165
Number of shares RBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary HERERBFIF LB
shares for the purpose of basic earnings hniEFHE
per share 4,090,000,000 3,947,068,493
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:  EfE#EL BT E
— over-allotment options — HBEEAC AR AE - 115,711
Weighted average number of ordinary PLERREE BRI E KT @R N
shares for the purpose of diluted earnings 9%
per share 4,090,000,000 3,947,184,204

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 1% - BERRE

Machinery
and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
g7 BRERRE RE WAERME ERIR @t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 00O RMB 000 RMB 000
ANEHFT ANREFT ANRFFT NEHFT AREFT ANEHFT
Cost R
At January 1, 2019 #2019F1A1H 4,399,561 7,469,608 43,306 46,624 521,913 12,481,012
Additions HE 1,560 58,563 16,953 5,300 1,133,932 1,216,308
Transfer from constructionin ~ EHEERTE 194,702 326,551 692 4975 (526,920) S
progress
Transfer fromright-of-use ~ ERBFREAE - 144,696 - - - 144,696
assets
Disposals HE (124,630) (417,889) (12,630) (1,745) (1.177) (658,071)
At December 31, 2019 201912318 4,471,193 7,581,529 48,321 55,154 1,127,748 13,283,945
Additions HE 1,519 44,857 7,848 4,545 1,971,108 2,029,877
Transfer from constructionin BB EFETRE 491314 834,650 636 11,455 (1,338,055) S
progress
Disposals HE (219) (14,686) (11,286) (118) - (26,309)
At December 31, 2020 2020612318 4,963,807 8,446,350 45,519 71,036 1,760,801 15,287,513
Depreciation and RERRE
impairment
At January 1, 2019 R20195 1418 964,870 2,164,736 27,353 34,962 - 3,191,921
Transfer from right-of-use ~ BEBEREAE = 33,004 = = = 33,004
assets
Depreciation ik 196,439 427,815 10,656 6,867 - 641,777
Disposals e (69,171) (252,270) (11,174) (1,578) 5 (334,193)
At December 31, 2019 K019 12A31 7 1,092,138 2,373,375 26,835 40,251 = 3,532,599
Depreciation e 196,996 454,781 11,834 7,066 = 670,677
Impairment i - 45,633 - - - 45,633
Disposals e (65) (7.981) (9.908) (99) = (18,053)
At December 31, 2020 M2020612A318 1,289,069 2,865,808 28,761 47,218 - 4,230,856
Carrying amounts REE
At December 31, 2020 2020612318 3,674,738 5,580,542 16,758 23,818 1,760,801 11,056,657
At December 31, 2019 M2019512H318 3,379,055 5,208,154 21,486 14,903 1,127,748 9,751,346
2020 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, after taking into account their estimated
residuals, are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows:

Buildings 20-30 years
Machinery and equipment 5-30 years
Motor vehicles 3-12 years
Office equipment 2-15 years

Details of the pledged property, plant and equipment are set out in
Note 42.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group recognized
impairment losses of RMB45,633,000 based on the fair value less
costs of disposal related to property, plant and equipment of the
dimethyl ether production line, which was shut down in May, 2020
due to the low capacity utilization and reduced market demand in
the economic environment of low oil price.

The Group has carried out a compensable relocation of one of its
plants between locations in Dingzhou City pursuant to the local
government’s arrangement. The Group has shut down and begun
dismantling the old plant after the new plant was completed and
commenced operation in November 2018. The land use right
and property, plant and equipment are handed over to the local
government in batches according to the dismantlement progress.
During the year ended December 31, 2019, certain portion of
the land use right and relevant property, plant and equipment
with carrying amounts of RMB3,978,000 and RMB170,633,000,
respectively were handed over to the local government or disposed
of. The Group recognized a compensation receivable amounting
to RMB272,087,000 on the disposal date based on the sale and
purchase agreement as well as the valuation report of property,
plant and equipment approved by local authority, and a net gain on
disposal amounting to RMB93,212,000 was included in the gain on
disposal of land use right and property, plant and equipment as set
out in note 8.

After the Directors’ due assessment on the recovery of the carrying
amounts of the remaining land use right and property, plant and
equipment, a disposal gain will be recognized after the public
auction of the land use right, then a separate sale and purchase
agreement will be signed. As at December 31, 2020, the carrying
amounts of the remaining land use right and property, plant
and equipment in the old plant to be handed over to the local
government are amounting to RMB9,583,000 and RMB 14,474,000
(2019: RMB9,791,000 and RMB14,774,000), respectively.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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BRaERTEN  LilmE  BERR
BEB NG REGFHRKERREZE
BORITEWT ¢

BT 20E304F
] 52304
B 3E 126
F N 27154

BEEMYE - BERREOFBER
FiiaE42 °

R2020F 12 A31H ILFEHM - A%
ERE QA RER2020F5 A8 T
ERELERETEENARE ™
BERRLH—_FRMAEELNME -
E MR EEEKRAERRERBLR
AR#45,633,0007T °

RIBE BTN ZE  AEERET
M &z M HAR —RITHETT
AFLAMENRE AEEERHT
RIE2018F 11 AR T W IR E L&
REEAI BAIRMRE TR o b (E M
BERYE - BFE REEDBIERRE
ER#BZEHBUT - K2019412
B31BI-FEHHE - BH LMER
ERAEME - BERRENERRDE
DRIAANR3,978,000T R AR
170,633,0007T * B R EE KA
HHE REERBEEEHH LS
ERIENYE  BE RxEHER
EWMALEAHREKHEESAARE
272,087,0007T © HEMEFREAA
R#93,212,000 T 20T sE8FTE A T &
T EARRME - BE REHRS
U zs R ABR -

EERWE BT T EARERDE
5 R Ee BREEE L B E T
BRI EFERARETARAMERS
AEREEWR  BEEITEBDH
EE s o W2020 128318 @
HEMBNEENEIRNK T -
EAEERDE  BEREXBENE
EED A AR 583,000t & A
R #14,474,00070(20194F : AR¥
9,791,0007T & A R #14,774,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=AY
N=

BRI oL ()

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

17. RIGHT-OF- USE ASSETS 17. EHAEEE
Carrying amount leasehold lands Equipment Total
IREE FHE iy B HBE
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETFT ARETFT AREFT
(Note)
(Hizt)
As at January 1, 2019 ®2019F1 /811 1,127,113 117,104 1,244,217
Additions NE 7,706 60,391 68,097
Transfer to property, plant and EESYIE R NRRE
equipment - (111,602) (111,602)
Disposals & (8,636) = (8,636)
Depreciation charge WweEXH (26,873) (20,600) (47,473)
As at December 31, 2019 72019 12H31H 1,099,310 45,293 1,144,603
Additions NE - 52,348 52,348
Disposals ek (23,442) = (23,442)
Depreciation charge weEXH (29,644) (24,491) (54,135)
As at December 31, 2020 #2020 12H31H 1,046,224 73,150 1,119,374
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT ARBTT
Expense relating to short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets, HHHENEKEEEEHEMRBAS 14,654 9,994
Total cash outflow for leases HERS LA 28,210 75,610

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouse

REMEFEE  AEEHRESERA

properties, equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 12 months to 6 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

T REMERREANESL - HE
GHILAN2(E A =6 F R EEHAFT L
HE BRI EER ER LR - B1F
ARG R A o FOEEE A H KRR A
TRIE OB RER - KEBES
BRI ERIWETE A B AR HERITH
BB o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

18. GOODWILL

Goodwill on the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019 represents goodwill arising on an
acquisition of Cangzhou Risun Chemicals Limited (“Cangzhou
Risun”) and is carried at cost as established on June 8, 2016,
being the date of Cangzhou Risun becoming a subsidiary of the
Group, less accumulated impairment losses. The goodwill has been
allocated to Cangzhou Risun for the purpose of impairment testing.
No impairment has been recognized during the reporting period.

As of December 31, 2020, the Group prepared cash flow projection
for Cangzhou Risun based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax discount rate
of 12.6% (2019: 12.5%). The cash flow beyond the 5-year period
was a steady 3% (2019: 3%) growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations related to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on Cangzhou Risun’s past performance
and management’'s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of Cangzhou Risun to exceed the aggregate recoverable

amount of Cangzhou Risun.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. BB E

Year ended December 31

BZE12A318LLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFTT AR¥TIT

Cost: A
As at January 1, ®W1A18 - 151,197 138,554
Additions NE 15,040 12,643
As at December 31, ®12H31H - 166,237 151,197
Accumulated amortization and T BERRE -

impairment:
As at January 1, MR8 - 75,283 64,129
Charge for the year FATH 12,206 11,154
As at December 31, ®12H831H - 87,489 75,283
Carrying amounts: BRMEE :
As at December 31, ®12A318 - 78,748 75,914

The intangible assets are mainly patented use rights of techniques.
The intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
patented periods ranging from 5 to 10 years, based on the shorter
of the period of their contractual rights or expected useful life.

BREEETZBRSEFNRMERE - BEE
EIRA 4T EARR sk T8 B Al 5 A3 4F B &
BREERSE10FNEF BB AL B E#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4= A

e BB mRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20. REE N TIER

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TFT AREFr
Cost of investments BREKA 535,272 535,272
Share of post-acquisition profits and kR B MR FE AR B/
other comprehensive income, DB EF R
net of dividend received and Hb 2 mEik s
receivable 32,259 36,947
Less: impairment (Note) B BB TR (220,908) (220,908)
346,623 351,311

Note: As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, impairment of RMB220,908,000
was recognized against 30% equity interest in Yangmei Group
Shouyang Jingfu Coal Co., Ltd. (“Jingfu Coal”) held by the Group
mainly due to the coal price below the expectation at the initial

investment.

Details of the associates at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were as

Bzt - 20204 20196128318 - i
EAR#220,908,000T A & E
REEEBRSHESEEEESRA
AI((EEEED B 30%RERE
R EZHRERERERIIGR
BRTEHE -

R2020%F 2 2019F 12 431 B & A A

follows: HEBEWT
Country of
incorporation/  Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting
principal place interest held rights held
Name of entity of business by the Group by the Group Principal activity
FEBRENES EEEREN
1 TEERBH 2RI RE-LLA TEXH
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 2019F  2020F 20195
Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Production
(“Jinniu Risun Chemicals”) of refined
(Tt 24 RERC TBRAR) (Note a) chemicals
ke ITERAR H FERBHT
(&4 BB ) #ita) Em
Cabot Risun Chemicals (Xingtai) Co. Ltd. The PRC 40% 40% 40% 40%  Production of
(“Cabot Risun Chemicals”) carbon black
(FEREREI(Ra)ERAT)
(Note a)
EEBH I BRAR i HERE

(REses T Wita)

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

NN N B

(48

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

20. REE QTR (FE)

Country of
incorporation/  Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting
Date of principal place interest held rights held
Name of entity establishment  of business by the Group by the Group Principal activity
FREERNER EEEREN
i1 A TEERBH 2REHLA FRLA TEXH
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020  2019%  2020F  2019F
Jingfu Coal (GEEEEHRERE June 27,1992 The PRC 30% 30% 30% 30%  Mining of coal
BRAR) (Note a)
BREESEREREERLAT 199266A27H  # BERR
(SERE) Hita)
Cangzhou Senxu Port Co. Ltd. May 9, 2016 The PRC 35% 35% 35% 35%  Port
(BINFBEBHERAT) (Note a) transportation
BMREABERRRWita) 201655090 & BOES
Pingxiang Risun Energy Limited December 21, The PRC 43% = 43% - Production
(EMBIZRRBRAR) (Note b) 2020 of coke
and coking
chemicals
B RRER AR WD) 2020F12A218 EEERMET
Efm
Pingxiang Anyuan Glass Co., Ltd December 21, The PRC 43% - 43% - Production of
(EMmRFRBERAF) (Note b) 2020 glasses
RBTLREBERA AW 2020612A21H EERE
Notes: Hiat -
a. The English translation of the names of the above associates are a. Rl A NCIE = Fy g S R g
for reference only. The official name of the entities are in Chinese. 2k  c FEMNERLTBEABX o
b. The Group have not injected the capital before December 31, b. REBR2020F12 431 BT
2020. & o
In the opinion of the Directors, none of the individual associates EED L HEEEHAATHAE

materially affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give
further details of the associates of the Group would, in the opinion
of the Directors, results in particulars of excessive length.

ENEEREEFEREARE - &
ERA - EIREAKEBRE QR
MERERERIBRILE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material:

REEE N R AR (&)

FEERIEABE NRIMARRER

Year ended December 31

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFr
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FEEBR) M REEFX)
(expense) income for the year L ONCEE (13,503) 48,929
Group’s share of (loss) profit of REBDOIEFERE QT
associates for the year (E518) 5 1) (4,688) 25,734
Dividends declared by associates FABE R E SRS
for the year - 101,734
21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. AEELENES
As at December 31
M12A31H
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Cost of investments FE R A 113,750 113,750
Share of post-acquisition profits and BB R EWRAR SR D1
other comprehensive income, net of W18 m T R E 2 E e
dividend received and receivable 1,241,825 1,116,681
1,355,575 1,230,431
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 21. RAEDEIERE

Details of joint ventures as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were as 20204 K 2019F 12 A31HA &%
follows: EFCNE

Country of

incorporation/  Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting

Date of principal place interest held rights held
Name of entity establishment  of business by the Group by the Group Principal activity
FEBRENER AEREBEN
1 A TEERBH 2RHLH RERLLA TEXH
2020 2019 2020 2019

2020F 20194 20205 20195

Hebei China Coal Risun Energy Limited ~ November 21, The PRC 45% 45% 45% 45%  Production
(“CNC Risun Energy”, formerly known 2003 of coke
as Hebei China Coal Risun Coking and coking
Limited) (74t /& BF5 82 5B R 12 7)) chemicals
(Notes a and ¢)

AP REGREERAR(TREE  2003F11A21H EERRRENE
] BTG ELER 0
ARl (Wratafic)

Hohhot Risun China Gas Energy Limited ~ June 15, 2018 The PRC 55% 55% 55% 55%  Production
(“Risun China Gas") of coke
(FRERRERRERERAT) and coking
(Notes b and c) chemicals

ARG R RBR AR 2018F6 /158 HE EEERRENE
([1BEAR ke ) (FEpAlc) 0

Notes: Kt

a. The Group, China Coal and Coke Holding Limited (“CNC Coke”), a. AEE  —EBILBE=ZFPEENL

an independent third party, and another independent third party, ERAREERB(FHEELD -
hold 45%, 45% and 10% equity interest in CNC Risun Energy, kE—2BUE=F  DRlEFEEF
respectively. Pursuant to the agreement dated January 1, 2007, HIBIG IR 45% AR HE « 45% A% HE
the Group has the right to appoint two out of five directors which is & 10%M& % - R#E2007F1 A1HE]
responsible for making decisions on the financing and operating VHHE  AEEEHEZEEREE
activities of CNC Risun Energy, where these decisions require a EFHHWE  AERPEBBEER
minimum resolution of two-third of the voting right of the board R E RS EEBELIRE - Mt
of directors. Accordingly, the Group and CNC Coke who is also ERAEFHEFGREL =D
entitled to appoint two directors share joint control over CNC EREEAERZBR At - K
Risun Energy. In this regard, CNC Risun Energy is accounted for as EERAGAERZEEIMEESNF
a joint venture of the Group. HEKREGIPEBE - Bt

T PRBEBERIAREENE

B

2020 F3}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

b. In September 2019, the Group injected cash of RMB68,750,000
into Risun China Gas in return for 55% equity interest in Risun
China Gas. Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group
has the right to appoint two out of five directors and the financial
decisions about financing and dividend activities of Risun China
Gas require unanimous consent of all the shareholders. In this
regard, Risun China Gas is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Group.

(o} The English translation of the name of the above joint ventures are
for reference only. The official name of the entities are in Chinese.

Summarized financial information of CNC Risun

21.

REEhENER &

Wiat - (&)
b. MR2019F 97 » AEEA B M

BERTER S ARME68,750,000
T+ LAEAS JBES R MR 88 TR 55 % B9 %
o RIBABERMA - XEEE
BZAREEEPHNE - BB
TERS R R BE R E A% BUE B Ay B
BREREZEREN—HRAE -
FUME - BIERRERY AAE
ErEERE-

A ECERRA B FEHR
2% BRNERABBA/T -

FERTBFG BE IR TS B R E

Energy
As at December 31,
A12831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTFT
Non-current assets EmBEE 3,087,885 2,715,121
Current assets MENEE 2,049,481 1,736,084
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 524,129 76,479
Current liabilities mEAaE 1,953,771 1,799,891
Net assets BEFE 2,659,466 2,574,835
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 21. REEENER @)

Summarized financial information of CNC Risun PR IBRERE RO AR B2
Energy (Continued) (%&)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: TR BEERABESBRENAT ¢

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREEEY 693,835 137,954
Current financial liabilities mEcRHEaBETeERES R
(excluding trade and other H b FE A FRIE R #)
payables and provisions) 588,539 555,442
Non-current financial liabilities FRBERAEBETREZEIR
(excluding trade and other Eoh T RUIE R B )
payables and provisions) 512,518 41,357
Year ended December 31
BZE12A31BHLLEE
2020 2019
202045 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Revenue g 4,981,444 6,859,104
Profit and total comprehensive FERNREAWGERE
income for the year 692,044 971,096
Dividends received from the joint venture WERE A &AL E 302,804 164,145
The above profit for the year includes LFIRFEENBEAT
the following:
Depreciation and amortization YT K N 201,169 229,744
Interest income FEWA 6,142 11,394
Interest expense FEMAX 81,955 24,101
Income tax expense FrS R 110,777 144,828
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information of CNC Risun

Energy (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in CNC Risun Energy recognized in

REeghREnERS (B
?Zj%ﬂﬂ&%ﬁiﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁ%%

bt B RS E R E B

RAEMBEHRR

PR R Y R B 1B 55 BE IR 4 a5 AR [ (B AY

the consolidated financial statements: HER -
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Net assets of CNC Risun Energy PR IBRG AR B E S E 2,659,466 2,574,835
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBENFEBIE 8RR e B R
interest in CNC Risun Energy Ednd ] 45% 45%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERFHBEEERA
interest in CNC Risun Energy HERERMEE 1,196,760 1,158,676

Summarized financial information of Risun China

JBFZ A RRE IR BT 5 E R 2

Gas
As at December 31,
M12H31H

2020 2019
202045 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EFIT AE¥TT
Non-current assets IERBEE 710,864 628,049
Current assets MENVEE 480,539 158,384
Non-current liabilities IEREAaE 460,249 477,249
Current liabilities mEAE 442,400 178,720
Net assets LEFE 288,754 130,464
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information of Risun China
Gas (Continued)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:

21. REELENERE

@@f?!ﬂfﬂ MRRER TS B2

PREERBESBEEIAT :

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TFT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREEEY 152,066 76,899
Non-current financial liabilities InRBeHEaECTREES
(excluding trade and other T Eh FE A< 5108 I )
payables and provisions) 460,249 477,249

Year ended December 31
BZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
202045 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Revenue g 1,811,930 95,377
Profit and total comprehensive FERNREAWGERE
income for the year 158,289 5,465
The above profit for the year includes the FiLFEEFIBFEIAT ¢
following:
Depreciation and amortization Pres Ry 63,395 14,939
Interest income FEUWA 807 16
Interest expense FEMAX 26,967 =
Income tax expense S i 31,609 =

2020 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information of Risun China

Gas (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Risun China Gas recognized in

the consolidated financial statements:

21. REELENER(E)

g§$%%ﬁ%%%§ﬂmg
BB AR E BN GRS B B RE

PO FE R Y 1B 5 MR BE IR 4 5 AR T (B AY
Ea)

As at December 31,

M12H31H

2020 2019

20204 2019%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT AREFT

Net assets of Risun China Gas JERS AR IR E & FE 288,754 130,464
Proportion of the Group’s ownership IR BB FG F HRBE TR EY

interest in Risun China Gas HEE RO 55% 55%
Carrying amount of the Group’s IS5 B R TR A HR BEIR B

interest in Risun China Gas HERERMEE 158,815 71,755

22. OTHER LONG TERM RECEIVABLES AND

Hitv REEBWHREAR AN RE

PREPAYMENTS
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT AREFT
Prepayments for property, plant and M - BB R BOHTERNRIE
equipment 395,690 211,920
Loan receivables (Note a) W E R (FiEa) 368,367 =
Deposits for right-of-use assets @)ﬂ EEENIRS 50,000 =
Deposits for operation management ERETERBNIES W)
services (Note b) 675,000 675,000
Deposits and prepayment for proposed ~ #tUEEI B A RIMNIEE &
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note b) TafIFRIE (K 5ED) 1,088,000 675,000
Others Hh 30,175 30,467
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (17,821) (4,233)
2,589,411 1,588,154
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

Re B RRNE(S

)
)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

22. OTHER LONG TERM RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

a.

As at December 31, 2020, loan receivable of RMB300,000,000
represents an entrusted loan to a third party through a licensed
financial institution, which carries interest at 5.75% and will be
matured in July 2023.

Since July 2019, the Group has been entrusted under an operation
management agreement by a local restructuring investor (the
“Lead Restructuring Investor”) together with an insolvency
administrator to provide operations management services for six
companies undergoing insolvency and restructuring proceedings
(the “Target Companies”) to ensure their continuous production
and operation. The Group paid a deposit of RMB675,000,000 for
the said services. Subsequently, a restructuring investor (the “Joint
Restructuring Investor”) acquired the Target Companies through
its 100% owned investing vehicle, Wuhu Shunri Xinze Equity
Investment Partnership (LP) (“Shunri Xinze”), and was assigned as
the joint restructuring investor by the Lead Restructuring Investor.

On September 12, 2019, the Group entered into a framework
agreement with the Joint Restructuring Investor for the
proposed acquisition of the Target Companies and deposited
RMB675,000,000 to secure preferential negotiation right over the
proposed acquisition for one year. Meanwhile, the Group, the
Joint Restructuring Investor, the Lead Restructuring Investor and
the Target Companies entered into a new entrusted operations
management agreement, pursuant to which the Group continues
to provide entrusted operation management services for the
Target Companies according to the decisions made by the Joint
Restructuring Investor. The deposits for operation management
services was transferred to the Joint Restructuring Investor by the
Lead Restructuring Investor.

On October 16, 2020, Risun Group Limited (“Risun Chemicals”,
formerly known as Risun Chemicals Limited), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an interests
transfer agreement with the Joint Restructuring Investor, the
general partner of Shunri Xinze (the “GP”) and Shunri Xinze,
pursuant to which Risun Chemicals will acquire the entire equity
interests in Shunri Xinze (the “Acquisition”). The total consideration
of the Acquisition is RMB4.91 billion, of which, RMB1.35 billion
will be settled by the deposits for operation management services
and deposits for proposed acquisition of subsidiaries, and the
remaining is payable by Risun Chemicals in installments, with the
last installment to be paid on or before September 15, 2024. On
December 23, 2020, the Group paid RMB413,000,000 to GP by
cash.

The Acquisition was completed on January 15, 2021 and detailed
in Note 45.

22.

a.

H = B R UCR
(lnﬁ)

Hikt -

SEDSSERNEN

HR2020%F12A31H » BREFAR
#300,000,000 L AA £ BB —R
HEcREEBETE=ZFNETE
o REROF LA 75% Wi
R2023%F7 AEIHE -

H2019F7 AR  AEBEIRE -
BEEERMREX —REMBARE
H(EEEEREEDIBRESEA
HHREZFE ﬁ/‘\%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ}gﬂi
wHERFOAR(TBEEARDREE

ERR LAEE(%E%’E%F%DL
o AKEER LR HiRe
AER#675,000,0007T ° BEfR @ &=
HIEEE(HMABHEKREE)BBHE
100%EENEETEKRET BIZA
Al EBIEREERERESRD
¥BRAB)(EEFE] - WigE
gé%ﬂtﬁﬁ%tﬁimﬁtéétﬁ&ﬁ

HR2019F9A 128 » AEER KK
BEEAREBESMEREEL
—BIERDH  YEMEEARE
675,000,0007T * LAER/S a% a8 g
R AH—FRESRKHE - ﬁﬁ% :
AEBE  BAEHARES -« ES

M EENRBIERARGINT — IE%E
METELTEDE Bt - A%
EREBASEAREENRTEE
REBARIRHEZETEZLEER
o BEEERENIKRESEOHER
BHREEE THARMIRES -

R2020F10A 168 » AR FIZME
BE2ENBAREHBERERAQR
(Mefs{ET] &5 : BELEIHE
RAR)EBAEEARES  JBAFH
BEBARBATEBEEADRIE
A¥ERI Y — R EERE &
&tt&ﬁ%ttﬂ%uﬁztﬁtlﬁEl%ﬁi%Z%%
MR (TZ Ui ) - sz Wi 2 s 1
BARKA910BT - Hf - BE E
BREMNZRERBEZWERBA
HZEESBAARKE13.5BTA H
FItgFIE A HBRB L TH B
H1% —HEN2024F98 1505~
Bt o 2020512 230 » A&
EREBEEBEARSINATARE
413,000,0007T °

ZWHEEED R2021F1A158 5%
B BRI E45.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL 23. BRAREFABRZNEHE
E/afE
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
2020%12H31H 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Non-current assets EMBEE
Listed equity securities (Note a) ETRAES Wita) 57,678 48,510
Unlisted equity investment (Note b) FE_EMRRAIRE (Hfith) 43,103 51,333
Private equity investment funds (Note ¢) FLER AR EES (Kis+c) 117,846 50,322
Wealth management product (Note d) VEBEEERH ) 32,411 71,940
251,038 222,105
Current assets MENEE
Futures contracts (Note e) HEALHWFe) 2,885 33
Held-for-trading non-derivative financial #{EEEIESTHE S RVEE
assets 5,290 10,492
8,175 10,525
Current liabilities REEE
Futures contracts (Note e) HEALH W iFe) (140) (1,866)
Derivative financial instruments-swaps T4 &€& T A — B8 (/20
(Note f) (52,189) -
(52,329) (1,866)
206,884 230,764
Notes: Hiit -
a. On September 22, 2017, the Group subscribed for 13,000,000 H a. R20179F9H228 » AEEEAE

shares of Henan Jinma Energy Company Limited as a cornerstone
investor. The fair value was RMB42,383,000 as at December 31,
2020 (2019: RMB48,510,000), and hence a loss of RMB6,127,000
(2019: a loss of RMB2,507,000) was recorded as change in
fair value of the listed equity securities during the year ended
December 31, 2020.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group purchased
22,716,000 H shares of China 21st Century Education Group
Limited. The fair value was RMB15,295,000 as at December
31, 2020, and hence a gain of RMB2,712,000 was recorded as
change in fair value of the listed equity securities during the year
ended December 31, 2020.
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EREERBIME HERERKRND
EBRAFAI13,000,0000HA R
2020128318 ' AREAAR
#42,383,00070(20194F : AR
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6,127,0007C (20194F : BSEARE
2,507,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ire SR (E

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

b.

The unlisted equity investments represent equity investments
in unlisted entities established in the PRC. The Group hold
9.05% equity interests in AHEEBREFAE (“Xi Gan Railway
Limited”). The fair value was RMB43,103,000 as at December 31,
2020 (2019: RMB51,333,000) and hence a loss of RMB8,230,000
(2019: a gain of RMB1,333,000) was recorded as a change in
fair value of the unlisted equity investment during the year ended
December 31, 2020. Details of the valuation technique and
significant unobservable inputs are set out in Note 39(i) to the
consolidated financial statements.

On June 27, 2019, the Group subscribed for 3% registered capital
of a private equity investment fund focusing on the modern
logistics industry as the limited partner. The initial investment
principal amounted to RMB50,000,000. The fair value was
RMB57,953,000 (2019: RMB50,322,000) as at December 31, 2020
and hence a gain of RMB7,631,000 (2019: RMB322,000) was
recorded as change in fair value of the private equity investment
fund during the year ended December 31, 2020.

On December 26, 2020, the Group subscribed for 9.09%
registered capital of a private equity investment fund focusing on
the reform of state-owned enterprises in Hebei Province as the
limited partner. The fair value as at December 31, 2020 was equal
to the initial investment principal amounting to RMB50,000,000.

23. RORNEFABEENERE
E/aEl@

Hiet - ()

b.

EEMBRAIREISE R EK LI
ITTERBOREAKLE - AEEH
ERHEBRAEREARARA(EEE
BAEREMEATI)I.05%ME - B
2020% 128318 AREAAR
#43,103,0007C (20194 : AR
51,333,0007T) * Ht - #Z=2020
F12A31ALFE  ELETHRA
RENAREZHHEHEBEBARE
8,230,0007C (20194 : sk AR
1,333,0007T) - EEBERERE
AT ERE A BB FBHRER
A BRI TES9()

R2019F6 270 » "NEBIEAAR
REBARBLERAEREES
H3%aFMER  ZESHFTRNE
ROmE - NEREREABARE
50,000,000 ° 2020412 A 31
B 2hBEAEARES57,953,0007T
(20194 : 50,322,0007T) * A »
HE2020F12A31HLFE «
ERAREESH AR BEEHEE
Y25 A R#7,631,0007T (20194F -
322,0007T) °

R20205F12A268 © KEBUER
AEAEDRBTALERELE
HEMLEREREESH.09%
FMEAR - R2020612H31H8 -
PRABEERVBEELAS ARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

d. On May 9, 2019, the Group subscribed for two non principal-
protected wealth management products from two asset
management companies with fair value of RMB71,940,000 as at
December 31, 2019. On May 9, 2020, the wealth management
products were liquidated. The Group received RMB69,891,000
and recognized a loss of RMB2,049,000 as change in fair value
during the year ended December 31, 2020.

On February 9, 2020, the Group subscribed for a non principal-
protected wealth management product from a licensed
trust company. The initial investment principal amounted to
RMB30,000,000. The fair value of the wealth management product
was RMB32,411,000 as at December 31, 2020, and hence a gain
of RMB2,411,000 was recorded as change in fair value of the
wealth management product during the year ended December 31,
2020.

e. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group entered
into certain futures contracts of coke, coking coal, and chemical
products with licensed futures trading companies to mitigate its
price risk associated with the coke, coking coal, and chemical
products sold without applying hedge accounting, and recognized
a gain of RMB76,671,000 arising on changes in fair value of these
financial instruments in the profit or loss during the year ended
December 31, 2020 (2019: RMB43,804,000).

f. The Group is exposed to exchange risk and interest rate risk
mainly arising from certain floating-rate bank loans denominated
in USD. To manage and mitigate the foreign exchange and
interest rate exposure, the Group entered into various swaps (the
“Swaps”) with certain financial institutions. As at December 31,
2020, the Swaps have total notional amounts of USD45,942,000
and RMB461,000,000, of which the maturity dates match to
the maturity dates of these banks loans. The Swaps are not
designated as hedging instruments. Accordingly, they are
classified and accounted for as financial instruments at FVTPL.
The fair value was RMB52,189,000 as at December 31, 2020 and
hence a unrealized losses of RMB52,189,000 and realized losses
of RMB17,479,000 was recorded as change in fair value during
the year ended December 31, 2020.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

24. DEFERRED TAX

24. RIERIIR

As at December 31,

M12H31H

2020 2019

20204 2019%F

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥FT AREFT

Deferred tax assets FEETRIAE E 187,787 202,242
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE (39,314) (36,151)

148,473 166,091

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

RAFEFBEFEAEE BRI
RERNELEHREE /(A RE)AKED

thereon during the current and prior years are as follows: SREBOT
Temporary
differences
on property, Fair value
plant and adjustment
equipment Impairment  on acquisition
Impairment and loss on ofa
losseson intangible Unused interestin subsidiary
receivables assets taxloss  an associate (Note) Others Total
RE
WiE-%
% BER R-5HE KRR
BUHE  REREW REAN AREE  DAERE
WHEEE BEUREE fEBE  WAEES W) ity a3t
AWB00 AWBO0O RUB 000 AWBU0O AWB0O AlBY0O RUBY0O
NEEFT  ANRETT  AREFT  ARETT AREFT ARETR AREFT
At January 1, 2019 R201961A18 28,776 176,591 4459 49221 (36,329) 1,659 224,383
(Charged)/credited to proft or loss (M) /4 ABR (14671) (61,168) (4459) 6,000 830 15,176 (58292)
At December 31, 2019 R2019512A317 14,105 115,423 - 55,227 (35,499) 16,835 166,091
Credited(charged) to profit or loss GA)/ThEER 655 (27.242) = = 830 8139 (17618)
At December 31, 2020 20205124318 14,760 88,181 - 55,227 (34,669) 24974 148473

Note: Deferred tax liabilities of fair value adjustment recognized by the
Group represented the fair value adjustment on right-of-use assets

arising from the business acquisitions.

Hret - AREHERNAAL(EHERTENRE
BEEHEBUBEENERESR
ENARERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

24. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The use of the tax losses is subjected to the agreement of the
tax authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax
legislation of the PRC. The unrecognized tax losses will expire
in five years after they are incurred. No deferred tax has been
recognized due to the unpredictability of future tax profit streams.
The unrecognized tax losses declared will expire in the following

24, JEEBE (&)

EAZEHABEAEHEHRERE
WETHREFRENE THRE - RER
BEBESREERAFAIE I

MR AT FRE - REERBIAEIE
RRATEERIE

years:

As at December 31,

M128318

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
2020 20204 - 264,052
2021 20214 209,202 209,202
2022 20224 187,436 187,436
2023 20234 11,577 11,577
2024 20244 78,789 78,789
2025 20254 174,566 -
661,570 751,056

As at December 31, 2020, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB125,214,000 (2019:
RMB79,581,000), which are mainly arising from unrealized profits
arising from a land transferred within the Group and impairment of
trade and other receivables of certain subsidiaries. No deferred
tax asset has been recognized in relation to such other deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available for offset against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from January 1, 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB6,382,884,000 as at December 31,
2020 (2019: RMB5,328,527,000), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

25. INVENTORIES

25.

FE

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
20204F 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Raw materials R 705,763 543,057
Finished goods BURK 237,954 186,442
Trading stocks BH5FE 403,760 234,180
Properties under development BRAPYE 159,906 =
1,507,383 963,679

Details of the pledged inventories are set out in note 42.

BB T ERFITHNHE42 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
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26. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI

26.

HA W RIE R A REFA
H2EWHEENE S BN

MERERERE
As at December 31,
M128318
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFr
Trade receivables measured at FVTOCI & AR EF AEMEE T2
KE B EGIE 541,495 381,893
Bills receivables measured at FVTOCI QA B AEMEZE RS2
BB IE 463,786 317,586
Trade and bills receivables measured  EAR BT AEMEEEET S
at FVTOCI RE 5 e GRIE K R IR IR 1,005,281 699,479
Prepayments for raw materials R R TELS RIR 1,153,479 677,109
Other deposits, prepayments and Hibize - FENRIBREME
other receivables U skIE 94,178 63,152
Loan receivables (Note) BRI (B 7E) 34,000 365,000
Receivables for relocation B EREMBKRIB R 7 16)
compensation (Note 16) 139,091 272,087
Receivables on behalf of third parties ERZGREBRRE=TE
as a trading agency U skIA 230,506 213,872
Deductible input Value Added Tax and AT #038 8 A B {E R K FE{T
prepaid other taxes and charges HibinE k&R 197,179 58,654
Less: impairment o RE (22,727) (49,347)
Other receivables HAtb e IR 1,825,706 1,600,527

Note: As at December 31, 2019, loan receivable of RMB300,000,000
represents an entrusted loan to a third party through a licensed
financial institution, which carries interest at 7.2% and settled in
July 2020.

As at 1 January 2019, trade and bill receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB3,179,295,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

The customers usually settle the sales by cash or bills. The credit
period granted to the customers who settle in cash is usually no
more than 30 days, interest free with no collateral. Aging of trade
receivables based on invoice dates, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, are as follows:

26.

HA W RIE R A REFA
Hi2EWHEENE S BN
MIER EWRE (&)

EFBEUNREIEBREEE@E
B ARAGTUREAEENTFH
EEHRETEIR30H (2RI K
) - REZEHHZIMNE FEUGK
TABREC (B AR FE s /e 3R B B R ) 1A
T

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFIT AEREFT
Within one month —EARA 399,913 364,889
1 to 3 months 123f@A 120,931 4,890
3 to 6 months 3Z6fEH 2,611 2,792
6 to 12 months 6= 121E A 18,040 9,322
541,495 381,893

No credit period is offered for sales to be settled by bills, carrying
interest at market rates. Bills receivable are bank acceptance notes
and the average aging based on the maturity date is from 90 days
to 360 days.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables are
set out in note 39.

BEREMEMNEFENRREEN
HERHKEED - BREBRRITA
AEE - BERIHRANFHRE—
AREI0KRZE360K °

ERE SRR R BB R BRER
HH)RHIE BN M EE39 ©
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ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

The following bills receivable as at December 31, 2020 and 2019
were transferred to banks or suppliers by discounting, pledging
to banks or endorsing those receivables on a full recourse basis.
As the Group has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to these receivables, it continues to recognize the
full carrying amounts of the receivables and the corresponding
liabilities are included in secured borrowings or trade payables,
whichever is appropriate. These financial assets are carried at
FVTOCI.

26.

HA W RIE R A REFA
Hi2EWHEENE S BN
MIER EWRE (&)

LATR RH220204F 22019512 431 HIE
BIRMEREEREEERR - KR
ZERRFATRITREEZSTRW
REMERETRITHEEBOREE
1 o R E I EEEZ SRR
HEBARER S R & O3 - KA
RERFEN2EREENREBEEE
FAABERERRE S ENRECAE
RERE) - ZELREERANEF
AEMEEE o

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#BTFT AREFr
Carrying amount of transferred assets D ##:EEERE(E 177,325 159,808
Carrying amount of associated payables A8E8 &~ fEr ZUB IR E(E
to suppliers (Note 29) (Hizt29) (177,325) (159,808)

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, bills receivable issued among
subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions have been
discounted with full recourse to secure bank borrowings amounting
RMB1,878,529,000 and RMB1,103,880,000 respectively, and these
bills receivable have been eliminated in these consolidated financial
statements (note 31).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS 26. HtEWFIE RAAEFA

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards relating to certain bills receivable
discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers even if the banks
and suppliers have the right of recourse. The Group’s obligations to
the corresponding counterparties were discharged in accordance
with the commercial practice in the PRC and the risk of the default
in payment of the endorsed and discounted bills receivable is
remote because all endorsed and discounted bills receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable banks in the PRC. As a
result, the relevant assets and liabilities were derecognized and
no longer included in the consolidated financial statements. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the default of
these endorsed and discounted bills receivable at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

Htt2EWETENE SR
MIER EWRE (&)

RBERR - AEBCEERFREET
R TROKEETHEBOEREE
REBA AR Bk K [ R (AL R
HEBAERE) - AREHHEERR
SHFNEHCDHRPBEHEELIR
B EE5ERCHRBEEENNK
BHORBRSHMTEN ERMALEE
ENCHREURERATEAEE
MERITHITMER - Bt - HEEE
REEERIBRETHBENREGS
FmERD  NEREHR - AEE
AZEEEEREMBARKREREZY
AR R HH S AR

As at December 31,

M12H31H

2020 2019

20204 2019%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARETFT

Discounted bills for raising cash EAREBRNEERS 623,448 370,118
Endorsed bills for settlement of payables B & &2 iR AE N EAEER

to suppliers ERE] 2,663,339 2,482,855
Outstanding endorsed and discounted ~ BEAEBREM MRS EE

bills receivable with recourse B BhIR I R 3,286,787 2,852,973

The outstanding endorsed and discounted bills receivable will be
matured within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

HAZHMHEEERCSURRERE
1B ARG HARR12EANDE -
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ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

27. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 27. ZMRHIBITEER
The carrying amounts of the Group’s restricted bank balances ARERAESESEABNASEER
placed to secure various liabilities of the Group are as follows: MREIRITAEERAAREEN T -

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARBFIT
Restricted bank balances to secure; BROZRBIRITAEE -
Bills payable and letters of credit (Note) — FERN i R A= A& (Wit) 935,865 814,725
Bank loans RITER 112,245 139,721
Letter of guarantee REK 35,402 =
Futures contracts HEEH 211,144 119,301
1,294,656 1,073,747
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: AITEZHRAE ¢
Current assets MENEE 1,294,656 1,073,747
Note: Certain restricted bank balance were placed to secure bills issued et - BHZBEIRITHEBRARERLRE
among subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions EMEARBEEARRMERSE
which have been discounted with full recourse to secure bank PHER  ZEEREBEETMHER -
borrowings of RMB1,878,529,000 and RMB1,103,880,000 as at ME2EERE - LAR20205F Kk
December 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively. Further details of 2019412 531 H 5 RIIEMAE A
which are set out in notes 26 and 31 respectively. R#1,878,529,000t X A R
1,103,880,0007T I IRTIE K ° H
E— T HBHRMT26 K31 -
Restricted bank balances are deposited with banks mainly in the ZREBITEBREBSFERNP AR
PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to 7 MELFBENESAEZPBEENT
the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government. These FEANEIBE SRR FIFTHRIR « ZFRITIF
bank deposits carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.30% to FIRTIS R EEE - 2020512 A31
1.75% per annum as at December 31, 2020 (2019: 0.30% t0 2.10%). HREFR XN T0.30%E1.75% (2019

F :0.30%E2.10%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. RERATEEY
Bank balances, included bank deposits, carried interest at market MR2020F12A31H  iR1TKEH (B
interest rate ranging from 0.3% to 0.385% (2019: from 0.35% to BITFRORMISHENTEF0.3%E
0.40%) per annum as at December 31, 2020. Bank balances and 0.385%(20194F : 0.35%%£0.40%) 5T
cash as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were mainly denominated B o 120204 201912 A31 H iR
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the international THEBERBSTZUAREHE - A
market and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject REVIEBEEMS EERLBENE
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government. B mMzEESELPRAZHRHIK

168 0 ) BEE S PR Al

Denominated in the currency other than the functional currency of NS EERO TSI E
relevant group entities: *EEHE -

As at December 31,

A12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT
United States Dollars (“USD”) Ey(E=v)) 69,797 5,722
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) (bl ) 6,896 42,495
Others (Note) HAb (H72E) 1,621 175
78,314 48,392
Note: Others mainly contain Euro (‘EUR”) and Japanese Yen (“JPY”) BeE: HEaFEREET(EIT) - BT
and RMB. BT RARE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. EFREMENSRE

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFr
Trade payables B S ENRIE 892,193 1,249,686
Payables to be settled by the endorsed A EEIZIE(EE M E B

bills receivable (Note 26) (Hi#t2e6) 177,325 159,808
Bills payable R 549,513 458,236
Payables on behalf of third partiesasa {EARSRIERERE=T

trading agency e ER 883,222 357,546
Payables for construction in progress T IRENFRIA 794,695 469,739
Other tax payables HEAHIR 181,119 89,954
Other payables and accruals HAth fET FIE R FEET B A 319,995 266,259
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DITESWMAE -

Current liabilities mEEE 3,798,062 3,051,228
All trade and other payables are due within one year. The average FIEESREMERNFIEZR —FA
credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to 90 days. FE - BEMMMTHEERAIE

90K
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based on the IRTTIREREHRZEZEHNE
invoice date at the end of each reporting period: SERFRIBRE DT -
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFT AREFT
Within 3 months 3EAN 744,673 928,177
3 to 6 months 3%61EA 69,487 109,434
6 to 12 months 6z 121E A 29,672 111,619
1-2years 1224 15,040 62,155
2 -3 years 2E3F 14,339 18,103
More than 3 years 3FA L 18,982 20,198
892,193 1,249,686
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. EWEE
Contract liabilities primarily represent advance from customers AHEBFEREASERRNER
when the Group receives payments in advance of the delivery of TE WA RO 2R B B P ) B R TR AR
products, and are expected to be settled within one year. For the —FRNEE - YHR2019F1/81H K
contract liabilities as at January 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019, 2019F12A31EME N AE - 2E4
the entire balances were recognized as revenue to profit or loss in MRET—EARSFERERTERA
the next reporting year. 25 o
As at January 1, 2019, contract liabilities amounted to R20195F1A1H - GHEERARK
RMB1,074,689,000. 1,074,689,0007T °

31. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 31. RITRHEMER
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank and other loans is as RITRAEMEREREI AT
follows:

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARTFT
Bank loans IRITER
Secured [REEw 3,550,270 3,146,812
Unsecured diigt 3,648,967 2,981,503
Other loans EmER
Secured [z 1,146,306 1,090,296
Unsecured diigtl 273,662 337,147
Discounted bills financing (Note 26) AR RIBEE (H77726)
— Discounted bills receivable from —REARRRMBEARN
subsidiaries of the Company ALIR R 5 1,878,529 1,103,880
10,497,734 8,659,638
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For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

(&)

31. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

At the end of each reporting period, the bank and other loans were
repayable as follows:

31.

RITREMERE)

REBREHR  RITREBEREAT
EEROT

=

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT ARETFT
Within 1 year 1FR 7,771,801 7,290,471
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A H{B2FR 1,654,784 1,049,375
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA HBSFR 1,021,149 319,792
More than 5 years 5% 50,000 =
10,497,734 8,659,638

Analyzed for reporting purpose as: AITE2WAS

Current liabilities mENAE 7,771,801 7,290,471
Non-current liabilities EmBAE 2,725,933 1,369,167
10,497,734 8,659,638

Bank and other borrowings denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of respective entities are set out below:

NEBRNNEERUINNERFTE
HERTT R EL ML ERREFIT

As at December 31,

A12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFT
usD E 757,314 1,424,685
EUR Bt - 116,987

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 31. RITREMERK(E)
The carrying amount of the bank and other borrowings and the AT R H AL B A AR E E RN R &
range of interest rates are as below: PN
As at December 31,
R12A318
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 % RMB000 %

AR¥TT % ANREFT %
Fixed rate bank and other borrowings TEERITREMBER 7,295400  2.99~12.00 5,302,791 1.50-12.00
Floating rate bank and other borrowings FRIRITREMER 3,202,334  2.89~11.40 3,356,847 351-11.70

10,497,734 8,659,638

The Group’s variable-rate borrowings carry interest at LIBOR.
Interest is reset every month.

The secured other loans represent mortgage loans from the
licensed finance companies secured by property, plant and
equipment and right-of use assets, as well as loans from licensed
financial institutions secured by the Group’s bank deposits.

Details of the assets pledged for securing the banking facilities of
the Group are set out in Note 42.

Except for the bank and other loans guaranteed by the related
parties as detailed in note 37(d), a Group’s bank loan of
RMB30,000,000 as at December 31, 2019 is fully guaranteed by an
independent company, and in the meantime, the Group provides
counter guarantee to the independent company for this bank loan.

RE BT AR RBERITR ZES
EMEETE - FIEBAETEER -

BEEAHEMERIEUYE  BERH
BRERAEEEFEROFRIBER
BRIBER  URUAEBERITER
RIS SR ER -

REESEBISRITREMERMAE
ERFIBEN M RE42 o

BREE A ERORITEEMERGE
BEHRMIFE37(d)) I - B2019F 12
A31HMAEEEITERARE
30,000,0007TH — KRB A A2 P&
R AR AEERZRITERME
T REIRHRIER o
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ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HEAE
Lease liabilities payables: HEBERNRIE :

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT AREFT
Within one year —FR 27,790 19,885
Within a period of more than one year 1E A E{E2F A
but not more than two years 12,705 20,825
Within a period of more than two years 2 LA E{H5F R
but not more than five years 24,545 5,359
After 5 years 5% E 4,486 =
69,526 46,069
Less: Amount due for settlement within & : 7B & EHE ~NER
12 months shown under current 12 ARNEEN S5
liabilities (27,790) (19,885)
Amount due for settlement after FERBEEIE TEM2E AR
12 months shown under non-current BHNeR
liabilities 41,736 26,184
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease ERAREEA BN METIIIEEERN
liabilities range from 4.63% to 5.35% (2019: 4.63%). FRENT4.63%%5.35% (20194 :

4.63%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. DEFERRED INCOME

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

33. EEWA

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31B8LLEE

2020 2019
2020F 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFT
Government grant related to assets REFELE B B B U B
at the beginning of the year 85,932 74,050
Additions NE 9,776 17,661
Released to profit or loss i (6,428) (5,779)
At the end of the year REFER 89,280 85,932
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: AITEE2 WA ST
Current liabilities BB EGT AEMERFRIE)
(included in other payables) 7,628 5,911
Non-current liabilities EmBAalE 81,652 80,021
89,280 85,932

Deferred income arising from government grants relating to assets
represents the government subsidies obtained in relation to the
purchase of the land use rights and the infrastructure construction,
which was included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income and credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant

depreciable assets.

B ER B A BT B E AR E W
AEEREE T i AR R AR
ERATEBFHE - REA BN
RARINBBEERA - NEREER
BRI T E B ER TR A 28 F HE
ANFEBaREMEEWER o
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ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
As at December 31, As at December 31,
W12A318 R12A31A
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 2019% 20204 20194
Number of Number of
shares Shares HKD’000 HKD000
RiEE RiEE FET FAT
Authorised EE
Shares of HKD0.10 each FHR010B TR
Authorized ordinary shares: EEL AR -
At beginning and end of the year FOREXR 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid of ERTRBEERER
ordinary shares:
At the beginning of the year F1 4,090,000,000 962,718,524 409,000 96,272
Shares issued (Note a) BETRN Wita) - 690,000,000 - 69,000
Capitalisation of shares (Note a) RV ER L (Wita) - 2,437,281,476 - 243728
At the end of the year FER 4,090,000,000  4,090,000,000 409,000 409,000

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRB¥TFT AREFT

Presented in the consolidated statement WA F SRR KR 255
of financial position as:

At the beginning of the year F9) 354,699 87,123
Share issued BTG, - 59,028
Capitalisation of shares (Note a) BB B ita) - 208,548
At the end of the year FR 354,699 354,699
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Note:

a. On March 15, 2019 and April 4, 2019, the Company issued a total
of 600,000,000 ordinary shares and 90,000,000 overallotment
ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each at HKD2.80 each for cash by
way of public offer (“Public Offer”). Based on the offer price of
HKD2.80 per share, the gross proceeds received by the Company
was HKD1,932,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,648,931,000). Upon
listing of the Company’s shares and pursuant to the written
resolution of the shareholders passed on February 20, 2019, the
capitalization of HKD243,728,000 (equivalent to RMB208,548,000)
out of the share premium account of the Company in paying up
in full at par 2,437,281,476 shares for allotment and issue to the
qualifying shareholders of the Company.

35. RESERVES

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amount included in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
group reorganization, accounted for as capital contribution from
ultimate holding company under merger basis of accounting.

Reserve fund

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries require the
appropriation of 10% of their profit after tax each year, based on
their statutory audited financial statements, to the reserve fund until
the balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
PRC subsidiaries. The reserve fund may be capitalized as the paid-
in capital of these subsidiaries.

34.

35.

[ ENC))
At

a. M201943A15H K201944 A4
B AXFAARAME (AR
EDNFRIRESEBR2.80BTEH
%%17600,000,0008% &% E H0. 175
JCHYE 3B A% 52 90,000,0000% & i @
B0 1B LM BER B LR - ERN
FR2.80B THEERE - ARFIR
SRS IAHE A1,932,000,000
BT(HHERAR1,648,931,000
JL) e RARRRMN EHiERIRIE
R MR2019F2 A20H@EBHEM
RER - BAR BRI ERF
243,728,000 T (HHERARE
208,548,0007T) & A1k LUR B &
B 2,437,281, 476 AX1D - LA
BRBITTFARRAEEBIE -

G
Wt (E

RIEFSHERRDEEER]D @ 5TAR
AERMEERTHAEEADIRT A
RAEIBR - AR R EREEHE D RS
AHRARRSBENEREXKB
EPEESIEMET -

& G

AOtREEEAARCHITRARESR
REASESEMKREHRBLR A
BEAZBNER REBAHSEE
VERBRENEIR R RIENEEAER

RREES

ETHEMBARNAMSEZMANE
KEFREBEEAELBRVBERRA
HBRBERFA10%BABEES -
BHEGEDEE S B E R T
BARME0% © EBHEE T ENMERZ
EMBRARNBERER -
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For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

35.

36.

RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Safety fund

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulation, the Group is required to
transfer 1.5% on revenue generated from the core business into a
designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and repair
and maintenance of safety facilities. The movements in the reporting
periods represent the difference between the amounts provided
based on the relevant PRC regulation and the amount utilized
during the year.

Other reserve

The other reserve comprises the accumulated changes in the
carrying amount of financial assets measured at FVTOCI and all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations with functional currency
other than RMB.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organized by the PRC
municipal government authorities whereby the Group is required
to make contributions to the Schemes based on applicable rates.
The municipal government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HKD1,500. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37. ML RS N&ERR

BALANCES
During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, transactions REZE2020%F %2019F12 A31H I F
with the following parties are considered to be related party B BUTEINRSHER S

transactions:

X5 :

Name of related party

Loyt

Relationship with the Group
HAS BN EE

Mr. Yang Xuegang
BEEELE

Xuyang Holding (Note) (JEIZ1ERE B R A F])
MBZER B R AR (ML)

Risun Supply Chain Management Limited (Note) (JBRG (L fESRE IR AR AR,
formerly known as Risun Mining Co., Ltd. (AiTB/BIZTRE AR A 7))
MBS EEE IR B R AR M) BB EEERAR)

Beijing Risun Science and Technology Limited (Note)
(At R BEREEBR AR, formerly known as Beijing Risun Chemicals
Technology and Research Limited
(ATREIE RIBRS L TR AR B IR 2 )

1R R IR 2 B (H7a2) (RIS L R BFS L TR B IR A R))

Xingtai Xuyang Technology Co,. Ltd. (Note) (T & 1BEE RSB R A B))
A BIEREER AR @2

Dingzhou Risun Technology Co,. Ltd (Note) (FE MBI EHE B IR A7)
MBS RE AR AR (H5E)

Xuyang Engineering Co,. Ltd. (Note) (1B T2 B R A&, formerly known as
Hebei Xuyang Engineering Design Co,. Ltd. (A3t 1BIS T2 5 AR A F)
JERS TR AR B (47:2) (RiRE A L o ks TR R AR AR

Risun Chemicals Technology Research Co., Ltd. (Note)
(TBR L BT R B R A )
MBS L ER MR T AR R R (H/72)

Xingtai Tianlu Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd. (Note)
(MaXEFHMEREARAT)
MaREFHMEREBRAT W)

Pingdingshan Xingyu New Material Co., Ltd. (Note)
(“Pingdingshan Xingyu”) (FIEILEF B R R F)
T EFE AR DB (H37)

Director and the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder

EENERERBR

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
)

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
e

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

BB

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
)

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
)

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
e
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
)
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
)
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

F 5 S T AR

2020 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

37. BEA RS RA&ER(GHE)

Name of related party
BAE T B

Relationship with the Group
B EEHEE

Tangshan Risun Petroleum & Chemicals Co,. Ltd. (Note)
(BMBSAm{E TARRE)
EILBE AR TR AR @)

Dingzhou Risun Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd. (Note)
(ENBFS B EF 2 AR A 8], formerly known as Dingzhou Tianlu Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (BITBEMAEFE HEREERAF))

MBS E M EREER DR Z) GiEEMNRER EREERAR)

Hebei China Coal Risun Energy Limited (Note) (“CNC Risun Energy”,
formerly known as Hebei China Coal Risun Coking Limited)
(bR RERER AT, AL REERECARAR)

AR R BRE BER B R A R (5 i) (RTis A b BB IS S L B IR A )

Huhhot Risun China Gas Energy Limited (Note)
(“Risun China Gas”) (W& B R REERAR A )
RS RIS IRAEIRE R A R (A2) (B HIRRER])

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited (Note)
(“Jinniu Risun Chemicals”) (At &+ B L THR A R])
AL EEE TER AR W) (248 T

Cabot Risun Chemicals (Xingtai) Co. Ltd. (Note)
(“Cabot Risun Chemicals”) (R1BH B T(F &) AR A7)
REERSE A AR AR ) (REFBEL L)

Yangmei Group Shouyang Jingfu Coal Co., Ltd. (Note) (“Jingfu Coal”)
(CREESEREREERAF)
GESESEREREERARMD) (REKE]D

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
155 i 50 A 1

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

e e

Joint venture of the Group

AEBWAE

o)
>

¥
Joint venture of the Group

AEENRE

il
g

¥
Associate of the Group
AEETBE QT
Associate of the Group
AEETBE QT
Associate of the Group

AL BB E DA

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of these entities are in Chinese.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37. A RS RERE)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

The Group entered into the following material related party AEEFLTUATER@B RS :

transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEEABEMM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, FEBEEEBABHHH(E
including amounts paid to the Directors and the other highest 12 BEE N EE R EAM
paid employee as disclosed in note 12, is as follows: EaFEENTINAT

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A3108LLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFT AREFT

Short-term employee benefits e EE B BT 19,757 18,796

Post-employment benefits & BB IREF] 46 316

19,803 19,112
Key management represents the Directors and other senior FEERABBEZERAEEH
management personnel of the Group. The remuneration of key BREEAE - XEEEASB
management is determined with reference to the performance B3N IR R AR R [ KR (B A B2

of the Group and the individuals. MEFE ©

2020 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties

37.

B S R 5 R A eR ()

(b) BT S

Year ended December 31,
HZE12A310ILEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARHFr
Purchases of goods from BEEm
— related parties controlled by — MBS E AR
Mr. Yang Xuegang 89,247 4,640
— CNC Risun Energy — R BI5EEIR 460,896 729,044
- Jinniu Risun Chemicals — 24 EEET 28,519 39,059
- Risun China Gas — B REER 80,699 516
Sales of goods to HEEMm
— CNC Risun Energy — PR IER LR 686,194 75,180
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals —®4BEEET 6,129 830
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RIEEFBEEET 197,939 502,321
- Risun China Gas —JBESH BRBEIR 374,482 25,181
Construction service from AR
— related parties controlled by — 155 [ 2 A1 I A R s
Mr. Yang Xuegang 317,286 200,054
Other services from HAb AR 7S
— related parties controlled by — MBS E L EEHIR R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 1,964 -
- Risun China Gas —TERGHREEIR - 390
Provision of service to R
— related parties controlled by — 15 S e 5 A P I A RE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 328 =
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RERERET 831 762
— CNC Risun Energy — R BR5EEIR - 1,904
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — &4 Bt T - 305
- Risun China Gas —JBESH REEIR 11,414 =
Transfer of right-of use assets to ~ E:EFREEE
— CNC Risun Energy — R BR5RETR 55,329 1,222
Rental income from MU A
— related parties controlled by — 155 [ 2 A1 I A B s
Mr. Yang Xuegang 1,188 441
~ CNC Risun Energy — R BRS ALR 1,133 1,411

The above related party transactions were conducted in
accordance with terms of the relevant agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37. AR RERE
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (c) FAREESH A&
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had the REREHR - NEB B
following balances with related parties: BVAEERINT -

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TFT ARETFT
Amounts due from related parties FEURBIHE T FE
Dividend receivable FEURAR B,
— CNC Risun Energy — BB BE IR 102,335 131,804
Trade nature Bo5ME
— related parties controlled by — 15 [ ST A R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 10,402 351
— CNC Risun Energy —HE G R R 15,524 11,268
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RE&BESET 5,084 6,884
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals —&4BEtT 32 44
— Risun China Gas — TBR5 PR BE IR 235,369 17,892
266,411 36,439
Impairment under ECL model TRHEEEERANRE (1,029) (590)
Analyzed for reporting purposes as:  DATER R ¢
Current assets BERER 367,717 167,653

2020 Fi#R 251
PEEREEERRA R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37.
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Balances with related parties (Continued)

Aging of amounts due from related parties-trade nature net of
allowance for credit losses are as follows:

B S R 5 R A eR ()

(c) EAREEETT MR (E)

FE M RA B 7T B 5 1 B SR 0R (B kR
EEEEREREDT

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT ARETFT
Within one month —@AR 240,705 22,073
1 to 3 months 1238 A8 11,331 11,446
4 to 6 months 4% 618 A 7,590 =
6 to 12 months 6Z&121E A 5,756 2,330
265,382 35,849

The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended
December 31, 2020 in respect of the amounts due
from companies controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang are

RMB21,175,000 (2019: RMB469,950,000).

HE2020F12A31HILFE -
FEWIG T k£ A AR
ENEaAEESHEAARYE
21,175,0007C (20194 : AR
469,950,0007T) °

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFT ARBTT
Amounts due to related parties FE{S BREE 5 FE
Trade nature 2518
— CNC Risun Energy — R BB BE IR 36,545 241,793
— related parties controlled by — 155 ST A R IR B
Mr. Yang Xuegang 103,090 37,483
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —REREEET 27,298 51,395
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — &4 BB ET 1,073 7,395
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: D HTEZRAR ¢
Current liabilities REBBE 168,006 338,066
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Balances with related parties (Continued)

Aging of amounts due to related parties-trade nature are as

follows:

37. MBI RS k&R (GHE)

(c) EAREEETT MR (E)

FERTRARE 5 B 51 E FRIBRRE 1A
™

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT ARETFT
Within one month —@AR 146,598 122,513
1 to 3 months 1Z£3fE A 11,150 93,090
3 to 6 months 3%61EA 1,469 113,877
6 to 12 months 62 121E A 1,355 1,315
1-2 years 1526 3,180 5,791
2-3 years 2E3F 4,254 1,480
168,006 338,066

All amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

At the end of the each reporting period, the maximum
liabilities of the Group under guarantees issued to banks in
respect of banking facilities granted to a joint venture were as

follows:

P76 RN,/ A RRESE 7 SR R R
B 2B RBRERERE -

(d) REREPR - RRTF—REE
CEMRITREMBITEHORE
R AEENRSRENT

As at December 31,

Financial guarantees issued to

a joint venture

[—RAEDEEHNPBHRER

A12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥EFIT AR BFor
1,280,000 980,000

2020 F 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(d) (Continued)

As at December 31, 2020, the above guaranteed facilities
utilized by the joint venture were RMB965,470,000 (2019:
RMB334,968,000). In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group were
insignificant at the date of issue of the financial guarantee
and no provision is necessary at the end of each reporting
period taking into account the solid credit rating, reliable
cashflows, stable earnings and healthy financial position of
the joint venture. Hence the Directors consider that a claim to
be made against the Group under any of these guarantees is
remote.

(e) During the year ended December 31, 2020, two subsidiaries
of the Company and CNC Risun Energy entered into a deed
of assignment pursuant to which the dividend receivable of
RMB171,000,000 due from CNC Risun Energy was offset
against the same amounts due to CNC Risun Energy.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, two subsidiaries
of the Company, certain related parties controlled by Mr.
Yang Xuegang and a third-party creditor of the Group entered
into deeds of assignment pursuant to which an amount of
RMB109,077,000 owed by the Group to the creditor was
assigned and offset against the amounts due from related
parties. Accordingly, the Group derecognized payables for
construction in progress of RMB109,077,000 and the amounts
due from related parties of RMB109,077,000. The remaining
non-trade amounts due from related parties controlled by Mr.
Yang Xuegang were fully settled by cash.

In addition, Xuyang Holding and a Group’s subsidiary entered
into a deed of assignment pursuant to which the amount
due from Jingfu Coal amounting to RMB30,900,000 was
transferred to Xuyang Holding, and Xuyang Holding settled
the payable to the Group amounting to RMB30,900,000 by
cash on January 28, 2019.
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37. MBI RS k&R (GHE)

(d)

(%B&)
R2020%F12A318 - A%
FHMNEHERBEAARE
965,470,0007C (20194 : AR
#334,968,0007T) - EERAE
R BERELBE  AREEH
BERENHAAETEKR + B
BEMER  CEBEAEERE
E®ERATEL - TEHRSR -
1B E Mk ek R i B /9 B IS AR A9
AR ERBRE TEB T
BREE - B AERREE -
It BEERAAEETKAER
il RERMERE -

EZE2020F 128318 ILFE -
RNARIAR KB R =8P NBES
BEIRET S — D EEREIIE - Bt
PR BIG RE R IE KR B B AR EE
171,000,0007T * LAIK S5 FEAS AR
FBIGEERRIBM MRS58

EZE2019F 128318 IHFE -
ARARMRMBAR - BGE
ERAEEFINE TS RN
EE-—EZFEZHEEATNE
REE B AEEEMNE
BEALEAARE109,077,000
TLRIFRIBE Bk & K 5H FE U
Bt RIE - Bt - AEBEKRIE
HREEIRENFEARE
109,077,0007T K & Uy B8 5t 5 5k
BARM109,077,0007T © 82 F
B HHEENRBBISEELE
TH B S RBEAIRE 2 E

3z
Fp= g

BESh - B RS 1R AR B A SR B — K Y
BRAFIY—HEEZE &
I BREREEEFEARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’'s primary objectives of managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Based on recommendations of the board of directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issuing of new shares, raising
new debt financing or selling assets to reduce debt. During the
reporting period, there were no changes in the objectives, policies
Or processes.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position. The
Group’s strategy was to maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there was adequate working capital to service
its debt obligation.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial

assets and financial liabilities at the end of each reporting period
are set out as follows:

38.

39.

BEXEHE

AEEEEEANTIZEANEHER
FAEKEMRES  EMEEERER
BAERARGRE  BERBRRE
R S A EADF 0 E R AR o

AEEEEBLERBINEELERN
R DNEGAFBRREFOKTEARES
RER IR B FREVS T - WERET
RIEEERNREARBELRHE -

REEESEE  AEESEBAE
AR S S - BITHAR
EETEBREIHEERENRDE
B BUTEHEEREARERE - RR
EHA YEFHEE  BORHE
B o

AEEFBLEHBEB R RERE
Ko NEBMM KRS BISENREEE
BIE—ETEHOLE - WHEES R
W LBE S EBHET -
E@MTA

TRIAEDE

UTEEREHEERSBABNE
BEMRNREESRTILT

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TF T AREFT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEABENEREE 259,213 232,630
Trade and bills receivables measured BARBEFAEMEZEKEE
at FVTOCI KE 5 e IERTE K R N EE 5 1,005,281 699,479
Financial assets at amortized cost HHEK AT ENSRERE 3,498,782 4,507,954
Financial liabilities A= y=Ri
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BEAREFABSEHNERHAE 52,329 1,866
Financial liabilities at amortized cost RHEK AT ENSRAE 14,102,647 11,822,936
2020 &3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL, trade and bills receivables measured at FVTOCI, other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, other long-term
receivables, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
financial liabilities at FVTPL, trade and other payables, amounts
due to related parties, and bank and other loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
financial instruments. These financial instruments issued at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group does not
have any specific interest rate policy except that the Group would
regularly review the market interest rates to capture the potential
opportunities to reduce the cost of borrowings. Accordingly, the
Group will enter into interest rate swap arrangement to mitigate the
interest rate risks if appropriate.

0] Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
fixed-rate bank and other loans (see note 31 for details).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
bank deposits and bank and other loans at floating interest
rates. To manage and mitigate the interest rate exposure,
the Group entered into three Swaps with certain financial
institutions. The management will continue to consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) was based on the exposure to interest rate for the
floating-rate bank deposits and bank and other loans,
assuming that these financial assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole relevant period. If a 25 basis point increase or
decrease in variable-rate bank deposits and a 100 basis point
increase or decrease in variable-rate borrowing are used,
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
after taxation would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB21,447,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020 (2019:
RMB21,230,000).

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank
balances and bank and other loans that are denominated in foreign
currency, i.e. currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily USD, EUR and HKD. To minimise this risk, the
Group enters into two Swaps with certain financial institutions to
manage the Group’s exposure in relation to the partial USD loans.

39.

SRMIAG@E

T R B IR B AR R ()

s E R ()
(i) JRenEFERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after taxation (and retained profits) that would arise if

foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,

SRMIAG@E

T R B IR B AR R ()

5 Lk ()
EH¥ERE)

FRIRAEORB LT (RRE
EFDE WARER G S MAFEER
AR 05N B R % B H R R BT
o e BV 2 ) (IR AR £ LI 2 BT

assuming all other risk variables remained constant. £) o
Year ended December 31,
HZ12A%ALEE
2020 2019
20205 20195
Increase/ (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) increase Increase/ increase
in foreign in profit (decrease) in profit
exchange after tax and in foreign after tax and
rates  retained profits  exchange rates retained profits
HEER REER HMEER FREBEA
gm/ (B2 (RD),/ & 20/ () (R)/ %8
RIB 000 RMB000
AREFR ANEHFT
UsD I 5% (23,945) 5% (53.210)
Others =4 5% 340 5% (2,994)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the end of each
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
in listed equity securities. The Directors do not implement specific
measurements to mitigate the price risk. If the market price of the
listed equity securities increased or decreased by 5%, the Group
would recognize additional gains or losses of RMB2,884,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2020 (2019: RMB2,426,000).

The Group’s commodity price risk is mainly concentrated on
fluctuations in the prevailing market price of coke, coal, and refined
chemical products which are the major commodities purchased,
produced and sold by the Group. To minimize this risk, the Group
enters into future contracts to manage the Group’s exposure in
relation to forecasted sales of products, forecasted purchase
of raw materials and inventories. The impact of price change of
future contracts are insignificant as there have been no material
outstanding future contracts at the end of each reporting periods.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to other long term receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted bank
balances and cash and cash equivalents. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts.

At the end of each reporting period, other than financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk arising from the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees
provided by the Group to the related parties is disclosed in note
37(d).

SRMIAG@E
T R B IR B AR R ()

5 Lk ()
HALEE R

AEBREEN EMBRAESFHIEE M
Ehh$ﬁﬂﬂm°§$ﬁ%ﬁmﬂ
AR ER AR o i EmRA
ﬁﬁMmFtﬂ&Tﬁﬁ%vW$ﬁl
REZE2020F12 A31 A L FEHREE
SN R A AR 2,884,0000T
(2019%F : ARR#52 426,0007T) °

AEENERERRREIZRAKE
BE LERHENTIEBRER
ﬂﬁ&%%tIEﬁMEﬁﬁﬁﬁ@
Rk - REEREIRERE - AEEF
4%& %u BEAKEBRBRAE
m%%*ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ&Témﬂ

c HRBWMEHRRLERTKNE
Kﬂﬁé% %TQ%FW%QW
428 /%T}i

EERBANBER G

FEERBEASERZHFIEITH
EHETMGEAEESRUBEERZ
Eff c AREBHEERBREIEZREH
@E%%W%E E@%W%E Z
SREWGIE R W EE - IR R
ZRAERITEBRIANIE S RIR
SEHEEY - AEBIWESE T KT
M EMEE LRI U REL SR
BERVEERGOBBEERR -

RERERR  BREBRMAERERE
BAGERBROSHREEN  A5E
T B 1 BB 3 5 B 5 (B ) R B 5 S
W BERNIABESEMEEN
SEAEERBREMTEI7(d)F HKE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group mainly conducted transactions with customers with good
quality and long term relationship, when accepting new customers,
the Group requests advanced payment before the goods delivered.
In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that

follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

To manage risk arising from bank balances and bills receivables,
the Group mainly transacts with state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in Mainland/PRC and reputable international financial
institutions outside of Mainland/PRC. There has been no recent

history of default in relation to these financial institutions.

To manage risk arising from trade receivable balances, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
the management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers and
the credit quality of these customers is assessed, which takes into
account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties

and customers.

The Group reassesses lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers without significant financing component to ensure that
adequate impairment loss are made for significant increase in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

39.

SRMITAGE

T R B IR B AR SRR ()

15 B BB AR E B4 (40

AEETEZREBERACDEIREAE
MENEFPETRS  EEXHEP
o AEEEERESYM M ATERA
X - RBEREEERR  AKE
ERECZREREEEEEER
B EEEMHREMERER - AE
RERENBE 1T B W BB AR -

RERRBRITERKIEREENE
B AKETERTEAEEENE
BEZN T BB &P BREASN
HithE B EFZNEER S RKE
R ZELEBEIYLEE DT

RERKXBESHEPKALHOR
% ARBECDHEBRRBERAEER
BREENXSHFRTEES ME
EEERANGXZETNER - &
FTEEPNEENRLEERFNERE
ERMEF BN  BELREEM
RZETTAHE -

AEBYEAHEREFEERR
FERERROMRARERZHFRE
5o

AEBRABERBREXNDNE FHE
WA & B & P & #IEE 4 /0 FE U B Bt
THRBAEREHEMEEER - AE
RELB A AR A BEE BB A R 1T
e R SRIERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. 2RI AE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

For trade receivables and amounts due from related parties of trade
nature, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
or collectively using a provision matrix appropriate groupings.
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group use
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers because
its customers consists of a large number of customers which
share common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The estimated loss rates are estimated
on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted using forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

For all other instruments including bills receivable, other
receivables, other long term receivables and amounts from related
parties of non-trade nature, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The Group has assessed and concluded that the
risk of default rate for these instruments are steady based on the
Group’s assessment of the financial health of the counterparties.

T R B IR B AR R ()

15 B BB AR E B4 (40
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re SRR (E)
For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12A31HILFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s

trade and other receivables and amounts due from related parties,
which are subject to ECL assessment:

39. €@ T E(E)

T R B IR B AR R ()

15 B BB AR E B4 (40

TRAAFIAEEE S R E bR
TR DA B R WK B B 0T IR A (E B R
(BETRMEEEBRNG)

Internal Credit 2020 2019
Notes  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
i RPEEIR 12BRR2HEHEERR 202058 REE 019FBEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 AMB000 AMB000
AREFLT AEEFT ANREFT AREFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBSERAHENSREE
Other receivables 2% Mot 12-month ECL 497,776 879,111
HihEKIE iz 12EABHEERR
Credit-impaired (individually) - 497,776 35,000 914,111
EEREER)
Amounts due from related parties* 37 MNote 12-month ECL 102,335 131,804
PRl A 0 Hiz 12EARSEERR
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 95,836 198,171 36,439 168,243
SHBREEEEREER)
Other long-term receivables 22 MNote 12-month ECL 368,367 368,367 1,350,000 1,350,000
At R BRENGE it 12EARSREERR
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BRAABHARMZANENSREE
Trade receivables 26 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 558,180 385,172
B AElGE SERSEERR(REDE)
Credit-impaired (individually) 23,216 581,396 24,522 409,694
EEREER)
Bills receivable 26 MNote 12-month ECL 463,786 463,786 317,586 317,586
EUZE it 12EABHEERR

*

The gross carrying amounts disclosed above include both trade
nature receivables and non-trade nature receivables. All trade
nature receivables are applying lifetime ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. @ T E(E@E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies T EERE IR B IR MR ()
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R AR E T (&)
Note: Vi
For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses FABEERREEMS  AEBHAA
past due information or other relevant information available without Hﬂﬁﬂ‘iﬁ@ﬁ§7ﬁ%gﬁi$i*ﬁﬁﬂﬂ—f
undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased BSHEMERERTIEEERRRED
significantly since initial recognition. %ﬂﬁ“ﬁ@? EEE KIRIZAN ©
2020 20204
Not past due/
No fixed
Past due repayment terms Total
bE 3L
k] W E B HR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF7 AR®F7n AR®F7T
Bills receivable EUEE - 463,786 463,786
Amounts due from related parties  FEU BB 5 7008 - 198,171 198,171
Other receivables E it A - 497,776 497,776
Other long-term receivables Hit KRR - 368,367 368,367
2019 20194
Not past due/
No fixed
Past due repayment terms Total
WaEats,/
ks 3 B E R AR @t
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT AREFT
Bills receivable BKEE - 317,586 317,586
Amounts due from related parties  FEU AR /5 FUA = 168,243 168,243
Other receivables ﬁt&ﬁ%ﬂﬁmlﬁ 35,000 879,111 914,111
Other long-term receivables Hir REEUGRIE - 1,350,000 1,350,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has
been recognized for trade receivables and amounts due from

ERMIAE

T R B IR B AR R ()

15 B BB AR E B4 (40

TRINTERBEBETEARE H R
IR N R AR T B 21 B SRR

related parties of trade nature under the simplified approach: HEAESEEEEY
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
2HRNEEER 2HRAEERR
(AEEERE) (EERE) @t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
As at January 1, 2019 R2019F1 818 1,685 85,346 87,031
— Transfer to credit impaired -BREEERE (397) 397 =
— Impairment losses recognized ~ —CHERRRERSE 2,860 - 2,860
— Impairment losses reversed -BREMFHERSE (262) (17,408) (17,670)
~ Impairment losses written off -BHRENRESR (17) (43,813) (43,830)
As at December 31, 2019 #201912A31H 3,869 24,522 28,391
— Transfer to credit impaired -EREEERE (270) 270 =
— Impairment losses recognized ~ —ERRARERSE 14,216 139 14,355
— Impairment losses reversed —-EREMRESE (100) (218) (318)
~ Impairment losses written off - EMENRESE (1) (1,497) (1,498)
As at December 31, 2020 20205127318 17,714 23,216 40,930
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE
T B (E)

T R B IR B AR R ()

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

15 B BB AR E B4 (40

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

TRAAFINERAREREREDN

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables and

amounts due from related parties of trade nature based on the BEZRERFIERERBAE TESHHE
Group’s provision matrix. FIER R A S o
Gross carrying amount of trade receivables and amounts due from ZORWRIBREWABTESHITE

related parties of trade nature HIBMAREE

As at December 31, 2020 As at December 31, 2019

R2020%12831H R2019%F12A31H
Gross Gross
Average carrying Average carrying
loss rate amounts loss rate amounts
EHEER BREE THEREx BEREE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF AREFT
Within 1 month 8RR 0.16% 479,357 0.16% 386,963
1to 3 months 1238A 3.38% 136,506 2.80% 16,337
4 to 6 months 4%6{EA 11.76% 8,578 12.04% 5713
7to 12 months 721288 38.29% 29,575 16.71% 12,598
654,016 421,611

As at December 31, 2020, the Group provided RMB17,714,000
(2019: RMB3,869,000) impairment allowance for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties of trade nature based on the
provision matrix. In addition, as at December 31, 2020, debtors
with balances from trade receivables amounting to RMB23,216,000
(2019: RMB24,522,000) were assessed individually and impairment
allowance of RMB23,216,000 (2019: RMB24,522,000) were made.

M2020F12A31H - NEEIZRBREE
SEREBLE B FEUGRIE R UL A 5 B
S E IR RARKA17,714,0007T
(20194 : AR#3,869,0007T) 8 1B B
& o ILOh - R2020F12A31H » A%
E 2 5 EWGRIET B &R R
HAR#23,216,0007T (20194 : AR
#24,522,0007T) #EITIERIFEE - W&t
IR ERE A R23,216,0007T(2019
4 AR¥24,522,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowances that

have been recognized for bills receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from related parties of non-trade nature:

SRMIAG@E

T R B IR B AR R ()

15 B BB AR E B4 (40

TRINREEKEE - H R
AN R B T SR E 5 I E SR HER
MR AL -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

12-month ECL

(not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) Total

g3 hEb 2HEH

12BREH EFE FEFSR

FEFE UREERR) (EERE) “m

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000

AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

As at January 1, 2019 #201941 818 842 - 23,534 24,376
- Impairment losses recognized -BRRORERSE 14,211 = 24,555 38,766

~ Impairment losses reversed - BREMNHERSE (842) = (29,092) (29,934)
As at December 31, 2019 #2019 125318 14,211 - 18,997 33,208
— Transfer to credit impaired -BEEEEERE 18,997 - (18,997) =

— Impairment losses recognized —EHRERNRERE 17,822 = = 17,822
— Impairment losses reversed —BERMRESE (30,854) = = (30,854)
As at December 31, 2020 20206128318 20,176 - - 20,176

As at December 31, 2020, amounts due from CNC Risun Energy
of non-trade nature amounting to RMB102,335,000 (2019:
RMB131,804,000) were assessed individually and no impairment
allowance were made on these debtors.

Liquidity risk

The Directors are responsible for the Group’s cash management,
including the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. @ T E(E@E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies T EERE IR B IR MR ()
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESERE
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at TERBAEBRBFEHRESHABER
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities and MEHENHEAERENHREL
lease liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash HREE DT - BEREAHRIIRE ’Hi
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates BIRBeRE(BEERENFNERFTE
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting BFEAAR  WMRES - BlIRREH
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay: RERHOFEFE) ARAREE ] EHE

NHRO&RF BHFTE

As at December 31, 2020

20205125318
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
AHAMRRERY

Weighted Within ~ Morethan ~ More than

average 1year  1yearbut  2years but
interest oron less than lessthan ~ More than Carrying
rate demand 2 years 5years 5years Total amount

it | 15/ SME Eves
THRE  FRER EIRE BORSE SR5E @it REfE

%  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB0O00  RMB000  RMB000
% ARBFT ARETT AREFT AREFZ ARETT AREF%

Trade and other payables ~ EZREAMENTIE NATER 3,461,608 - -

3,461,608 3,461,608

Interest-bearing bank SRR REMER
and other loans 5.48% 8,109,425 1,875,263 1,109,541 50,251 11,144,480 10,497,734
Amounts due to related parties &8 3008 NIATEF 143,305 - - - 143,305 143,305
Lease liabilities HEaE 5.08% 30,713 14,513 27,340 5,316 77,882 69,526
Financial guarantee contracts B ERAH NAFER 1,280,000 - - - 1,280,000 -
13025051 10889776 1,136,881 55,567 16107275 14,172,173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. $F T E(®
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIRERE I B2 R (8)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESERE

As at December 31, 2019

R2019F12/318
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
ANRERRSTM

More than More than

Weighted Within 1yearbut 2 years but
average 1 year or less than less than Carrying
interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount

miE 1ER3 EaNES SiE
TR RER EORE BORSE it REE

% RMB 00O RMB OO0 AMBOOO  AMBOOO RMB 00O
% ANEETT AREFT AEETT AREFT ARETR

Trade and other payables BHRHMENTE NATEE 2830710 - - 2830710 2830710
Interest-bearing bank and other loans SHERTREMER 544% 7574921 1101245 336,781 9012947  8659,638
Amounts due to related parties FETR 5508 NIATER 332,588 - - 332,588 332,588
Lease liabilities REARE 4.63% 21,600 21,600 5,400 48,600 46,069
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREY NIATER 980,000 - - 980,000 S

11,739,819 1,122,845 342,181 13204845 11,869,005

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts LM BRERENESERNEE B
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle PHERESELHECERNEFHE
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that RZeBBATUREREENNES
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based &8 HREZWREHRNEY - 5%
on the expectations at the end of each reporting period, the EREBRBUEBEZLHEBHAS
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will NEMEE - A - ZE5EHEER
be payable under the arrangement. However, these estimates HFFRBEERREL AR
are subject to change depending on the probability of the BE - MIBH B R AR RIEURR
counterparties claiming under the guarantee which is a function of 55 PR R R A B 7 PR U R IE
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty RIEEBBMATREN -

which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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4= 2B

Re B RARN
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For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Fair values

(

)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The Group measures its following financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period on a recurring basis:

39. EMIT AR

T Rl ERR B B AR MR

DRE

—
=

(%)

BAREIIRNESERTA

AEBREHREMRIREE LR
ERAREAEHEAT ST

EERN
Fair value
DB
As at December 31,
M2A318 Fair value Valuation technique and Significant unobservable
2020 2019 hierarchy key input input(s)
2020 019 DMEER  HREFERIESAHE EXTTREGAHE
RIMB’000 RMB 000
ABBFLT  AEETIT
Financial assets
SHEE
Unlisted equity securities 43,103 51,333 Level3 Fair values are estimated based on the  Liquidity discount
comparable listed company's P/B rate
ratio and a liquidity discount
¥ FRRAES 43,103 51333  £=# DABDERAL EHATNTEER  RBUFRE
mEEATR R 5t
Private equity investment fund 117,846 50,322 Level3 Fair values are estimated based on Net assets value of
the net asset value of underlying underlying investments
investments
RERAREES 117,846 5032 E=§ DRABNEMIBRENEEFER  HERENEEFE
Bills receivables 463,786 317,586 Level2 Fair values are estimated based onthe ~ N/A
present value of the contracted cash
inflow at the discount rate that reflects
the market credit risk
EhZE 463,786 317586 £ DRETEREHROTARRYTSE TER
EERNEREHENT ARG
Trade receivables 541,495 381893  Level2 Fair values are estimated based onthe ~ N/A
present value of the contracted cash
inflow at the discount rate that reflects
the market credit risk
5 R 541,495 381893 £ RRETDEREHRORARRYDISE TER
BREBMBR R ENRER
2020 3R

TEEESEERRAR
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ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. £ TR
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIRERE IR B2 REGR (8)
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) AREGE)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) (y BEAREIENSBIAGE
Fair value
DB
As at December 31,
M2A318 Fair value Valuation technique and Significant unobservable
2020 2019 hierarchy key input input(s)
2020% 019F  AREESR  HESERIESAEE EXTTRERAYE

RMB000  RIMBUOO
ABBTZ  ARETX

Listed equity securities 57,678 48510  Level 1 Fair values are calculated based onthe  N/A
quoted prices in an active market

TTIRAES 57,678 48510 E-H§ DRABHERNERMS LNRETE TEA

Wealth management product 32,411 71940  Level 2 Fair values are determined with N/A

reference to the quoted prices
provided by financial institutions

HEERER 32,411 71940  EZH RRENR2ZORRERANGEEY TER
Futures contracts 2,885 33 Levelt Fair values are derived from quoted bid ~ N/A
prices in an active market
#HEan 2,885 3B EH DREIREERTSHEARE TER
Held-for-trading non-derivative 5,290 10492 Level 1 Fair values are derived from quoted bid ~ N/A
financial assets prices in an active market
BIEEEHTEERER 5,290 10492 E-# DAENKERRTENEARE THR
Financial liabilities
SREE
Futures contracts 140 1,866  Level 1 Fair values are derived from quoted bid ~ N/A
prices in an active market
HEaH 140 1866 £ RAEDREERTSNEARE THR
Derivative financial 52,189 - Level2 Fair values are determined with N/A
instruments - swaps reference to the quoted prices
provided by financial institutions
ITEeBTA-1BH 52,189 - IR DRAENELZCANERENEEET TEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. £FT A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIRERE IR B2 REGR (8)
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) ARE(E)

(iy  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) RAREYENSHIE )

—
=

The Group’s investments in unlisted equity securities which R2020F 128310 * HEASE
were classified as financial assets at FVTPL under level 3 =RIBRAAEFABENCRE
hierarchy amounted to RMB43,103,000 as at December ENASEFFELTRAZHFERE
31, 2020. The significant unobservable input is the liquidity BARMA43,103,0007T - B XA
discount rate. The higher liquidity discount rate, the lower fair TR B R A BB A RBEITE
value of the financial assets at FVTPL will be. A 5% increase/ Ko mBMITREEYS  BAR
decrease in the liquidity discount rate, holding all other Bift \BEEHNEREENAR
variables constant, the carrying amounts of the investments B o BRER M E T IR K1Y
would decrease/increase by RMB2,155,000 (2019: mn/mAs%  MErBHEME S
RMB1,957,000) as at December 31, 2020. T8 - B|2020F12A31H%ZSE

REMBREERD MEMARE
2,155,0007C (20194 : AR
1,957,0007T) °

The Group’s investments in private equity fund which were MR2020%F12A318 * nEASE
classified as financial assets at FVTPL under level 3 hierarchy =RTBAREFABENSHE
amounted to RMB117,846,000 (2019: RMB50,322,000) as ENAEENEREAESRER
at December 31, 2020. The significant unobservable input is AE#117,846,0007T (20194 :
the net assets value of underlying investments. The higher AR#50,322,0007T) © AT
net assets value of underlying investments, the higher fair ATEREH A SR AEEIRENE
value of the financial assets at FVTPL will be. A 5% increase/ EFE - HERENEEFEY
decrease in the net assets value of underlying investments, & BARERABRNERE
holding all other variables constant, the carrying amounts of EMARERS - HBERENE
the investments would increase/decrease by RMB5,892,000 EFREENHL5% A
(2019: RMB2,516,000) as at December 31, 2020. Hih B & & - 8]20205F12 4

31EZERENIRAEERE IR
L ANR#5,892,0007T (20194 -
AR#2516,0007T) °

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during RBERR  E—REE K2
the reporting period. il I A B o

2020 Fi#R
FEEBEEERA G 2n



272

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR e MR M A ()

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. @ T E(E@E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies T EERE IR B IR MR ()
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) ARE(E)
(i) Reconciliation of level 3 measurements (i) F=ZHFTENHEER
The following table represents the reconciliation of level 3 TRETNEERERE =4
measurements throughout the reporting period. SHHER o
Unlisted
Private equity
equity fund securities Total
REREES FLHRAES st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AREFIT AREFT AREFT
As at January 1, 2019 120191518 - 25,000 25,000
Purchase BE 50,000 - 50,000
Transfer from other long term BB H R I GRIE &
receivables and prepayments FERRIE = 25,000 25,000
Fair value change in currentyear ~ AEE QAR EE 322 1,333 1,655
As at December 31, 2019 2019 12A31H 50,322 51,333 101,655
Purchase BE 59,000 - 59,000
Fair value change in current year ~ REE QA EEE) 8,524 (8,230) 294
As at December 31, 2020 720205 12A31H 117,846 43,103 160,949

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

(iif)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values due to short maturity and floating interest rates, as
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

40. BMEEBHELENEEHK

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were or future cash flows will be, classified in the

TEHIAREAREEDELNA
EED BERALEERLED - B
AEDEAMARDEEARSRER
ARBERERAEBRAR S NE

Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from KPP EARMETHRERENE
financing activities. F -
Amounts
Interest- due to
bearing related Interest and
bank and parties Lease dividend Accrued
otherloans  non-trade liabilities payable issue cost Total
GERAR ENBBA EfFIE st
HttER  HESFA HEAR RES BITRA act
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANREFT  ANREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At January 1, 2019 R2019F1 718 8,890,217 467,533 24,552 11,311 6,398 9,400,011
Net financing cash flows BEREMEFE (565,076)  (467,533) (41,916)  (897,366) 1595439 (376,452)
Bill receivables discounted (Note) ~ BERIEE B (W) (169,436) = = = - (169,436)
Dividend payable ERRE - - - 888,088 - 888,088
An new lease entered IR = = 60,391 = = 60,391
Finance costs RENA 462,537 - 3,042 - - 465,579
Interest accrual - capitalized ke v 24,627 - - - S 24,627
Issue costs accrued HE - - = = 47,094 47,094
Share issued BEIRG - - - - (1,648931)  (1,648931)
Exchange difference EHER 16,769 = = = = 16,769
At December 31, 2019 "2019612A31A 8,659,638 - 46,069 2,033 - 8,707,740
Net financing cash flows HERETESE 1,420,726 - (13,556)  (263,790) - 1,143,380
Bill receivables discounted (Nore) ~ EREEME B Wiz) (157,450) - - - - (157,450)
Dividend payable RS - - - 261,760 - 261,760
An new lease entered MiHE - - 46,687 - - 46,687
Offset trade receivable HEE SEWERR - - (12,600) - - (12,600)
Finance costs TS 529,106 - 2,926 - - 532,032
Interest accrual - capitalized EEHFIE - &R 85,088 - - - - 85,088
Exchange difference EHER (39,374) - - - - (39,374)
At December 31, 2020 R2020F12A31H 10,497,734 - 69,526 3 - 10,567,263
Note: During each reporting period, the Group has discounted bills MeE - RERSHME ~NEEDHERSE

receivable from third parties to banks for short term financing.
The relevant cash flows of these borrowings are presented as
operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows
as the Directors consider the cash flows are in substance, the
receipts from trade customers.

=HERBRBATRIT - LUETREY
BE - ZEEFNEERSTER
SARERERZINARERSR
BESEFPKEMNHKIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

41. COMMITMENTS 41, &I
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of each (@) REMEERIL ARSI HR
reporting period not provided for in the consolidated financial RAPELRBEORBITE RNESE
statements were as follows: R

As at December 31,

M128318
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TFT ARBFIT

Capital expenditure in respect of LA N &EHE AR ¢
— The acquisition of property, — BB - BE MEE
plant and equipment 3,058,371 2,871,642
— Investments in associates — B A RIIRE 451,500 =
— Acquisition (note 45) — Ui (W3t 45) 3,151,000 =
42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 42. EEER

RERSHR - R E26MEREER
AREBERITEREROIRZEIN
AEEETEECEARSETAEE
IRITROEVEYEGR - MAERR®EENT ¢

At the end of each reporting period, in addition to the discounted
bills securing the Group’s bank borrowings as disclosed in note 26,
certain Group’s assets were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFT AREFT
Property, plant and equipment W - BEKREE 2,847,664 3,576,561
Right-of-use assets PREEE 644,300 772,004
Inventories FE 433,340 216,670
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIRITER 1,083,511 954,446
5,008,815 5,519,681
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

= A B TSR B 5 ()

N

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private
companies, particulars of which are set out below:

43. RHE QR ER

RAHREBH  ARBARATHEBR
AEEERMEEES  ZFEQFY

RILARE - BRAEREIIWT

Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activity
H e BRERT/ AAEEERELS
HEAREM EXBE R A HZ128318 TERK
2020 2019
20206 20195

Xingtai Risun Trading Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(“Xingtai Risun Trading”, formerly known as RMB94,750,000 chemicals and refined
Xingtai Risun Coking Limited) chemicals
(RamBEESERAR)

(Notes (i) and (iv))

MawEESERAR(MaRBHES] - HE BHRARARE BEER  ElERR
AITER R B (B RAR) (W) R (iv) 94,750,0007¢ B IER

Hebei Risun Energy Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of coke and
("Hebei Risun Energy”, formerly known as RMB1,000,000,000 coking chemicals
Hebei Risun Coking Limited)

(LIRS EERBR AR (Notes (1) and (iv)

LS s RAR AR (DAL B AER] - h BRRAARS EEERRENER
ARG S BR DR W) E V) 1,000,000,0007T

Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals”) RMB510,000,000 chemicals
(RamBBEE L TERAR)

(Notes (i) and (iv))

MaRBEcIARAR(HERERCT) RE BHRKARY EERMCIER
(Wi B(iv) 510,000,0007T

China Risun Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HKD1 100% 100%  Investment holding and
(“Hong Kong Risun”, formerly known as trading of coke, coking
Risun Coal Chemicals Group Limited and chemicals and refined
Sky Hero Resources Limited) chemicals

HEBGEEES)ERARN(EERR] - &8 ERRIET REZRREEER -
ABEEE TEEERRARARREER ErERRERIER
BBAR)

Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy”) RMB200,000,000 chemicals
(EMREFEIRER LA (Note (iv))

EMREMERERLA(EMRENLR) + BHRRARY EERGIER
Bz (i) 200,000,0007¢

2020 F3}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

43. RHE 2 78R ()

Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activity
TMRL BAERT/ KRB RAELA
HEAREME BB MR HZ12R318 TEER
2020 2019
20206  2019%

Golden Sino Enterprises Limited (“Golden BV Ordinary shareUSD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Sino”) (Note (iii))

Golden Sino Enterprises Limited ([Golden ~ HBEZEHE EBRIET REER
Sinol) (#& (i)

Risun Marketing Co., Ltd. (“Risun Marking”, ~ The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
formerly known as Beijing Risun RMB1,000,000,000 chemicals and refined
Hongye Chemicals Co., Ltd.) chemicals
(TBE & $5BR A R)) (Notes (i) and (iv)

BE2EERAR(BEEE]  AdtR B BRRAARE BEER ElERR
BRI TRBR AR W) R ) 1,000,000,0007 B IER

Tangshan Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Tangshan Risun Chemicals”) RMB495,000,000 chemicals
(BBt TERAR) (Notes (i) and (iv)

BEESIERAR(ELBEI) HE BHRARARE ERBLIER
(Biz) & (iv) 495,000,0007T

Risun Chemicals (JBF3 5B B R AF]) The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Notes (i) and (iv)) RMB4,898,794,000

BEEEERAR(BEEE] - M BRRAARE REER
AIBIER L TERAR) (W) R(v) 4,898,794,0007T

Cangzhou Risun (MBS TERAF)  The PRC Paid-in capital 89.92%  89.92%  Production of refined
(Notes (i) and (iv)) USD151,600,000 chemicals

BB T (W) Z(iv) H BRRA FERMCIER

151,600,000 T

Risun Global Limited (“Risun Global”, Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
formerly known as Good City HKD3,000,000 chemicals and refined
(Hong Kong) Limited) chemicals

TBIS B AR A A (TER R - BE £18i%3,000,000% 7T BEER  ElERREA
AitEw (BB BRAF) tIER

Xingtai Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Xingtai Risun Chemicals”) RMB218,520,000 chemicals
(BAMBBETER AT (Notes (i) and (iv)

MaBEB I ITERARA(BABEI) HE BRRAARE FERMCIER
(i) R (iv) 218,520,0007C
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

43. RHE 2 78R ()

Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activity
AR, BAERT/ KRB RAELA
HEAREME BB MR HZ12R318 TEER
2020 2019
20206  2019%
Tangshan Risun Aromatics Hydrocarbon The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
Limited (E1LBR S EERBRAR) RMB378,330,000 chemicals
(Notes (iv) and (iii))
BRSS EERERARMZ R — F BRRAARE FERMCIER
378,330,0007T
Beijing Risun Digital Technology Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 71.05% 71.05%  Information technology
(EREGEFREBRAF]) RMB15,475,000 service
(Notes (iv) and (i)
RSB FREAR AR W Eii) & BRRAARE EERIMRS
15,475,0007T
Risun Materials Co., Ltd Japan Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(BEMER &1t) JPY155,000,000 chemicals refined and
(Notes (i) and (iv)) chemicals
TR B @ (Wat(i) R(iv) BA BRRA BEER Sl ERREA
155,000,000H 7T CIER
Lingyuan Risun Ling Steel Energy Limited ~ The PRC Paid-in capital 70% 70%  Production of coke and
(EREBZHRER A A) RMB100,000,000 coking chemicals
(Notes (i) and (iv))
ERIBSEHERERARWZEW)  + BRRAARE EEERRENER
100,000,0007T
Tangshan Risun Materials Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke and coking
(BILBEHMERRAR) Notes (i) and (iv) RMB 120,000,000 chemicals
BRI ERRAR @ ()R () H BRRAARE BEERRENER
120,000,0007T
Dingzhou Zhongxu Industrial Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% N/A  Real estate construction
(EMFBEXBRAR) RMB20,000,000
(Notes (i) and (iv))
SEMBE Z BB DR (B (i) R (vi) H BHRTARE TER  EHERR
20,000,0007T
Lingyuan Risun New Material Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% N/A  Trading of coke and coking
(ERIBSHHHBRAR) RMB100,000,000 chemicals
(Notes (i) and (iv))
ERIBSIATRAR DR (Wt i) & (v) H BRRAARE NER EBEERRENER
100,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. RHE QTR (E)
Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activity
AR, BfERT/ KRREERAELA
HEAREME Xy EMRA BZ12831A8 TEER
2020 2019
20206 2019
Shandong Risun Chemicals Imports and The PRC Paid-in capital 100% N/A  Trading of coke and coking
Exports Co., Ltd (LLREBE TEHD RMB50,000,000 chemicals
BIRAR) (Notes (j) (if) and (vi))
LB TEENER AT HE BHRRARE TEfR EEERRELER
(W) - (i) B(vi) 50,000,000
Zhangshu Risun Hongyu Energy Limited The PRC Registered capital 100% N/A  Trading of coke and coking
(BRTERETRRERAR) RMB200,000,000 chemicals
(Notes (i) and (iv))
BEMBGETFRRER AR G2 E ) +&E FREARS TER EBEERRENER
200,000,0007T
Dingzhou Risun Hydrogen Energy Limited ~ The PRC Registered capital 100% N/A Production of Hydrogen
(EMBBEEERAT) RMB20,000,000
(Notes (i) and (iv))
MBS SR B IR 1 Rl (Wt (i) R iv)) HE FMRARARE TER 88
20,000,0007T
Notes: Bt -
(i)  These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in () ZEEBARTBEKINIINGEE
the PRC. BE -
(i) These entities are sino-foreign owned entities established in the (i) ZEERBANRDPBEKINFINGE
PRC. B
(i) No audited statutory financial statements have been prepared for (i) MERZEMNBRRGRE LTV

these subsidiaries.

(iv)  The English translation of the names is for reference only. The (iv)
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

B/ -

LBORXBREESE - REA
AMEREBAHX -

All of the above subsidiaries, except for Golden Sino, are indirectly Fra Ll b B2 Al (BrGolden Sino%h)
held by the Company. BHRANGMERES -

All companies now comprising the Group have adopted December WAKALERNRAE QG ERA12A
31, as their financial year end. IIBABRENMBFELER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #HZE2020F 128318 ItFE
44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 44. KRN E) B E R

BREARBPHARRAKRNERAT

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

was as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AR TFT
Non-current assets IREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RHEBRATMHKRE 1,300,000 1,300,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) ~ FEUSHH B A BIZIE (H1:L) - 412,039
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREBEABENERERE 15,295 =
1,315,295 1,712,039
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) ~ FEURH B A RIFIB (W) 494,016 68,000
Trade and other receivables 5 REMEWGRIE 390 642
Cash and cash equivalent BeRIREZEEY 1,586 2,338
495,992 70,980
Current liabilities RENEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note) FERTI B A BIFRIE (H2E) 9,246 9,246
Trade and other payables B 5 M H M FERFRIA 64 2,191
9,310 11,437
Net current assets MEEEFE 486,682 59,543
Net assets EEFE 1,801,977 1,771,582
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital &N 354,699 354,699
Reserves G 1,447,278 1,416,883
Total equity AR 1,801,977 1,771,582
Note: Bt -

BREK—ZXHMBAR - FFREREI% K
#H2021F6 A30H B M E K IR AR
412,039,0007C IS « AR BB HARR
RPBENER EMNHBARREBIEE
SHE -« EIER - R RAREREE -

Except for amount due from a subsidiary of RMB412,039,000 which was
unsecured, bearing interest at 9% per annum and repayable on June 30,
2021, the amounts due from/to subsidiaries disclosed in the Company’s
statement of financial position are of non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

2020 Fi#R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire SRR

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(&)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

RRRMBER ()

(CONTINUED)
Movements in the Company’s reserves NARIFEEE
Share Accumulated
premium (losses)/profit Total
BRAPEE R (EHE) 5 @at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARBTFT ARETT
AtJanuary 1, 2019 2019 1A1H 475,949 32,260 508,209
Capitalisation issue BA(LEAT (208,548) = (208,548)
Ordinary shares issued BETE AR 1,589,903 - 1,589,903
Transaction costs attributable BEIIROELENR KA
to issue of shares (53,492) - (53,492)
Profit for the year FREA - 460,161 460,161
Dividends appropriation (Note 74) REDIRMEE14) (426,588) (452,762) (879,350)
At December 31, 2019 72019F12831H 1,377,224 39,659 1,416,883
Profit for the year ¢ WA - 292,155 292,155
Dividends appropriation (Note 14) REDIKMFE14) - (261,760) (261,760)
At December 31, 2020 20206 12H31H 1,377,224 70,054 1,447,278
45. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 45. {EHREE

Other than the events as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, subsequent to December 31, 2020, the

following significant events took place:

As set out in Note 22, the Group completed the Acquisition of
100% of Shunri Xinze at the consideration of RMB4.91 billion. The
Acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of business
using the acquisition method. Details of the Acquisition are set out
in the Group’s circular dated December 8, 2020. The Acquisition
is conducive to the future business expansion of the Group in the
coke and refined chemicals market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 #Z2020F12A318 LFE

45. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 45. HMEWRBEAEGE)

(CONTINUED)
Assets and liabilities recognized at the date of NWBRERCEERAE
acquisition (determined on a provisional basis) HEEEEET)
RMB'000
ARKFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 3,835,277
Intangible assets mEE 852,000
Right-of-use assets REEE 316,577
Other long-term receivables Hib REAFEWGRIR 55,175
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 463,263
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A FEURIE 907,019
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 43,851
Current liabilities REBAE
Contract liabilities SHAE 16,903
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEMFERFRIA 944,473
Income tax payable FERTERISHE 431,732
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEAE 286,681
Net assets acquired SWBEETE 4,793,373
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEPrEE B R 2
RMB'000
ARBTT
Consideration transferred EEMAE
Offset by deposits and prepayment (Note 22) Rk RIBNRIBERE #7722 1,763,000
To pay in cash IR &
On September 15, 2023 (Note) 202399 8158 (#1it) 1,575,000
On or before September 15, 2024 (Note) 12024499 B 158 8t 2 Al (H/72) 1,576,000
4,914,000
Less: recognized amounts of net assets acquired B BEWEEEFENDHERSRE (4,793,373)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEENEE 120,627
2020 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2020 & ZE2020F12831HIFFE

45. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(CONTINUED)

Goodwill arising on acquisition (Continued)

Note: the balances are bearing interest at 10% per annum with interest

payable quarterly.

Goodwill arises in the Acquisition because the consideration
included a control premium and the unused tax losses and
deductible temporary difference of the Target Group at the date
of acquisition are pending for the confirmation by the local tax
authorities and therefore no deferred tax asset has been recognized

due to the unpredictability of the confirmation.

The initial accounting for the Acquisition has only been provisionally
determined as at January 15, 2021. At the date of this report,
the necessary valuation for purchase price allocation had not
been finalized and the market values of the assets and liabilities
have therefore only been provisionally determined based on the

Directors’ best estimate.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets at the date of acquisition is provisional and pending for the

valuation by an independent professional valuer.
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HEBEAET - RAREBH -
KEKRBEEBRSBEOVNERGE K
o BEMABBENTEEBEDINES
ZEIETRRAEE -

Mm% - R RREREAER WS
B2 2% A RS H %
BT -



“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”
[#BA sk 44 =2 4R A

“associate(s)”

k- INI

“Audit Committee”
[B%EEE

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
[FEg]

“Business Day” or
“pbusiness day”

[&%A]
“‘BvI”
[REBEIAS]

“Cabot Risun Chemicals”

[RERBFSE T

“Cangzhou Production Base”
CeMAEERRE]

“CCIA”

[MPEREITE RS

“China” or “PRC”

[ e

Definitions

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RN RINEEERZAA (ETRHER])

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
B s A Tz s R

the audit committee of the Board

EFEMNERZBE

our board of Directors

E e

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal banking business to
the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong
EBRIT—RELBFEPIPRBEFTROIEBNEMNE F(EHX  EREXBEBRIRBRISR
e

the British Virgin Islands
RBRUHS

Cabot Risun Chemical (Xingtai) Co., Ltd. (K& BB/t TFE)BRAF]), a limited
liability company established in the PRC on June 23, 2011 and owned as to 60.0% by
Cabot (China) Limited (<1&#F (R E) 1% & B R 2 7]), an independent third party, and 40.0%
by our subsidiary, Risun Chemicals. It is an associate of our Company

REFBEBETOBE)BERAT - R2011F6 A23BEF B AER AT - I B R ER(F
BNIREBR AT (RBILE=F) REMOMEB R BNESE 5 R H60.0%5&40.0% - &7

NS0}k /Nl

our production base in Cangzhou, where the refined chemical facilities directly owned by
our subsidiary, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals, are located

BAERMONEERR - AEFINMEQFIAMNBEC TEEESORBA(C TRIEMNAMELD

the China Coking Industry Association ({FBIRETTEWE), an association composed of
representatives from the PRC coking industry

PERETEGE - AR ERETERRARNHE

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references to “China”
and the "“PRC” do not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
PEARLNE - ERAFHREIEHES2ZEMNS - BXESEEN -
BEEE  RFIRAE

7R B IR
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Definitions (Continued)

Ex(E)

“CNC Risun Energy”
[ R B5 AL IR

“Companies Ordinance’
NI

“Company”

[RAF]

“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL]
“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ AR R

“Deed of Non-competition”

[T 5 RIE

“Dingzhou Production Base’

EMEERRE]

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

Dongming Production Base

REALFERR
“EBITDA”
[EBITDAI

Hebei CNC Risun Energy Limited (AL EENB5 8EJR B R A 7)), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on November 21, 2003 and a joint venture company of the
Company

AL IERGRE R AR AR -

AMAE AT

—XR2003F 11 A21 B EF BIFMA LM ER AR AEAA

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BRADIFE6228 R RIGEDI ETRHER] S 7T)

China Risun Group Limited(FREIfBF5 & E AR A7), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on November 8, 2007
FEMBSEEBRAR - —FRKN2007F 11 ASHEFR SRS MK ER AR

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

A AR A TR R

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules and, unless the context otherwise
requires, means each of Texson and Mr. Yang

A FMARRM T ZFANRE - RIFEXERBAE - SAERRRRGEE

a deed of non-competition entered into by each of our Controlling Shareholders containing
the undertakings as described in the paragraph headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-Competition” of the Prospectus, in favor of the Company and
our subsidiaries dated February 20, 2019

AEERARRETZ AIR2019F2 A20 A ARG - BB HRER[EIZEAR AR A #E
BR—TRFRE]—RATAUAR R B REFIHME A R AR m AR

our production base in Dingzhou, where the refined chemical facilities owned by our
subsidiary, Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy, the coking facilities owned by our subsidiary,
Hebei Risun Coking, and hydrogen production facilities owned by our subsidiary
Dingzhou Risun hydrogen Energy are located

BMEEMNNEERR - RBPIONMERREMNREFEIRER BB THRE - BP0
B AR BES B B R VR LR M PR M B A R E N BES REE R BV SR A E R M Y
PRIEH

the director(s) of the Company
RABIES

our production base in Dongming, where the refined chemical facilities directly owned by
our subsidiaries are located

BPERANEERR - BEMNHE D RIHES OB TRIEN AL

earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization

RETRE - BB - EREENEN
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“Executive Director(s)”

[FITEE]

“Financial Statements”

(BT R
“FVTPL”
AR ER AR

“Global Offering”

“Group”, “we” or “us

(A& k)

“HBCCIA”
DAL E TR

“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars”
or “cents”

[Tk L
“Hong Kong” or “HK”
(&)

»

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange
or “Stock Exchange”
(& ,%Hﬁﬁxﬁﬁm( 22T

Huhhot Production Base

WA R A EEE [

Definitions (Continued

)
Ex(E)

executive Director(s)

WITES

the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 prepared by
the directors of the Company and audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, set out on pages
137 to 282 of this annual report
REREIBTZ282EFHMARAESHF UL AR HER T2
124318 IEFE iR A MRk

SHEMT TR XA B E 20205

fair value through profit or loss
RAREF ABE

the offer of 60,000,000 Shares initially offered by the Company for subscription by the
public in Hong Kong at, the offer and sale of the 540,000,000 Shares by the Company to
professional, institutional and other investors and an over- allotment of 90,000,000 Shares
as described in the section headed “Structure of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus
?ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁf@ﬁéﬂ%@?ﬁ%kﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@i Bl¥I5 4R 2 3 £60,000,000 8D A BB AR

TRE - RARARRFEE - %%&Eﬁﬁ&éﬁ%ﬁf%&@ﬁ’%540,000,000Hxﬂx1ﬁ&i%ﬁ@6%§‘
9o,ooo,oooﬂxﬂﬁfﬁ

the Company and its subsidiaries or, where the context otherwise requires, in respect
of the period prior to the Company becoming the holding company of its present
subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company, some or any of them and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their predecessors

ZAY/NCIDSEEN )2 N 1H1K%§73*ﬁ}5ﬁ}a WRAR B AEIRE M B A 5] B0 R =] A O Hf
RmE - AEAR Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ% ETHEMZEHNBR R REMZENERRHERE
SUME) E BT & R B E 0 ¥R

Hebei Coking and Chemical Industry Association (jAlit& #£1L1T¥1# &), an association
composed of representatives from the coking and coal chemical industries

LB EMITERE - RN TITERKRERN TS

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEEEE BTGB

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEIEBSRITTH R

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEMERXHMBRAT

our production base in Huhhot, where the coking and refined chemical facilities directly

owned by our joint venture, Hohhot Risun China Gas Energy, are located

BPETIESNEERR - BERMEE S 2R RINFRERE R PR IREE A AR E B
SR EY PTIE M
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Definitions (Continued)

Ex(E)

“IFRS”
[R5 i 5 2 AL
“Independent Non-executive

Director(s)”

(B IFITER]

“independent third party(ies)”

PEzE=77]

“Jinniu Risun Chemicals”

[E41B5(ET]

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Date”

[ - E A
“Listing Rules”

[Er#R Al

“Main Board”

[E1R]
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International Financial Reporting Standards, amendments and interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board
B G ERIE E S MMM BRI IS 2R (BRI R R

independent non-executive Director(s)
BUIEHITES

person(s) or company(ies) and their respective ultimate beneficial owner(s), who/which, to
the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, is/are not connected with the Company or our connected persons as defined
under the Listing Rules

BRMEEWNEL YIS BERERRM  SBERERE - RELTRAERDFRERMEE
ATWEEAENATRATARBEESEREEREGA

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited (A/ib &4 Bf5(E THRAF]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on March 28, 2008 and owned as to 50.0% by our
subsidiary, Xingtai Risun Trading and 50.0% by Hebei Jinniu Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.
(b &L TRD AR A R]), a company established in the PRC, whose shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600722), and an independent third party.
Jinniu Risun Chemicals is an associate of our Company

AL F ST AERAR - —KN2008F3 A28 BEF B M AR AR - AFRAMIHIME
RAMBEIEHE S KAt @ HE TRMER AR (—REFBEKIZIN R - EROHR LEE
HFR P LR - 600722) © RIBILE=77) 7 HI#EHS0.0%5%50.0% © &4 1B5ET
RARAIRHEE A A

listing of the Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
MR P E BB R P T

the date, being, March 15, 2019, on which the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange

A An BB A2 P TR L B IE R R T E IR IR E E R B HA - BI20196F3 A 151

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)
EEBARSGMARRDRES ETAREEIRER] - RsAR T RERD

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operated in parallel with the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange

BB S ENRET S (T EEREMS) - BN B PTGEMIL B E I 174 &E

L]



“Mr. Yang”

[55eE]

“NDRC”

[ERENE]

“Nomination Committee”

[E2ZEg

“‘NPC”
(2B AKX

“Prospectus”

(TR ERE]

“Remuneration Committee”

[FMZEE]

“Reporting Period”
[$REHA

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
AR

“SFQO” or “Securities and
Futures Ordinance”

(&7 MR RG]

“Shares”

[Bf7 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
(A&

“subsidiary” or “subsidiaries’

Eni=NGl

“substantial shareholder”
[EZ2A8H]

“Tangshan Production Base”

[FEERRE]

Definitions (Continued

)
Ex(E)

Mr. Yang Xuegang (4= @), an Executive Director, the chairman of the Board, chief
executive officer and one of our Controlling Shareholders

BEMEE ITES  EESLERITRAEE - TABMNERRR 2 —

National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC (FF % A &L HNE B 5% 2 & Ak
FEE®)
FEARANMBEEZZRNNELZES

the nomination committee of the Board

EFEMRAZEBE

National People’s Congress of the PRC (FF# AREMBEZ2EARKEZAD)
PEAREMEZEAARRERS

the prospectus of the Company dated February 28, 2019 in relation to the initial public
offering and the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange

AT AEA2019F2 A28 H BB B X AR EE RE M A IR HD R R BT LR HBIRER

the remuneration committee of the Board

EFENFHEEE

January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020
202091 A1HE2020%12831H

the lawful currency of the PRC

PEDEEES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time

BEEDIEST1E B F LG GG RS R S 7T)

ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of our Company

AR BT EFAEE. 10ETTH) EBAR

holder(s) of our Shares
RAFE A

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Companies Ordinance
LN S i -

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules
B iR Al T s e R &

the production base in Tangshan, where the refined chemical facilities owned by our
subsidiary, Tangshan Risun Chemicals are located

RMEEUNEERR - REMHMEBRRELBEE THEA OB TRENMEL
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Definitions (Continued)

Bx(E)

“Texson”

[Z=5e7R]

“USA”
S

“UsD”
ES

“Xingtai Production Base”

(MarERRE]

Xingtai Risun Chemicals
[T & feFs{ L)

“Xingtai Risun Trading”
[TBETEFSE 5 )

“Xuyang Group”

[TBr5 5]

“Xuyang Holding”

[BRE1ER

Yuncheng Production Base
B A EE =

wop”
[%]

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

Texson Limited (F=reFHRAMRAF]), a company incorporated in the BVI on February 19,
2004 and wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. It is one of our Controlling Shareholders
RRHRBBR AR —HKR2004F2A19B ERBRAHSTMAINRE - BHIGTELERE
B ERBMRERRR 2 —

the United States of America
ERERERE

the lawful currency of the USA

XEHEEEY

the production base in Xingtai, where the coking facilities owned by our joint venture
company, CNC Risun Energy, and refined chemical facilities owned by our subsidiaries,
Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals, Xingtai Risun Chemicals and our associates, Jinniu Risun
Chemicals and Cabot Risun Chemicals are located

BMEMENEERRE - REMNE SR TR EEELRES NREREAREMOHER
AIMAEEFEAT - MEEE T REMNEE QR SFBELET - RESEEEITESRN
FEAE TR PTTEH

Xingtai Risun Chemicals Limited (JB&JES{L THR A 7)), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on March 17, 2014 and an indirect wholly- owned subsidiary of our
Company

MEMBEEIBRAR - —RH2014F3A17BEFRKIMHERADA - ARQAKMEES
=l YN=]

Xingtai Risun Trading Limited (lB&EFE 5 BR 2 7)) (formerly known as Xingtai Risun
Coking Limited (FB&BFZE(LBRAF]), a limited liability company established in the
PRC on May 12, 1995 and an indirect wholly- owned subsidiary of our Company
MEBHEEZSER LR FIBMABEENERATE) - —KN1995F5 A 128 £ BIKIZH)
BRAT - RAARINEZEZENB AT

Xuyang Holding and its subsidiaries
TBRS 12 A% K ELBfT 8 22 7

Xuyang Holding Limited (JEFZ#ZER% AR A A]) (formerly known as Xuyang Coking Holding
Limited (JBFZE{b4EM8 B R 2 ]) and Tianlu Industrial Holding Limited (K& & 2iEERR
2 7A])), a limited liability company established in the PRC on August 4, 2004 and owned as
t0 99.0% by Mr. Yang and 1.0% by Mrs. Yang

BSERER AR FIEBEECERERARRREEEZERER AR - —HKMN20045F8
RABREHRBIKZINER AR - BHEERBAKRD BIHH99.0% K& 1.0%

our production base in Yuncheng, where the coking and refined chemical facilities directly
owned by our subsidiaries are located

BAESHNEERR - AEFIEME QR RE MBI TRIEH A

per cent
Bt
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